
 

TULARE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
12/13/2024 [03:00 PM] 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

For the Regular Board Meeting of December 13, 2024, at 3:00 p.m., in the Redwood Conference Center 
at the Jim Vidak Education Center, 6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia, California. 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 
b. Welcome 

2.  ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING/ELECTION OF NEW OFFICERS 
a.  [pursuant to Education Code Section 1009] 

1. Oath of Office, Board of Education Members:  Trustee Area 2, Ruben Macareno, Trustee 
Area 3, Tom Link; Trustee Area 5, Mike Waters, and Trustee Area 6, Chris Reed -- Tim A. Hire 

2. Election of President -- Tim A. Hire 
3. Election of Vice President -- (New President) 
4. Adoption of 2025 Tulare County Board of Education Meeting Dates -- (New President) 

3.  ADA ACCOMMODATION REQUIREMENT 

Persons who are in need of a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in the board meeting must make a request in writing to the Office of the County Superintendent of 
Schools, 6200 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California, P.O. Box 5091, 559/733-6301. A request for 
accommodation should specify the nature of the modification or accommodation requested, including 
any necessary auxiliary aids or services required and the name and telephone number of the person 
making the request. The written request should be made as soon as possible and no later than 2 days 
before the meeting. The agenda, agenda packet and any written documents distributed to the board 
during a public meeting will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a 
person with a disability as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

Written documents concerning agenda items are available for public inspection during normal business 
hours within 72 hours of a regular board meeting at the Tulare County Office of Education, 6200 South 
Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California. 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the board on any agenda item, or other item of interest within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the board during the public comment period.  Agenda items may also be 
addressed by the public at the time they are taken up by the board.  The board is not able to discuss or 



2 of 3 

take action on any item not appearing on the agenda.  A five-minute time limit can be imposed on 
public input for individuals/issues as deemed necessary. 

5.  ACTION ITEMS 
a.  TCOE/Department Presentation -- California Center Teaching Careers -- Marvin Lopez 
b.  Routine Matters 

1.  Consent Calendar  

a. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of November 13, 2024 
b. Authorization of Countywide Registration of Credentials 
c. Authorization of Temporary County Certificates 
d. Authorization of Countywide Emergency Permit Applications 
e. Approval of Donation from American Association of University Women Visalia-Sequoia Branch 

($1,700) to Expanding Your Horizons 
f. Approval of Donation from Soroptimist International of Visalia ($175) to Expanding Your 

Horizons 
g. Approval of Donation from Kaweah Health Medical Center ($300) to Expanding Your Horizons 
h. Approval of Donation from Valley Strong Credit Union ($200) to Expanding Your Horizons 
i. Approval of Donation from Pepsi Beverages Company ($350) to Expanding Your Horizons 
j. Approval of Donation from Newell Brands ($450) to Expanding Your Horizons 
k. Approval of Donation from Dumont Printing ($487) to Expanding Your Horizons 
l. Approval of Donation from IDEA Printing and Graphics ($684) to Expanding Your Horizons 

c.  Old Business 
1.  Second Reading, Consideration and Approval, Board Policy/Superintendent Policy 1312.3 - 
Uniform Complaint Procedures -- Dedi Somavia 
2.  Second Reading, Consideration and Approval, Board Policy/Superintendent Policy & Exhibit (2) 
1312.4 - Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures and Exhibit -- Dedi Somavia 

d.  New Business 
1.  Consideration and Approval, Resolution No. 24/25-15, Compensation of County Superintendent -- 
Dedi Somavia 
2.  Consideration and Approval, Amendment #6 Department of Health Care Services -- Nani Dodson 
3.  Consideration and Approval, Grant Agreement for California Department of Public Health, 
Substance and Addiction Prevention Branch -- Nani Dodson 
4.  Public Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Tulare County Office of 
Education (TCOE) and the California School Employees Association (CSEA) Chapter #428 for the 2024-
2025 school year -- Dedi Somavia 
5.  Public Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Tulare County Office of 
Education (TCOE) and the California School Employees Association (CSEA) Chapter #899 for the 2024-
2025 school year -- Dedi Somavia 



3 of 3 

6.  Public Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Tulare County Office of 
Education (TCOE) and the Tulare County Office of Education Teachers’ Association (CTA) for the 
2024-2025 school year -- Dedi Somavia 
7.  Consideration and Approval, Budget Revisions through October 31, 2024 -- Jody Arriaga 
8.  Consideration and Approval, First Interim Report as of October 31, 2024 -- Jody Arriaga 
9.  Presentation of the 2025-2026 Proposed Budget Calendar -- Jody Arriaga 

6.  INFORMATION (Non-Discussion Items) 

a. Letters and Communication/Correspondence 
b. Reports from Superintendent and Staff 
c. Reports from Board, Information and Questions 

7.  NEXT SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING 

a. January 8, 2025  -  3:00 p.m.  

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
 



TULARE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
2025 BOARD MEETING DATES 

 
Tulare County Office of Education 

6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia, California 
3:00 p.m. on second Wednesday (January through May), 

then first Wednesdays (June through November) 
of each month unless otherwise indicated 

 
 

 
 

JANUARY 
January 8 

 
 

 
 

JULY 
July 2 

 

 
 

FEBRUARY 
February 12 

 
 

 
 

AUGUST 
August 6 

 
 

MARCH 
 March 12 

 
 

 
 

SEPTEMBER  
September 3 

 
APRIL 

April 9 – 10:00 a.m. 
SCICON 

41569 Bear Creek Road, Springville 
 

 
 

OCTOBER 
October 1 

Elderwood (Doe Ave) 

 
 

MAY 
May 14 

 
 

 
 

NOVEMBER 
November 5 

 

 
 

JUNE 
June 4 

 

 
 

DECEMBER 
December 12 (Fri) 

 



 

TULARE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
11/13/2024 [03:00 PM] 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 
b. Welcome 

2.  BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF 
  

  

Board members present:  President Joe Enea, Judy Coble, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony 
Rodriguez, and Ex-Officio Secretary Tim A. Hire.  Board member absent:  Debby Holguin, Vice President.  Staff 
members present:  Julie Berk, Tammy Bradford, Cari Carlson, John Davis, Nani Dodson, Nayirah Dosu, Perla Estrada, 
Jennifer Fisher, Dr. Martin Frolli, Robert Herman, Lisa Lemos, Dr. Fernie Marroquin, Bob Mayo, DeVann McClellan, 
Chris Meyer, Marlene Moreno, Ciera Myers, Anthony Paz, Jennifer Reimer, Freddy Reyes, Juan Sanchez, Dedi 
Somavia, Katelyn Williford, and Azulie Wilson.  Guests present: Obduleo Alvarado, Monica Batanero, Antonio 
Cortez, Carin Hernandez, Josie Valdez, and Raul Valdez. 

3.  ADA ACCOMMODATION REQUIREMENT 

Persons who are in need of a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in the board meeting must make a request in writing to the Office of the County Superintendent of 
Schools, 6200 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California, P.O. Box 5091, 559/733-6301. A request for 
accommodation should specify the nature of the modification or accommodation requested, including 
any necessary auxiliary aids or services required and the name and telephone number of the person 
making the request. The written request should be made as soon as possible and no later than 2 days 
before the meeting. The agenda, agenda packet and any written documents distributed to the board 
during a public meeting will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a 
person with a disability as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

Written documents concerning agenda items are available for public inspection during normal business 
hours within 72 hours of a regular board meeting at the Tulare County Office of Education, 6200 South 
Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California. 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the board on any agenda item, or other item of interest within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the board during the public comment period. Agenda items may also be 
addressed by the public at the time they are taken up by the board. The board is not able to discuss or 
take action on any item not appearing on the agenda.  A five-minute time limit can be imposed on 
public input for individuals/issues as deemed necessary. 
  



2 of 5 

  
Josie Valdez spoke about her husband's (Raul Valdez) wrongful termination from TCOE, Early Childhood 
Education.  Once her five minutes were exhausted, then Karin Hernandez continued to explain the situation to the 
board.  The Board did not comment or question anything they heard in public comment. 

5.  ACTION ITEMS 
  

a.  TCOE/Department Presentation -- CFNLP -- Nani Dodson 
  

  

Nani Dodson presented the brief history of the California Friday Night Life Partnership (CFNLP).  Friday Night Live is 
a youth development program in the field of prevention that supports young people in creating healthier/safer 
communities free of the harms of ATOD (Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drugs).  CFNLP was established in 1996.  There 
is funding for the intermediary in 53 out of 58 counties in California.  FNL Youth Summit is hosted by the CFNLP and 
the California Youth Council.  It involves high school aged FNL youth leaders.  They cohost an annual conference for 
over 900 high school participants representing 43 counties.  Nani reported that their 2024 conference was held in 
Anaheim and included 52 individual workshop sessions.  Over half of these sessions were led by youth.   

There was a new chapter formed at Redwood High School.  Ava Dodson, Chapter president from Redwood High 
School, had an amazing experience at the summit.  Joe Enea and the Board thanked CFNLP for their wonderful 
presentation. 

b.  Routine Matters 
  

1.  Consent Calendar 

a. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of October 9, 2024 
b. Authorization of Countywide Registration of Credentials 
c. Authorization of Temporary County Certificates 
d. Authorization of Countywide Emergency Permit Applications 
e. Acceptance of Donation, Friends of SCICON ($42,437.40) to SCICON  

 Vote Results 

Yea: 6 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 1 Debby Holguin 
Motion: Tom Link     Second: Tony Rodriguez 

c.  New Business 
  

1.  Consideration and Approval, WorkAbility I Program Grant Award 2024-2025 ($75,885) -- Jennifer 
Reimer 
  

  Jennifer Reimer asked for the Board's approval on the WorkAbility I Program Grant, 2024-2025, for $75,885.  

Vote Results 
Yea: 6 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 1 Debby Holguin 
Motion: Celia Maldonado-Arroyo     Second: Judy Coble 



3 of 5 

2.  First Reading, Board Policy/Superintendent Policy 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures -- Dedi 
Somavia 
  

  
Dedi Somavia presented the first reading of the Board Policy/Superintendent Policy 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 
Procedures.  This is a mandated regulation that has been updated every year and revised according to law.  Action 
will be taken on this agenda item at the December 13 board meeting. 

3.  First Reading, Board Policy/Superintendent Policy/Exhibit (2) 1312.4 - Williams Complaint Policies 
and Procedures -- Dedi Somavia 
  

  
Dedi Somavia presented the First Reading for the Board Policy/Superintendent Policy Exhibit (2) 1312.4 -- Williams 
Complaint Policies and Procedures.  This is a mandated policy/exhibit that has been updated and revised according 
to law.  Action will be taken on this agenda item at the December 13 board meeting. 

4.  Presentation of the Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report, 3rd Quarter 2024 -- Dedi 
Somavia 
  

  

Dedi Somavia gave a presentation of the Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report, 3rd Quarter of 2024.   

Mission Oak High School had reported that it was too warm (78 degrees) and a report of exposure of chemical 
fumes in certain classrooms on their campus.  They resolved it by adjusting the thermostat in the 
classrooms.  There were no students found to be exposed to the said chemical fumes. 

5.  Consideration and Approval, Attendees of the 2024-25 Supervisor of Attendance Certification 
Training -- Lisa Lemus 
  

  

Lisa Lemus presented the list of attendees of the 24-25 Supervisor of Attendance Certification Training and Support 
Updates to the Board showing 36 school employees who were certified at the October 21, 2024, training including 
representatives from all local education agencies with 1,000 or more students requiring training.  Mrs. Lemus asked 
for the Board's approval of the list of attendees. 
The Board and Superintendent Hire thanked Lisa Lemus for her presentation. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 6 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 1 Debby Holguin 
Motion: Chris Reed     Second: Tom Link 

6.  Presentation of 2024-25 Williams Case Monitoring Annual COE Board Report -- Cari Carlson 
  

  

Cari Carlson presented the Williams Case Monitoring Annual COE Board Report. 

Why is the Williams Report important?  In May 2000 a class-action lawsuit (Williams v. California) claimed that the 
state's poorest children were being denied equal access to the basics of a quality education.  A package of laws 
were enacted in 2004 to settle the lawsuit.  Cari went on to explain the Eight State Priorities: Basic Services, 
Implementation of State Standards, Parental Involvement, Pupil Achievement, Student Engagement, School 
Climate, Course Access, and Pupil Outcomes. 

The county office is responsible for:  conducting annual school site visits identified for Williams Case monitoring, 
25% of visits are unannounced, determine sufficiency of instructional materials, determine that school facilities are 



4 of 5 

"clean, safe and functional", verify accuracy of SARC data for facilities and availability of sufficient 
textbooks/instructional materials, and to report on any findings.   

Forty schools in Tulare County were identified for Williams Case monitoring this year. 

The Board and Mr. Hire thanked Ms. Carlson for her presentation. 
 

7.  Consideration and Approval, Set Date for Annual Organizational Meeting -- Tim A. Hire 
  

  Tim Hire requested approval for Friday, December 13, 2024, to be the date set to hold for the annual organizational 
meeting. Pursuant to Ed. Code 1009, the meeting shall be set on or after Friday, December 13, 2024. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 6 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 1 Debby Holguin 
Motion: Celia Maldonado-Arroyo     Second: Tony Rodriguez 

6.  Information (Non-Discussion Items) 

a. Letters and Communication/Correspondence 
b. Reports from Superintendent and Staff 
c. Reports from Board, Information and Questions 

  

  

Superintendent Hire brought attention to the flyer for the upcoming Theater Company production of Willy Wonka 
KIDS and Alice and Wonderland Jr.  There is more information on our website. 

Mr. Hire wished the Board a Happy Thanksgiving.  He also thanked the Board for attending the Excellence in 
Education Breakfast on October 30.  He reported that he was able to work for one of four employees for the 
“Superintendent Does Your Job” raffle prize winner.  This allowed one of TCOE accountants to have the day off.  His 
next assignment will be working as a nurse at SCICON.  Because Mr. Hire does not hold the proper 
license/credentials for this position, a sub nurse will be called in that he will shadow for the day. 

On October 26, there were over 700 young women representing 43 schools who attended the Expanding Your 
Horizons student event.  Chris Meyer has spearheaded to make sure our new and fairly new superintendents are 
getting coaching.  Mr. Hire has been mentoring T.J. Ryan from Woodlake and Jason Porter from Three Rivers.  In the 
near future, he will  be helping in the search for a new superintendent for Ducor Union School District. 

Next month we will have staff from The Center for Teaching Careers make a presentation. 

Mr. Enea said that he was appointing a committee of three board members to study the county superintendent's 
salary.  Once the study is complete, it will be reported back at a future meeting.  Mr. Enea appointed Judy Coble, 
Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, and Chris Reed (as Chairwoman). 

Joe Enea thanked everyone who supported him in the many years he has been a board member with Tulare County 
Office of Education.  He has thoroughly enjoyed every opportunity in representing District 5.  He wished the Board 
well with the incoming two new board members. 



5 of 5 

Mr. Hire presented a plaque to Joe Enea thanking him for his years of service.  Debby Holguin was also to have a 
plaque presented to her.  However, she was unavailable to attend the meeting.  The Board and audience gave Mr. 
Enea a standing ovation to honor him. 

7.  Next Scheduled Board Meeting 

December 13, 2024, 3:00 p.m. (Friday) 

 8.  Adjournment 

  

  Meeting adjourned at 4:01 p.m. 
 



Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240297267 SUBP EM ACOSTA DIANE
240290458 TC2 CL AGUILAR ANASTASIA 
240298502 TC2 CL AGUILAR ROSITA 

240294609 P12C CD AGUIRRE ARREGUIN MARIA
240041781 SCT CL AGUIRRE NORMA

240304060 TC13 ML ALCARAZ VICTORIA
240298679 P12E CD ALVARADO HANNAH

240194443 SC5 IN ALVARADO JUAN
240158146 SC5 CL ALVARADO MAITE
240288021 SUBP EM ALVAREZ ALDAIR
240293810 SUBP EM ALVAREZ ERICA 

240299378 SC1A CL ALVAREZ JOHN
240299377 TC2 CL ALVAREZ JOHN
W24001690 SC5 WV ALVAREZ RICARDO
240300090 TC13 SL ALVES ANTONY

240292630 SUBP EM AMBRIZ REBEKA MARINA 
240285806 SUBP EM ANDALUZ BASURTO FRANCISCO
240307411 TC1 CL ANDERSON TRAVIS
240307449 TC13 ML ANDRADE VARGAS AGUSTIN
240295729 SC5 CL ARCE YOLANDA
240292813 TC10 SL ARCEO GIOVANNI 
240298128 SC1A CL AZIZ SALMA

240298127 SC5 CL AZIZ SALMA
240299240 TC1 CL BABAGIAN PAUL
240291903 TC13 ML BAEZA MORGAN 
240291869 SUBT EM BAILEY AMARI
240304755 P12B CD BAILEY JUSTIN

240290880 SC1A CL BASTRIRE LINDA
240195786 TC1 P5 BAUER KAYCEE
240306349 SC1A CL BAZA ADRIANA
240306348 TC2 CL BAZA ADRIANA
240305224 SC5 CL BEATH DEBRA K

230176630 TC1 P5 BECERRA HERNANDEZ ESTEFANIA
240290069 SUBP EM BELTRAN AILEEN 
240295109 SUBP EM BERGER RICHARD 



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240294311 TC2 IN BERRA STEPHANI
240302101 SUBP EM BEYER SYDNIE
200199001 TC2 CL BJERKE JEFFREY
240306199 SUBP EM BODENSTEINER REBECCA L
240291336 SUBP EM BRADLEY SEAN 

210059271 TC2 CL BROWN FRANCINE
220198124 TC1 CL BROWN LISETTE
240298515 SUBP EM BUGNI BRYAN
240292915 TC13 SL BURRIS ELIJAH 

210050949 TC2 CL CABALLERO ESTRELLA
240305000 SUBP EM CABRERA GALLARDO YESSENIA
240300720 TC2 CL CABRERA SARA
240288715 TC10 SL CADIZ KENNETH RUDY

240289814 SUBP EM CALDERON PATRICIA
240293369 SUBP EM CALVO JOEL 

240306034 SUBP EM CAMARILLO JAQUELYNE Y
240100641 SUBP EM CAMPOS COSTANZO MARCUS
240303397 SUBP EM CANTU STEVEN

240297762 SUBP EM CARILLO-BAIRES ARLINE
240290159 TC13 ML CARLISLE CASSIE 

240206926 TC2 P5 CARRASCO REYNALDO
240295174 SUBP EM CARREON BRIDGET 
240290373 TC13 ML CEBALLOS ESMERALDA 
240294399 SUBP EM CHAMBERLIN KRISTINA

240299774 SUBP EM CHAVEZ JOSIE
240306662 SUBP EM CHENNAULT CONNOR D
240057782 TC2 CL CHURCH LAUREN
240295057 SUBP EM CID CYNTHIA
240293079 TC10 ML CLARK MAEGEN
240292107 TC1 CL COLLAR AUDREY

240292108 TC3A CL COLLAR AUDREY
240290176 TLA1 AL COLLINS JEREMY
240288631 TLA1 AL COOK SAMANTHA 
240295569 SUBP EM CORNEJO-ESQUIVEL YAJAIRA
220270156 TC1 CL CORTEZ JOSE



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

220285445 SC1A P5 CORTEZ JOSE
240291788 TC3H CL CORY CATHY 
240297060 SUBP EM CRUZ ALAYZA 
240304779 P12E CD CRUZ EDITH

240295102 SUBP EM CRUZ PAZCUAL
230020686 SC8 P2 DAVIS TAYLOR
240305494 SC8 CL DAVIS TAYLOR

240289952 TLA1 AL DAY SAMANTHA 
240302828 SUBP EM DE OCAMPO MARY GENEVIEVE
240307633 SUBP EM DELAMORA ALMA R

240249297 SC5 CL DENEVI LORI
240307804 TC14 ML DEROSA LAURA M
240065127 TC1 CL DIAS KOBIE
240256940 SUBP EM DIAZ LORENA
240303904 SUBP EM DIAZ-ESTRADA MARIBEL
240307098 SUBP EM DOMINGO CHARLIZE

240297705 TC3S CL DOMINGUE CINDY
240305930 SUBP EM DONATE-PEREZ ZULEMA
240292089 SUBT EM DORADO MELODY 

240293173 TC1 CL DUTTON RUTH
240292494 SUBP EM EGGE DENISE 
240295503 CTE CL ESCAMILLA FRANCISCO
240297658 SUBP EM ESPARZA JOCELYN
240298895 SUBP EM FALCINELLA VERONICA 
240306296 SUBP EM FERNANDEZ MARLENE

240298288 TLA1 AL FIERROS RAMOS FANUEL
240294004 TC10 SL FLORES JORGE
240307780 SUBP EM FLORES KARINA
240304041 SUBP EM FLORES MICHELLE
240288781 TC13 ML FLORES TINA 

240295605 TC2 CL FUNDERBURK HEATHER 
240297471 SUBP EM GALAN ERIC
240304887 P12C CD GALLEGOS ARIEL
240291621 P12B CD GARCIA BARRIGA GISELLE 
240296610 SUBP EM GARCIA CADENAS VIANEY



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240289244 SUBP EM GARCIA KATALINA
240292659 TC10 SL GARCIA ROBERT 

240291121 SUBT EM GARCIA YASMIN
240293121 SUBP EM GARZA CHERIE 
240301921 TC2 CL GEARHART GEORGANA 
240300828 TC2 CL GILL SHELLEY
240255131 SUBP EM GONZALES LORI

240295386 SUBP EM GONZALEZ ASHLEY
240291127 SUBT EM GONZALEZ DANYAILE
240294560 P12B CD GONZALEZ JASMINE
240201168 TC2 P5 GRAY BRITTANY
240294434 SUBP EM GREENWOOD KAREN
240301939 TC2 CL GRIMMER AMY 
240299414 SUBP EM GUTIERREZ ANITA 
240126367 SC5 CL GUTIERREZ MARIO 
240295544 SUBP EM HALE LOTELLA

240133979 TC1 CL HALL ANDREW 
240299163 SUBP EM HANDSBUR GERALD
240290151 P12C CD HARRISON CHAVEZ NORMA 
240289037 SC1A CL HAWKINS CARLI
240289036 TC1 CL HAWKINS CARLI

240298287 TLA1 AL HEATHERLY ALLYSON
240296682 SUBP EM HENDRICKS TATIANA 
240296150 SUBP EM HERMOSILLO YULIANNA

240105267 SC5 CL HERNANDEZ ANA
240307395 TC2 P5 HERNANDEZ BRYSA
240298032 TC2 CL HERNANDEZ DANNY
240301415 TC2 CL HERNANDEZ ERICA 

240295946 P12B CD HERNANDEZ ISABEL
240294870 SUBP EM HERNANDEZ JOSE 

240298699 TC3S P5 HERNANDEZ RIVAS MICHELLE 
240291210 SUBP EM HERRERA GERARDO
210129202 SC5 CL HERRERA MARIBEL

240248232 SUBP EM HERRERA MARIBEL
240301389 SUBP EM HERRERA MATTHEW 



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240292409 SUBP EM HERRERA SABRINA
240307830 TC2 CL HICKS LAUREN M

240307282 TC10 SE HUNT NACOLE
240289101 TC1 CL IBARRA GUADALUPE
240044843 SUBP EM IBARRA XIMENA
240297937 TC1 CL IBBS MARI
240292013 SUBT EM JIMENEZ ELOISA 
240289962 SUBP EM JIMENEZ PAOLA
240293123 TC14 SE JOHNSTON MCKENZIE
240302842 SC1A P5 JUAREZ ADAM 
240304855 TC13 ML KASIMOFF NAOMI
240291194 SUBP EM KAUR GAGANJYOT

240289172 SA13 EM KAVADAS NICHOLAS 
240292010 SUBT EM KEARNAN HANNAH 
240298292 TLA1 AL KOOGLER LAURIE
240292778 TC2 CL LAMPE TAMARA
240290666 TC13 SE LANDEROS ABEL
240306919 SUBP EM LARIOS JOSE M
240289585 TC13 ML LEMUS MARTINEZ FABIAN 
240305791 TC13 SL LEON TIMOTHY M
240294850 TC14 SL LEWELLEN NORMALINDA 
240294886 TC1 CL LEWIS FILOMENA
240303268 TC1 CL LIKEWISE TRISHA 
240291119 SUBT EM LIRA CARDENAS PALOMA 
240289234 TLA1 AL LIU BENJAMIN
240299731 TC10 SL LOEWEN JOHN 
240301063 SUBP EM LOPEZ ALYSSA 

240298908 SUBP EM LOPEZ ASHLYN
240290155 SUBP EM LOPEZ JAIME
240291878 SUBT EM LOPEZ MADISON 

240298473 TC2 CL LOPEZ MARLENA
240298479 SC1A CL LOPEZ MARLENA
240289226 TLA1 AL LOPEZ PRISCILA 
240115376 TC2 P5 LOZANO LETICIA
240291116 SUBT EM LUNA GRISELDA 



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240293661 CTE P3 LUNA JACQUELINE
240302145 TC2 CL LUNA LORI

240307859 SUBP EM MACHADO MICHAELA
240304174 P12C CD MAGANA OROZCO ALMA D
240290427 SC1A CL MAGILL JOSEPHINE
240290424 SC5 CL MAGILL JOSEPHINE
240289008 SUBP EM MALAKIUS TAVIS
240300865 TPSL TL MALCOLM BRITTANY 
240302103 TC2 CL MALMSTROM VICKIE
240300355 TC3S IN MARIBOJOC BREANNA 
240299899 TC2 CL MARSH DEREK 
240307354 TC14 SL MARTIN BRIANA M
230129831 TC2 CL MARTIN DIANNA
240303947 SUBP EM MARTIN NATASHA Z

240290170 TC13 ML MARTINEZ BARAJAS RUBEN 
240295678 SUBP EM MARTINEZ DELIA

240290396 SUBP EM MARTINEZ SORIA VANESSA 
240305808 SUBP EM MARTINEZ VERONICA

240295249 SUBP EM MASELLI JENNIFER
240292015 SUBT EM MATA MELANIE 
240299533 SUBT EM MATA MELANIE 
240300464 TC14 SL MATSUMOTO JOSHUA

240292455 SUBP EM MCCLURE HEATHER N
240301688 TLA1 CL MCGUYER ASHLEY
240290781 SUBP EM MCGUYER KATELYN 
240294158 TLA1 AL MEDEROS SARA 

240289898 TLA1 AL MEDEROS VICTORIA 
240300433 SUBP EM MEJIA GOMEZ YANETH
240299665 TC2 CL MEJIA-JIMENEZ KAREN
240294040 SUBP EM MENCHACA TANYA
240299891 TC14 ML MENDOZA VILLANUEVA ALEXANDRA 
240300781 SUBP EM MERCADO JULISSA 
240305559 SUBP EM MERCKEL RYAN
240291321 TC2 CL MILLIGAN BRENDA 
240291874 SUBT EM MILLS-KEETER LAUREN



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240306544 TC3S IN MITCHELL COURTNEY

240298657 P12C CD MOHAMED ABIR
240290021 TLA1 AL MOLINA AMANDA

240291040 SUBP EM MONTGOMERY AINSLEY
240298283 TLA1 AL MORAN ALVARO
240294842 P12C CD MURILLO LORA
240288485 P12E CD NAJERA RODRIGUEZ LISETTE 
240272577 SUBP EM NAVARRO ANA
240303966 P12C CD NAVARRO MONICA
240290157 TC13 SE NICOLAS VICTORINA 
240302978 SUBP EM NIELSEN CONNOR 
240303431 TC2 CL NOVINGER AMANDA 

240296095 SC1A CL NUNES JOYCE  
240296093 TC2 CL NUNES JOYCE
240296094 TC3H CL NUNES JOYCE
240307781 P12E CD NUNES TIFFENY S
240303172 TC13 CL NUNEZ GARCIA DANIEL

240301644 TLA3 AL NUNEZ JOANNE
240291604 SUBT EM NUNEZ SANDRA 

240298199 TC2 CL O DELL SHANNON
240298200 TC3G CL O DELL SHANNON
240297746 SUBP EM OCHOA KARINA 
240306357 SUBP EM OROZCO ANGELICA

240304064 SUBP EM ORTEGA JAMIE
240038068 SUBP EM PALMA ELYZA
240290760 SUBP EM PAPAFOX LANEA
240301454 TC2 CL PARREIRA VICTORIA 

240307115 SUBP EM PATLAN BRANDON M
240291257 TC2 CL PATTERSON JASON 

240295324 SUBP EM PENA DENISE
240304124 TC10 ML PEREZ NEELEY SANDRA
240302151 SUBP EM PEREZ-HINOJOSA VICTORIA 

240301811 SUBP EM PEREZHERNANDEZ GUADALUPE
240289771 SUBP EM PIERCE JASON 
240304149 SUBP EM PINEDA RAQUEL



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240299162 SC1A CL PINTO MARIE
240299161 TC4V CL PINTO MARIE
240289151 SUBP EM PRIETO ROSANNE 
240302175 SUBP EM PRULL ANDREW 

240305680 SUBP EM QUEMQUEM MARJAN
240280969 TC2 CL QUINTANA MICHELLE

240295431 TC13 SL RAMIREZ CHAVEZ MICAELINA
240302655 P12E CD RAMIREZ SIERRA VANESSA 
240186147 SC5 IN RAMOS MARIAH
240302474 SUBP EM RAMOS SIERRA FERNANDA

240292683 SUBP EM RANGEL LEDESMA EDGAR
240310382 TLA3 AL RAY RYAN

240302843 TPLS TL REED JACOB 
240067511 P12E CD RENTERIA GOMEZ MONICA
240296735 SUBP EM REVELES STEPHANIE
220164120 TC2 CL RIOS KIMBERLY
240293019 SUBP EM RITA CARBAJA CECILIA 
240296617 SC1A CL ROBERTSON ANGELA
240296614 TC1 CL ROBERTSON ANGELA
240289805 TC14 SE ROBLES JASMYNE
240288898 SUBP EM RODRIGUEZ EDIHT

240299412 SUBP EM RODRIGUEZ ESPARZA PILAR
240292469 TC14 SL RODRIGUEZ JOANNE 

240291330 SUBP EM RODRIGUEZ KELLY 
240304453 P12C CD RODRIGUEZ MARIA
240297899 SUBP EM RODRIGUEZ SILVA SAMANTHA
240299390 TC10 SL RODRIGUEZ- OCHOA RICARDO 
240300074 TC13 SL ROGERS ABIGAIL
240023705 SCT CL ROJAS RIVAS LAURA
240298285 TLA1 AL ROMINGER ANDREW
200141182 TC2 CL ROPER ERIKA
230057868 TC3S CL ROPER ERIKA

240294796 TC10 SE ROSAS VICTORIA
240291334 SUBP EM ROWLAND ANDREA 
240300623 SUBP EM ROYSTER DANE 



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240305840 P12C CD RUVALCABA LUCERO

230217012 TC2 CL SAGASER CHELSEA
240289798 TC14 ML SALAZAR LUIZ
240294166 SUBP EM SALINAS KRISTIAN
240290680 TC13 SE SALINAS-VASQUEZ ADAM 
240306174 TC2 CL SANCHEZ BRYAN R
240290168 TLA1 AL SANCHEZ CYNTHIA

240305008 SC1A CL SANCHEZ LEAH A
240304069 SUBP EM SANCHEZ NATALIA
240306634 SUBP EM SANCHEZ-BAUTISTA ANTONIO D
240310400 SUBP EM SAVASTIO AMBER
240188851 TC3S CL SCHAAP AMY
240290655 TC10 SL SCOW ERIK
240301033 TC2 CL SETSER KRISTY
240305638 SUBP EM SHARMA LINDSEY C
240299463 SUBP EM SHOUSE ALAURA 
240290305 SUBP EM SHUMAN WHITNEY

240299124 SC1A CL SIDHU KAREN
240292098 SUBP EM SILVA DAVID 
240291366 SUBP EM SILVEIRA HEATHER 
240299293 SUBP EM SMITH MARK
240290453 TC2 CL SMITH-HERRERA MARCI
240012410 TC3S P5 ST CLAIR RAELYNN
240292578 SUBP EM STEVENS ANDREW
240289107 SC1A CL STINSON DANA 
240289105 TC2 CL STINSON DANA 
240293070 TC10 ML STRONACH JACOB
230197917 TC2 CL STUHAAN KAYCEE
240303905 TC13 ML SUNDERLAND JADA
240204504 SC5 IN SWANSON STEPHANIE

W24001696 SC1A WV TANNER JUDAH
240298162 SUBP EM TIGNER CARYNGTEN

240292095 SUBP EM TINOCO JULIETTE 
240289854 SUBP EM TOMLINSON MYRANDA 
240294396 TC2 CL TORRES GRISELDA



                          Enclosure No. 
                          Agenda of 12/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

December 13, 2024

240295778 SUBP EM TORRES VIRGINIA 
W24001937 SC8 WV TOWNSEND PHILLIP
240195413 SC5 IN TRIPPE AMANDA

240293122 TC2 CL URIBE SIMON
240295865 SUBP EM VALADAO JON
240303346 TC13 ML VALADEZ JAQUELIN
W24001740 SA14 WV VALDEZ ROSABLA
240307230 SUBP EM VALLE CARREON GENESIS

240243356 TC2 CL VALLEJOS CARLIE
240304663 TC2 CL VAN DELLEN FREDNA D
240302745 TC2 CL VANSICKEL AUBREY 
240305830 TC13 SE VARGAS DEYSI
240294204 SC1A CL VASQUEZ PATRICIA 
240288776 SUBT EM VELIZ LESLEY
240294762 SUBP EM VERA MARIA GUADALUPE

240297546 SUBP EM VERDUZCO JORGE 
240291866 TC13 SE VIGIL VALERY
240302664 TC13 SL VILLAGRANA PABLO
240288774 SUBT EM VILLALOBOS KENNETH
240290697 TC3S CL VOSHALL LAURA 
240183856 SC5 IN WARREN ALYSSA

240297586 TC1 CL WATKINS MELISSA 
240297587 TC3A CL WATKINS MELISSA 
240290390 TC2 CL WESTLY DEBORAH 

240307003 SUBP EM WHITE MADISON
240297812 SUBP EM WHITE SARA
240144996 SC8 CL WHITEMAN ELIZABETH
240291317 SUBP EM WILEY MICHAEL
240301499 SC1A CL WILLIAM BRET 
240299184 TC13 ML WILSON ANA 
W24001908 SC1A WV WRIGHT MARISA
240297929 TC1 CL ZOCCHI CAROL 



 Agenda of 
12/13/2024

 APPROVAL OF TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES

December 13, 2024

BERRA STEPHANI STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ BURTON
TAHA SOCORRO CD SITE SUPERVISOR PERMIT CHILD CARE
ALCANTAR ISAMAR STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ CUTLER-OROSI
LAMAS AMANDA EMERG CLAD - EXT CUTLER-OROSI
LOEWEN JOHN DIST INTERN: ART CUTLER-OROSI
MARTINEZ ANTHONY STSP: BIO SCI CUTLER-OROSI
KEKAUALUA  AUTUMN EMERG CLAD- RENEWAL DINUBA
SANCHEZ ABRAHAM PIP: ART FARMERSVILLE
LEWIS MELISSA DIST INTERN: MN ED SPEC LINDSAY
DABNEY ALICIA PIP: PE PORTERVILLE
LEE MONICA CD SITE SUPERVISOR PERMIT PORTERVILLE
LUNA JACQUELINE PRELIM CTE: HS & MT PORTERVILLE
MENDOZA JOSE CCSD WVR - RENEWAL PORTERVILLE
MENDOZA VILLANUEVA ALEXANDRA BIL WVR: SPANISH PORTERVILLE
MILLIGAN CADEN EMERG CLAD - RENEWAL PORTERVILLE
MITCHELL COURTNEY INT: MN ED SPEC PORTERVILLE
WALLACE LANCE CLEAR MULTIPLE SUBJ - RENEWAL PORTERVILLE
YOUNG ROBERT CCSD WVR  PORTERVILLE
BACA JESSICA STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ STRATHMORE
AGUILERA ERICA INT: ECSE ED SPEC TCOE
ALFARO DANIELLE STSP: EN ED SPEC TCOE
CALLANAN JOSHUA EMERG CLAD TULARE HIGH
FISHBOUGH STEVEN EMERG 30-DAY SUB PERMIT-RENEWAL TULARE HIGH
ALBARRAN ALFREDO PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
GARCIA GUERRERO CRISTINA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
RODRIGUEZ SANTIAGO PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
ADALIAN EMMA GELAP: ART VISALIA
ARCEO GIOVANNI DIST INTERN: BIO SCI VISALIA
ARMINIO KAITLYN EMERG CLAD - EXT VISALIA
BEINHORN AMBER GELAP: MATH VISALIA
CASTILLO MARIVEL GELAP: ART VISALIA
COLLINSON CHRISIE SUPP AUTH: ART VISALIA
DOMINGUEZ FRANCES TPSL: MULTIPLE SUBJ - RENEWAL VISALIA
GIBSON JONNI CLEAR SS: ART - RENEWAL VISALIA
MEDINA RAQUEL GELAP: FLM VISALIA
NELSON RANDALL GELAP: INDUS & TECH ED VISALIA
WITT JUSTIN PRELIM ADMIN SVCS WOODLAKE



 Agenda of 
12/13/2024 

APPROVAL OF EMERGENCY PERMITS 
FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYMENT 

December 13, 2024 
Emergency Permits: Online Recommendations 
EMERG CLAD    VISALIA ADAMS, TASHEENA 
EMERG CLAD - RENEWAL DINUBA KEKAUALUA, AUTUMN 
EMERG CLAD - RENEWAL PORTERVILLE MILLIGAN, CADEN 
PIP: PE PORTERVILLE DABNEY, ALICIA 
STSP: EN ED SPEC TCOE ALFARO, DANIELLE 
STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ BURTON BERRA, STEPHANI 
STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ CUTLER-OROSI ALCANTAR, ISAMAR 
STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ STRATHMORE BACA, JESSICA 
STSP: SOCIAL SCI PORTERVILLE BAMBER, BRIANA 

Emergency Permits: Mailed 
EMERG CLAD - EXT CUTLER-OROSI LAMAS, AMANDA 
EMERG CLAD - EXT VISALIA ARMINIO, KAITLYN 



 

Page 1 of 7 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board/Superintendent Policy 
 

 

Community Relations 

BP/SP 1312.3 

Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 

 

Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) Policies and Procedures 

 

Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

6200 South Mooney Boulevard 

Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 733-6300 

www.tcoe.org 

 

Adopted by our Governing Board (here and after “the board”) on November 8, 2023 December 13, 

2024.  

 

Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 
 

This document contains rules and instructions about the filing, investigation and resolution of a Uniform 

Complaint Procedures (UCP) complaint regarding an alleged violation by the Tulare County Office of 

Education (TCOE) of federal or state laws or regulations governing educational programs. 

 

This document presents information about how we process UCP complaints concerning particular 

programs or activities that are subject to the UCP. 

 

A UCP complaint is a written and signed statement alleging a violation of federal or state laws or 

regulations, which may include an allegation of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or 

bullying. A signature may be handwritten, typed (including in an email) or electronically generated. Some 

complaints may be filed anonymously. A UCP complaint filed on behalf of an individual student may 

only be filed by that student or that student’s duly authorized representative. 

 

A complainant is any individual, including a person’s duly authorized representative or an interested third 

party, public agency, or organization who files a written complaint alleging violation of federal or state 

laws or regulations, including allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying 

in programs and activities funded directly by the state or receiving any financial assistance from the state. 

 

If the complainant is unable to put the complaint in writing, due to a disability or illiteracy, we shall assist 

the complainant in the filing of the complaint. 

 

The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) developed the Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 

process with policies and procedures adopted by the governing board or the authorized designee. 



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 

According to state and federal codes and regulations, the programs and activities subject to the UCP are: 

• Accommodations for Pregnant and Parenting Pupils 

• Adult Education 

• After School Education and Safety 

• Agricultural Career Technical Education 

• Career technical and technical education and career technical and technical training programs 

• Child care and development programs 

• Compensatory Education 

• Consolidated categorical aid programs 

• Course Periods without Educational Content 

• Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group as identified 

under Education Code (EC) sSections 200 and 220 and Government Code Section 11135, 

including any actual or perceived characteristic as set forth in Penal Code Section 422.55, or on 

the basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or 

perceived characteristics, in any program or activity conducted by an educational institution, as 

defined in EC Section 210.3, that is funded directly by, or that receives or benefits from, any 

state financial assistance. 

• Educational and graduation requirements for pupils in foster care, pupils who are homeless, 

pupils from military families, pupils formerly in Juvenile Court now enrolled in a school district, 

pupils who are migratory, and pupils participating in a newcomer program. 

• Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) 

• Instructional Materials and Curriculum: Diversity 

• Local control and accountability plans (LCAP) 

• Migrant Education 

• Physical Education Instruction Minutes 

• Pupil Fees 

• Reasonable Accommodations to a Lactating Pupil 

• Regional Occupational Centers and Programs 

• School Plans for Student Achievement 

• Schoolsite Councils 

• State Preschool 

• State Preschool Health and Safety Issues in LEAs Exempt from Licensing 

• And any other state or federal educational program the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 

(SSPI) or designee deems appropriate. 

 

The following complaints shall be referred to the specified agencies for appropriate resolution and are not 

subject to our UCP complaint procedures set forth in this document: 

 

(a) Allegations of child abuse shall be referred to the applicable County Department of Social 

 Services (DSS), Protective Services Division or appropriate law enforcement agency. 

 

(b)  Health and safety complaints regarding licensed facilities operating a Child Development Program  

shall be referred to DSS. 



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

(c)  Employment discrimination complaints shall be sent to the State Department of Fair Employment  

and Housing (DFEH). The complainant shall be notified in writing in a timely manner of any 

DFEH transferal. 

The Responsibilities of the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

 

We shall have the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and 

regulations. We shall investigate and seek to resolve, in accordance with our approved UCP process, 

complaints alleging failure to comply with applicable state and federal laws and regulations including, but 

not limited to, allegations of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying or noncompliance with 

laws relating to all programs and activities we implement that are subject to the UCP. 

 

The UCP Annual Notice 

 

We disseminate on an annual basis the UCP Annual Notice which is a written notice of our approved UCP 

complaint procedures to all of our students, employees, parents or guardians of its students, school and 

district advisory committee members, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other 

interested parties. 

 

This notice may be made available on our website and shall include the following: 

• information regarding allegations about discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying; 

• the list of all federal and state programs within the scope of the UCP; 

• the title of the position whose occupant is responsible for processing complaints, and the 

identity(ies) of the person(s) currently occupying that position, if known; 

• a statement that the occupant responsible for processing complaints is knowledgeable about the 

laws and programs that they are assigned to investigate; 

• a statement that in order to identify appropriate subjects of state preschool health and safety issues 

pursuant to Section 1596.7925 of the Health and Safety Code (HSC) a notice, separate from the 

UCP Annual Notice, shall be posted in each California state preschool program classroom in each 

school in the local educational agency notifying parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers of (1) the 

health and safety requirements under Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (5 CCR) apply 

to California state preschool programs pursuant to HSC Section 1596.7925, and (2) the location at 

which to obtain a form to file a complaint. 

 

Filing UCP Complaints 

 

All UCP complaints shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. 

 

Complaints within the scope of the UCP are to be filed with the person responsible for processing 

complaints: 

Title: Assistant Superintendent 

Unit or office: Human Resources 

Address: 6200 S. Mooney Blvd, Visalia CA 93277 

 Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091 

Phone: (559) 733-6306 

Electronic mail address: dedi.somavia@tcoe.org 

 



 

Page 4 of 7 

A pupil fee includes a purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment, 

or clothes associated with an educational activity. 

 

A pupil fees complaint may be filed with the principal of a school or with our superintendent or their 

designee. A pupil fees complaint may be filed anonymously, that is, without an identifying signature, if 

the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of 

noncompliance. 

 

For complaints relating to Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAP), the date of the alleged 

violation is the date when the reviewing authority approves the LCAP or annual update that we adopted.  

An LCAP complaint may be filed anonymously, that is, without an identifying signature, if the complaint 

provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance. 

 

We advise complainants of the right to pursue civil law remedies that may be available under state or 

federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, including, but not limited to, 

injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may also be available to complainants. 

 

Investigating UCP Complaints 

 

The UCP complaint investigation is our administrative process for the purpose of gathering data regarding 

the complaint. We provide an opportunity for complainants and/or representatives to present evidence or 

information. 

 

Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to the 

allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in 

any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack 

of evidence to support the allegations. 

 

Refusal by the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) to provide the investigator with access to 

records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to 

cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a 

finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a 

remedy in favor of the complainant. 

 

We ensure that complainants are protected from retaliation. 

 

We investigate all allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any 

protected group. Unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints shall be filed 

no later than six months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying 

occurred, or six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged 

discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. 

 

UCP Complaint Resolution 

 

We will thoroughly investigate the UCP complaint and issue a written Investigation Report to the 

complainant within 60 calendar days from the date of the receipt of the complaint, unless the complainant 

agrees in writing to an extension of time.   

 



 

Page 5 of 7 

This Investigation Report will contain the following elements: 

• the findings of fact based on the evidence gathered; 

• a conclusion that provides a clear determination for each allegation as to whether we are in 

compliance with the relevant law; 

• corrective actions if we find merit in a complaint: 

-  for complaints regarding Pupil Fees; LCAP; Physical Education Instructional Minutes, or 

Course Periods without Educational Content, the remedy shall go to all affected pupils, parents, 

and guardians, 

-  for all other complaints within the scope of the Uniform Complaint Procedures the remedy 

shall go to the affected pupil, 

-  With respect to a Pupil Fees complaint, corrective actions shall include reasonable efforts to 

ensure full reimbursement to all pupils, parents and guardians who paid a pupil fee within one 

year prior to the filing of the complaint; 

 

• a notice of the complainant’s right to appeal our Investigation Report to the Department of 

Education (CDE); and 

• the procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to the CDE. 

 

UCP Complaint Appeal Process 

 

An appeal is a written and signed request by the complainant to the CDE seeking review of an LEA 

Investigation Report that was issued in response to a properly-filed complaint. A signature may be 

handwritten, typed (including in an email) or electronically-generated. 

 

The complainant may appeal our Investigation Report of a UCP complaint to the CDE by filing a written 

appeal within 30 calendar days of the date. In order to request an appeal, the complainant must specify 

and explain the basis for the appeal, including at least one of the following: 

• The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) failed to follow its complaint procedures, and/or 

• the Investigation Report lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law, 

and/or 

• the material findings of fact in the Investigation Report are not supported by substantial evidence, 

and/or 

• the legal conclusion in the Investigation Report is inconsistent with the law, and/or 

• in a case in which we were found in noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper 

remedy. 

 

The appeal shall be sent with: (1) a copy of the locally filed complaint; and (2) a copy of the LEA 

Investigation Report. 

 

All complaints and responses are public records. 

 

 

 



 

Page 6 of 7 

UCP Requirements Regarding State Preschool Health and Safety Issues Pursuant to HSC Section 

1596.7925: 

 

When Filing a UCP Complaint Regarding State Preschool Health and Safety Issues 

 

To file a UCP complaint regarding a state preschool health and safety issue pursuant to HSC Section 

1596.7925 the complainant must file with the preschool program administrator or their designee in the 

Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE). 

 

A state preschool health and safety issues complaint about problems beyond the authority of the preschool 

program administrator shall be forwarded in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days to our 

official for resolution. 

 

A state preschool health and safety issues complaint may be filed anonymously. A complainant who 

identifies themselves is entitled to a response if they indicate that a response is requested. A complaint 

form shall include a space to mark to indicate whether a response is requested. If EC sSection 48985 is 

otherwise applicable, the response, if requested, and our Investigation Report shall be written in English 

and the primary language in which the complaint was filed. 

 

A complaint form for a state preschool health and safety issue shall specify the location for filing a 

complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as they wish. 

 

When investigating a UCP state preschool health and safety issue the preschool program administrator or 

the designee of our superintendent shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within his 

or her authority, and investigations shall begin within 10 calendar days of the receipt of the complaint. A 

valid complaint shall be remedied within a reasonable time period, but not to exceed 30 working days 

from the date the complaint was received. The resolution of the complaint shall be reported to the 

complainant within 45 working days of the initial filing. If the preschool program administrator makes 

this report, he or she shall also report the same information in the same timeframe to the designee of our 

superintendent. 

 

Filing an Appeal Regarding UCP State Preschool Health and Safety Issues 

 

A complainant not satisfied with the resolution of the preschool program administrator or the designee of 

our superintendent has the right to describe the complaint at a regularly scheduled hearing of our board. 

A complainant will not be precluded from filing an appeal to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 

(SSPI) if the complainant does not file a local appeal. 

 

A complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the preschool program administrator 

or the designee of our superintendent has the right to file an appeal to the SSPI within 30 calendar days of 

the date of the Investigation Report. 

 

The complainant shall comply with the same appeal requirements of 5 CCR sSection 4632 as in the section 

above ‘UCP Complaint Appeal Process.’ 

 

The complainant shall include a copy of the Investigation Report and specify and explain the basis for the 

appeal, including at least one of the following: 

 



 

Page 7 of 7 

• the preschool program administrator or the designee of our superintendent failed to follow its 

complaint procedures, and/or 

• the Investigation Report lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law, 

and/or 

• material findings of fact in the Investigation Report are not supported by substantial evidence, 

and/or 

• the legal conclusion in the Investigation Report is inconsistent with the law, and/or 

• If the preschool program is found noncompliant, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper 

remedy. 

 

The SSPI or his or her designee shall comply with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 4633 and shall 

provide a written Investigation Report for our agency to the State Board of Education describing the basis 

for the complaint, our response to the state preschool health and safety issues pursuant to HSC Section 

1596.7925 complaint and its remedy or proposed remedy and, as appropriate, a proposed remedy for the 

issue described in the complaint, if different from our agency’s remedy. 

 

We shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all UCP state preschool health and safety 

issues complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and our board. The 

summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of our board. 

The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved 

and unresolved complaints. 

 

 

Legal References:   

20 United States Code [20 U.S.C.] Section 6301 et seq. 

34 Code of Federal Regulations [34 CFR] Ssections 106.8, 34 CFR 299.10-13 

California Education Codes [EC] Ssections 200, 201, 210.1, 210.3, 220, 221.1, 222, 234.1, 243, 260, 

3031, 8200-8498 8488, 8235.5, 8235-8239.1, 8261, 8482-8484.65, 8500-8538, 12030, 17002(d), 

17592.72, 33126(b)(5)(A), 33126(b)(5)(B), 33315, 35161, 35186, 46015, 48645.7, 48850, 48853, 

48853.5, 48911, 48915.5, 48987, 49010-49013, 49069.5, 49531, 49556, 51210, 51222, 51223, 51225.1-

3, 51225.1-51225.3, 51228.1-51228.3, 52059.5, 52075, 52300-52462, 52334.7, 52355, 52451, 52460-

52462, 52500-52617 52616.18, 54440-54445, 54445, 56100(a), 56100(j), 60010, 64000, 64001, 65000. 

California Government Code [GC] Ssections 11135, 11136 

California Penal Code [PC] Section 422.55 

California Code of Regulations Title 5 (5 CCR) Sections 4600-4640, 4690-4694 

 

 

Policy adopted:  9/16/92     Tulare County Board of Education 

        Visalia, California 

 

Revised:  1/14/03, 12/8/04, 2/14/07, 7/9/14, 3/11/15, 5/12/2021, 10/13/2021, 11/09/2022, 11/8/2023, 

12/13/24 



 

 

Page 1 of 7 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board/Superintendent Policy 
 

 

Community Relations 

BP/SP 1312.3 

Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 

 

Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) Policies and Procedures 

 

Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

6200 South Mooney Boulevard 

Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 733-6300 

www.tcoe.org 

 

Adopted by our Governing Board (here and after “the board”) on December 13, 2024.  

 

Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 
 

This document contains rules and instructions about the filing, investigation and resolution of a Uniform 

Complaint Procedures (UCP) complaint regarding an alleged violation by the Tulare County Office of 

Education (TCOE) of federal or state laws or regulations governing educational programs. 

 

This document presents information about how we process UCP complaints concerning particular 

programs or activities that are subject to the UCP. 

 

A UCP complaint is a written and signed statement alleging a violation of federal or state laws or 

regulations, which may include an allegation of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or 

bullying. A signature may be handwritten, typed (including in an email) or electronically generated. Some 

complaints may be filed anonymously. A UCP complaint filed on behalf of an individual student may 

only be filed by that student or that student’s duly authorized representative. 

 

A complainant is any individual, including a person’s duly authorized representative or an interested third 

party, public agency, or organization who files a written complaint alleging violation of federal or state 

laws or regulations, including allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying 

in programs and activities funded directly by the state or receiving any financial assistance from the state. 

 

If the complainant is unable to put the complaint in writing, due to a disability or illiteracy, we shall assist 

the complainant in the filing of the complaint. 

 

The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) developed the Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 

process with policies and procedures adopted by the governing board or the authorized designee. 

 



 

 

Page 2 of 7 

According to state and federal codes and regulations, the programs and activities subject to the UCP are: 

• Accommodations for Pregnant and Parenting Pupils 

• Adult Education 

• After School Education and Safety 

• Agricultural Career Technical Education 

• Career technical and technical education and career technical and technical training programs 

• Child care and development programs 

• Compensatory Education 

• Consolidated categorical aid programs 

• Course Periods without Educational Content 

• Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group as identified 

under Education Code (EC) Sections 200 and 220 and Government Code Section 11135, 

including any actual or perceived characteristic as set forth in Penal Code Section 422.55, or on 

the basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or 

perceived characteristics, in any program or activity conducted by an educational institution, as 

defined in EC Section 210.3, that is funded directly by, or that receives or benefits from, any 

state financial assistance. 

• Educational and graduation requirements for pupils in foster care, pupils who are homeless, 

pupils from military families, pupils formerly in Juvenile Court now enrolled in a school district, 

pupils who are migratory, and pupils participating in a newcomer program. 

• Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) 

• Instructional Materials and Curriculum: Diversity 

• Local control and accountability plans (LCAP) 

• Migrant Education 

• Physical Education Instruction Minutes 

• Pupil Fees 

• Reasonable Accommodations to a Lactating Pupil 

• Regional Occupational Centers and Programs 

• School Plans for Student Achievement 

• Schoolsite Councils 

• State Preschool 

• State Preschool Health and Safety Issues in LEAs Exempt from Licensing 

• And any other state or federal educational program the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 

(SSPI) or designee deems appropriate. 

 

The following complaints shall be referred to the specified agencies for appropriate resolution and are not 

subject to our UCP complaint procedures set forth in this document: 

 

(a) Allegations of child abuse shall be referred to the applicable County Department of Social 

 Services (DSS), Protective Services Division or appropriate law enforcement agency. 

 

(b)  Health and safety complaints regarding licensed facilities operating a Child Development Program  

shall be referred to DSS. 

 

 

 



 

 

Page 3 of 7 

(c)  Employment discrimination complaints shall be sent to the State Department of Fair Employment  

and Housing (DFEH). The complainant shall be notified in writing in a timely manner of any 

DFEH transferal. 

 

The Responsibilities of the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

 

We shall have the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and 

regulations. We shall investigate and seek to resolve, in accordance with our approved UCP process, 

complaints alleging failure to comply with applicable state and federal laws and regulations including, but 

not limited to, allegations of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying or noncompliance with 

laws relating to all programs and activities we implement that are subject to the UCP. 

 

The UCP Annual Notice 

 

We disseminate on an annual basis the UCP Annual Notice which is a written notice of our approved UCP 

complaint procedures to all of our students, employees, parents or guardians of its students, school and 

district advisory committee members, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other 

interested parties. 

 

This notice may be made available on our website and shall include the following: 

• information regarding allegations about discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying; 

• the list of all federal and state programs within the scope of the UCP; 

• the title of the position whose occupant is responsible for processing complaints, and the 

identity(ies) of the person(s) currently occupying that position, if known; 

• a statement that the occupant responsible for processing complaints is knowledgeable about the 

laws and programs that they are assigned to investigate; 

• a statement that in order to identify appropriate subjects of state preschool health and safety issues 

pursuant to Section 1596.7925 of the Health and Safety Code (HSC) a notice, separate from the 

UCP Annual Notice, shall be posted in each California state preschool program classroom in each 

school in the local educational agency notifying parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers of (1) the 

health and safety requirements under Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (5 CCR) apply 

to California state preschool programs pursuant to HSC Section 1596.7925, and (2) the location at 

which to obtain a form to file a complaint. 

 

Filing UCP Complaints 

 

All UCP complaints shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. 

 

Complaints within the scope of the UCP are to be filed with the person responsible for processing 

complaints: 

Title: Assistant Superintendent 

Unit or office: Human Resources 

Address: 6200 S. Mooney Blvd, Visalia CA 93277 

 Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091 

Phone: (559) 733-6306 

Electronic mail address: dedi.somavia@tcoe.org 

 



 

 

Page 4 of 7 

A pupil fee includes a purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment, 

or clothes associated with an educational activity. 

 

A pupil fees complaint may be filed with the principal of a school or with our superintendent or their 

designee. A pupil fees complaint may be filed anonymously, that is, without an identifying signature, if 

the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of 

noncompliance. 

 

For complaints relating to Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAP), the date of the alleged 

violation is the date when the reviewing authority approves the LCAP or annual update that we adopted.  

An LCAP complaint may be filed anonymously, that is, without an identifying signature, if the complaint 

provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance. 

 

We advise complainants of the right to pursue civil law remedies that may be available under state or 

federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, including, but not limited to, 

injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may also be available to complainants. 

 

Investigating UCP Complaints 

 

The UCP complaint investigation is our administrative process for the purpose of gathering data regarding 

the complaint. We provide an opportunity for complainants and/or representatives to present evidence or 

information. 

 

Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to the 

allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in 

any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack 

of evidence to support the allegations. 

 

Refusal by the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) to provide the investigator with access to 

records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to 

cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a 

finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a 

remedy in favor of the complainant. 

 

We ensure that complainants are protected from retaliation. 

 

We investigate all allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any 

protected group. Unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints shall be filed 

no later than six months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying 

occurred, or six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged 

discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. 

 

UCP Complaint Resolution 

 

We will thoroughly investigate the UCP complaint and issue a written Investigation Report to the 

complainant within 60 calendar days from the date of the receipt of the complaint, unless the complainant 

agrees in writing to an extension of time.   

 



 

 

Page 5 of 7 

This Investigation Report will contain the following elements: 

• the findings of fact based on the evidence gathered; 

• a conclusion that provides a clear determination for each allegation as to whether we are in 

compliance with the relevant law; 

• corrective actions if we find merit in a complaint: 

 

-  for complaints regarding Pupil Fees; LCAP; Physical Education Instructional Minutes, or 

Course Periods without Educational Content, the remedy shall go to all affected pupils, parents, 

and guardians, 

-  for all other complaints within the scope of the Uniform Complaint Procedures the remedy 

shall go to the affected pupil, 

-  with respect to a Pupil Fees complaint, corrective actions shall include reasonable efforts to 

ensure full reimbursement to all pupils, parents and guardians who paid a pupil fee within one 

year prior to the filing of the complaint; 

 

• a notice of the complainant’s right to appeal our Investigation Report to the Department of 

Education (CDE); and 

• the procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to the CDE. 

 

UCP Complaint Appeal Process 

 

An appeal is a written and signed request by the complainant to the CDE seeking review of an LEA 

Investigation Report that was issued in response to a properly-filed complaint. A signature may be 

handwritten, typed (including in an email) or electronically-generated. 

 

The complainant may appeal our Investigation Report of a UCP complaint to the CDE by filing a written 

appeal within 30 calendar days of the date. In order to request an appeal, the complainant must specify 

and explain the basis for the appeal, including at least one of the following: 

• The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) failed to follow its complaint procedures, and/or 

• the Investigation Report lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law, 

and/or 

• the material findings of fact in the Investigation Report are not supported by substantial evidence, 

and/or 

• the legal conclusion in the Investigation Report is inconsistent with the law, and/or 

• in a case in which we were found in noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper 

remedy. 

 

The appeal shall be sent with: (1) a copy of the locally filed complaint; and (2) a copy of the LEA 

Investigation Report. 

 

All complaints and responses are public records. 

 

 

 



 

 

Page 6 of 7 

UCP Requirements Regarding State Preschool Health and Safety Issues Pursuant to HSC Section 

1596.7925: 

 

To file a UCP complaint regarding a state preschool health and safety issue pursuant to HSC Section 

1596.7925 the complainant must file with the preschool program administrator or their designee in the 

Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE). 

 

A state preschool health and safety issues complaint about problems beyond the authority of the preschool 

program administrator shall be forwarded in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days to our 

official for resolution. 

 

A state preschool health and safety issues complaint may be filed anonymously. A complainant who 

identifies themselves is entitled to a response if they indicate that a response is requested. A complaint 

form shall include a space to mark to indicate whether a response is requested. If EC Section 48985 is 

otherwise applicable, the response, if requested, and our Investigation Report shall be written in English 

and the primary language in which the complaint was filed. 

 

A complaint form for a state preschool health and safety issue shall specify the location for filing a 

complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as they wish. 

 

When investigating a UCP state preschool health and safety issue the preschool program administrator or 

the designee of our superintendent shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within his 

or her authority, and investigations shall begin within 10 calendar days of the receipt of the complaint. A 

valid complaint shall be remedied within a reasonable time period, but not to exceed 30 working days 

from the date the complaint was received. The resolution of the complaint shall be reported to the 

complainant within 45 working days of the initial filing. If the preschool program administrator makes 

this report, he or she shall also report the same information in the same timeframe to the designee of our 

superintendent. 

 

Filing an Appeal Regarding UCP State Preschool Health and Safety Issues 

 

A complainant not satisfied with the resolution of the preschool program administrator or the designee of 

our superintendent has the right to describe the complaint at a regularly scheduled hearing of our board. 

A complainant will not be precluded from filing an appeal to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 

(SSPI) if the complainant does not file a local appeal. 

 

A complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the preschool program administrator 

or the designee of our superintendent has the right to file an appeal to the SSPI within 30 calendar days of 

the date of the Investigation Report. 

 

The complainant shall comply with the same appeal requirements of 5 CCR Section 4632 as in the section 

above ‘UCP Complaint Appeal Process’. 

 

The complainant shall include a copy of the Investigation Report and specify and explain the basis for the 

appeal, including at least one of the following: 

 

• the preschool program administrator or the designee of our superintendent failed to follow its 

complaint procedures, and/or 



 

 

Page 7 of 7 

• the Investigation Report lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law, 

and/or 

• material findings of fact in the Investigation Report are not supported by substantial evidence, 

and/or 

• the legal conclusion in the Investigation Report is inconsistent with the law, and/or 

• If the preschool program is found noncompliant, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper 

remedy. 

 

The SSPI or his or her designee shall comply with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 4633 and shall 

provide a written Investigation Report for our agency to the State Board of Education describing the basis 

for the complaint, our response to the state preschool health and safety issues pursuant to HSC Section 

1596.7925 complaint and its remedy or proposed remedy and, as appropriate, a proposed remedy for the 

issue described in the complaint, if different from our agency’s remedy. 

 

We shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all UCP state preschool health and safety 

issues complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and our board. The 

summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of our board. 

The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved 

and unresolved complaints. 

 

 

Legal References:   

20 United States Code [20 U.S.C.] Section 6301 et seq. 

34 Code of Federal Regulations [34 CFR] sections 106.8, 34 CFR 299.10-13 

California Education Code [EC] sections 200, 201, 210.1, 210.3, 220, 221.1, 222, 234.1, 243, 260, 8200- 

8488, 8500-8538, 12030, 17002, 17592.72, 33126, 33315, 35161, 46015, 48645.7, 48850, 48853, 

48853.5, 48911, 48915.5, 48987, 49010-49013, 49069.5, 51210, 51222, 51223, 51225.1-51225.3, 

51228.1-51228.3, 52059.5, 52075, 52300-52462, 52500-52616.18, 54440-54445, 64000, 64001, 65000. 

California Government Code [GC] sections 11135, 11136 

California Penal Code [PC] Section 422.55 

California Code of Regulations Title 5 (5 CCR) Sections 4600-4640, 4690-4694 

 

 

Policy adopted:  9/16/92     Tulare County Board of Education 

        Visalia, California 

 

Revised:  1/14/03, 12/8/04, 2/14/07, 7/9/14, 3/11/15, 5/12/21, 10/13/21, 11/09/22, 11/8/23, 12/13/24 



Page 1 of 5 
 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board/Superintendent Policy 

 
Community Relations 

BP/SP 1312.4 

Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures 

 

Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures 

 

Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

6200 South Mooney Boulevard 

Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 733-6300 

 

Adopted by our Governing Board (here and after “the board”) on November 8, 2023 December 13, 

2024.  

 

Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures 

 

This document contains rules and instructions about the filing, investigation and resolution of a Williams 

complaint. regarding alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, the condition of a facility that 

is not maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment. 

 

The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) adopted the Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 

process in accordance with California Education Code (EC) Section 35186 and Chapter 5.1 (commencing 

with Section 4680) of the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, (5 CCR), to help identify and resolve 

Williams complaints. regarding alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, emergency or 

urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health and safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancy 

or missassignment. TCOE is required to have local policies and procedures that enable Williams 

Complaints to be handled through its UCP process.  This document presents information about how we 

process complaints concerning Williams Settlement issues. A UCP complaint is a written and signed 

statement by a complainant alleging a violation of state laws or regulations. A complainant is any 

individual, including a person’s duly authorized representative or an interested third party, public agency, 

or organization who files a written complaint alleging violation of state laws or regulations, regarding 

alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, the condition of a facility that is not maintained in 

a clean or safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment. If a complainant is unable 

to put the complaint in writing, due to a disability or illiteracy, we shall assist the complainant in the filing 

of the complaint. 

 

The Responsibility of the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

 

The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) is required to have local policies and procedures that 

enable Williams Complaints to be handled through our UCP process, to post a classroom notice 

informing parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers of their rights to file a Williams complaint in each 



Page 2 of 5 
 

classroom in each school, and to provide a complaint form for Williams complaints regarding alleged 

deficiencies related to instructional materials, conditions of facilities that are not maintained in a clean or 

safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment.  

 

If a response is requested by the complainant, the response will go shall be made to the mailing address 

of the complainant indicated on the complaint. 

 

If Education Code 48985 is applicable and 15 percent or more of the pupils in grades K – 12 enrolled in 

TCOE programs/schools speak a language other than English, the Williams Complaint Classroom 

Notice and the Williams Complaint Form shall be written in English and in the primary language of the 

complainant. The complaint response, if requested, and final report shall be written in English and the 

primary language in which the complaint was filed. 

 

A Williams Complaint about problems beyond the authority of the school principal shall be forwarded 

in a timely manner, but will not exceed 10 working days, to the appropriate TCOE official for 

resolution. 

 

The principal or the designee of our superintendent, as applicable, shall make all reasonable efforts to 

investigate any problem within his or her authority.   

 

The principal, or, where applicable, our superintendent or his or her designee shall remedy a valid 

complaint within a reasonable time period but not to exceed 30 working days from the date the 

complaint was received. 

 

The principal or, where applicable, our superintendent or his or her designee, shall report to the 

complainant the resolution of the complaint within 45 working days of the initial filing, if complainant 

identifies himself or herself and requested a response. 

 

The principal makes this report; the principal shall also report the same information in the same 

timeframe to our superintendent or his or her designee. 

 

TCOE shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to 

the county superintendent of schools and the governing board.  

 

The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 

governing board. 

 

The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved 

and unresolved complaints. 

 

The complaints and responses shall be available as public records. 

 

The Williams Complaint Classroom Notice 

 

We make sure that the Williams Complaint Classroom Notice is posted in each classroom in each TCOE 

school and includes the following statements: 

• The (a) The notice shall address parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers,. 

• a statement proclaiming sufficient textbooks and instructional materials, 



Page 3 of 5 
 

• (For there to be sufficient textbooks and instructional materials each pupil, including English 

Learners, must have a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take 

home)   

(b)  There should be sufficient textbooks and instructional materials. For there to be sufficient 

textbooks and instructional materials each pupil, including English learners, must have a 

textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home. 

• a statement that (c) sSchool facilities must be clean, safe, and maintained in good repair,. 

• a statement that (d) tThere should be no teacher vacancies or misassignments,. and 

• (e) tThe location at which to obtain a form to file a complaint in case of a shortage. 

 

(Posting a notice downloadable from the Web site of the CDE shall satisfy this requirement.) 

 

The Williams Complaint Form 

 

We make sure that the Williams complaint form is available for parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers 

to use. 

Every TCOE school shall have a complaint form available for such Williams complaints. 

 

A notice shall be posted in each classroom in each school in the school district, and include the 

following statements: 

 

The Williams Complaint form shall include: 

• a section A space to mark to indicate if a response is requested, 

• a section for A space to include contact information, including mailing address, if the 

complainant indicates that a response be is requested.  

• a A statement that a pupil, including an English Learner, does not have standards - aligned 

textbooks or instructional materials or state adopted or TCOE adopted textbooks or other 

required instructional materials to use in class.  

• a A statement that a pupil does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at 

home or after school.  This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for 

each pupil.  

• a A statement that textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, having 

missing pages, or are unreadable due to damage. 

• a A statement that a pupil was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 

instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

• a A statement that a condition poses an urgent or emergency threat to the health or safety of 

pupils or staff, while at school.  These projects may include, but are not limited to, the following 

types of facility repairs or replacements: including:  gas leaks, nonfunctioning heating, 

ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air - conditioning systems, electrical power failure, major sewer 

line stoppage, major pest or vermin infestation, broken windows or exterior doors or gates that 

will not lock and that pose a security risk, abatement of hazardous materials previously 

undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to pupils or staff, structural damage creating a 

hazardous or uninhabitable condition, and any other emergency conditions TCOE determines 

appropriate. 

• a A statement that a school restroom has not been maintained or cleaned regularly, is not fully 

operational, or has not been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and towels or functional 

hand dryers. 



Page 4 of 5 
 

• a A statement that the school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when pupils 

are not in classes, and has not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours 

when pupils are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the restroom is 

necessary for pupil safety or to make repairs. (1) for a documented pupil safety concern, (2) for 

an immediate threat to pupil safety, or (3) to repair the facility. 

• a A statement that a semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists. (A position to which a single 

designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire 

year or, if the position is for a one - semester course, a position of which a single designated 

certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the semester for an entire 

semester).  

• a A statement that a teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English Learners is 

assigned to teach a class with more than 20 percent one or more English Learners pupils in the 

class. 

• a A statement that a teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter 

competency. 

• a section A space to identify the location where the complaint of the school in which the alleged 

violation took place, 

• a section A space to identify the course or grade level, if applicable,  

• a section A space where the complainant describes the specific nature of the complaint in detail, 

• a A statement that the complainant may include add as much text to explain the complaint as the 

complainant feels is necessary wishes, and  

• a A statement identifying the place to file the complaint that includes the office and address of 

the principal or his/her designee of the school in which the alleged violation took place. 

 

Filing a Williams Complaint with the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

 

A Williams complaint shall be filed with the principal of the school or his or her designee, in which the 

complaint arises. 

 

A Williams complaint may be filed anonymously. 

 

The complainant need not use the Williams Complaint form to file a complaint. 

 

How to Appeal a Williams Complaint  

 

A complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution of the principal or our superintendent or his or her 

designee, involving deficiencies related to instructional materials, the condition of a facility that is not 

maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment, has the 

right to describe the complaint to the governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing 

board. 

 

A complainant who is then not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the principal, or our 

superintendent or his or her designee, involving a condition of a facility that poses an emergency or 

urgent threat, as defined in paragraph (1) of subdivision (c) of EC Section 17592.72, has the right to file 

an appeal to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction at the California Department of Education 

(CDE) within 15 calendar days of receiving the report. 

 



Page 5 of 5 
 

Condition that pose an emergency or urgent threat (not cosmetic or nonessential) to the health and safety 

of pupils or staff while at school include the following: 

• Gas leaks. 

• Nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems. 

• Electrical power failure. 

• Major sewer line stoppage. 

• Major pest or vermin infestation.  

• Broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk. 

• Abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to pupils 

or staff. 

• Structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition. 

 

In regards to the resolution proffered by the principal, or our superintendent or his or her designee, 

involving a condition of a facility that poses an emergency or urgent threat, the complainant shall 

comply with the appeal requirements specified in 5 CCR Section 4632. 

 

A complainant may appeal the Decision of an emergency or urgent threat to the CDE by filing a written 

appeal within 15 days of receiving the Decision. 

 

The complainant shall specify the basis for the appeal of the Decision and whether the facts are incorrect 

and/or the law is misapplied. 

 

The appeal shall be accompanied by: 

1. A copy of the original locally filed complaint; and  

2. A copy of our Decision of this original locally filed complaint. 

 

State Laws Cited: 

California Education Code Sections 1240, 17592.72, 35186, 35292.5, 48985, 60640. 

California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Sections 4680–4687. 

 

 

Regulation Approved:  1/6/05    Tulare County Superintendent of Schools 

Visalia, California 

 

Revised:  9/1/05, 1/10/07, 7/13/07, 3/27/09, 01/22/2015 

 

 

Tulare County Board of Education 

       Visalia, California 

 

Converted to a Board Policy and adopted:  5/12/2021 

Revised:  11/09/2022, 11/8/2023, 12/13/2024 

 



TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

E (2) 1312.4 

Williams Uniform  

Complaint Procedures 

 

WILLIAMS COMPLAINT FORM 
 

California Education Code (EC) Section 35186 and Chapter 5.1 (commencing with Section 4680) of 

California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5CCR) created a procedure for the filing of complaints concerning 

regarding alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, conditions of facilities that are not 

maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good repair, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose 

a threat to the health and safety of pupils or staff, or teacher vacancy or misassignments.  The complaint 

and response are public documents as provided by statute.  Complaints may be filed anonymously.  

However, if you wish to receive a response to your complaint, you must provide the following contact 

information. 

 

Response requested?  Yes  No 

 

Name 

(Optional): 
 

Mailing 

Address 

(Optional):  

 

Phone Number 

Day (Optional):  Evening(Optional):  

 

Issue of the complaint:  (Please check all that apply) 

 

1. Textbooks and instructional materials 

 A pupil, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional 

materials or state-adopted or county office-adopted textbooks or other required instructional materials 

to use in class. 

 A pupil does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or after school.  This 

does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each pupil. 

 Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages, or are 

unreadable due to damage. 

 A pupil was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials 

to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

2. Facility Conditions 

 A condition that poses an urgent or emergency a threat to the health or and safety of students pupils or 

staff, including: while at school. These projects may include, but are not limited to, the following types 

of facility repairs or replacements: including: gas leaks, nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire 

sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems, electrical power failure, major sewer line stoppage, major pest 

or vermin infestation, broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a 

security risk, abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat 



February 2015 December 2024 
 

to pupils or staff, structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition, and any other 

emergency condition the county office determines appropriate. 

 A school restroom has not been maintained or cleaned regularly, is not fully operational and or has not 

been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and paper towels or functional hand dryers. 

 The school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when pupils are not in classes and has 

not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when pupils are in classes.  This 

does not apply when temporary closing of the restroom is necessary for (1) for a documented pupil 

safety concern, (2) for an immediate threat to pupil safety, or (3) to repair the facility. 

3. Teacher Vacancy or Misassignment 

 Teacher vacancy – A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists.  (A teacher vacancy is a position 

to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year 

for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a position of which a single designated 

certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester.) 

 Teacher misassignment – A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is 

assigned to teach a class with one or more than 20 percent English learners pupils in the class.  This 

subparagraph does not relieve a county office from complying with state or federal law regarding 

teachers of English learners. 

 Teacher misassignment – A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject 

matter competency. 

Date of Problem Complaint:  

Location of Problem where the complaint took place (School Name, Address, 

and Room Number or Location:  

 

 

 

Course or Grade Level and 

Teacher Name: 
 

 

Please dDescribe the issue of your specific nature of the complaint in detail.  You may attach additional pages if 

necessary to describe fully the situation. to add as much text to explain the complaint as you wish:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please fFile this complaint with the principal of the school or his or her designee in which the complaint took 

place:  at the following 

lLocation:         

Address:           

 



February 2015 December 2024 
 

A complaint about problems beyond the authority of the principal shall be forwarded within 10 working days to 

the below county office official for resolution:  

 

Name of County Office Staff/Address: Director Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 

Physical Address:  6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277 

 Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091 

Phone:  559-733-6306 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board/Superintendent Policy 

 
Community Relations 

BP/SP 1312.4 

Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures 

 

Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures 

 

Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

6200 South Mooney Boulevard 

Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 733-6300 

 

Adopted by our Governing Board (here and after “the board”) on December 13, 2024.  

 

Williams Complaint Policies and Procedures 

 

This document contains rules and instructions about the filing, investigation and resolution of a Williams 

complaint.  

 

The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) adopted the Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) 

process in accordance with California Education Code (EC) Section 35186 and Chapter 5.1 (commencing 

with Section 4680) of the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, (5 CCR), to help identify and resolve 

Williams complaints. regarding alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, emergency or 

urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health and safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancy 

or missassignment. TCOE is required to have local policies and procedures that enable Williams 

Complaints to be handled through its UCP process.  This document presents information about how we 

process complaints concerning Williams Settlement issues. A UCP complaint is a written and signed 

statement by a complainant alleging a violation of state laws or regulations. A complainant is any 

individual, including a person’s duly authorized representative or an interested third party, public agency, 

or organization who files a written complaint alleging violation of state laws or regulations, regarding 

alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, the condition of a facility that is not maintained in 

a clean or safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment. If a complainant is unable 

to put the complaint in writing, due to a disability or illiteracy, we shall assist the complainant in the filing 

of the complaint. 

 

The Responsibility of the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

 

The Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) is required to have local policies and procedures that 

enable Williams Complaints to be handled through our UCP process, to post a classroom notice informing 

parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers of their rights to file a Williams complaint in each classroom in 

each school, and to provide a complaint form for Williams complaints regarding alleged deficiencies 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

related to instructional materials, conditions of facilities that are not maintained in a clean or safe manner 

or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment.  

 

If a response is requested by the complainant, the response shall be made to the mailing address of the 

complainant indicated on the complaint. 

 

If Education Code 48985 is applicable and 15 percent or more of the pupils in grades K – 12 enrolled in 

TCOE programs/schools speak a language other than English, the Williams Complaint Classroom Notice 

and the Williams Complaint Form shall be written in English and in the primary language of the 

complainant. The complaint response, if requested, and final report shall be written in English and the 

primary language in which the complaint was filed. 

 

A Williams Complaint about problems beyond the authority of the school principal shall be forwarded in 

a timely manner, but will not exceed 10 working days, to the appropriate TCOE official for resolution. 

 

The principal or the designee of our superintendent, as applicable, shall make all reasonable efforts to 

investigate any problem within his or her authority.   

 

The principal, or, where applicable, our superintendent or his or her designee shall remedy a valid 

complaint within a reasonable time period but not to exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint 

was received. 

 

The principal or, where applicable, our superintendent or his or her designee, shall report to the 

complainant the resolution of the complaint within 45 working days of the initial filing, if complainant 

identifies himself or herself and requested a response. 

 

The principal makes this report; the principal shall also report the same information in the same timeframe 

to our superintendent or his or her designee. 

 

TCOE shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to 

the county superintendent of schools and the governing board.  

 

The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 

governing board. 

 

The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved 

and unresolved complaints. 

 

The complaints and responses shall be available as public records. 

 

The Williams Complaint Classroom Notice 

 

We make sure that the Williams Complaint Classroom Notice is posted in each classroom in each TCOE 

school and includes the following statements: 

(a)  The notice shall address parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers. 

(b)  There should be sufficient textbooks and instructional materials. For there to be sufficient 

textbooks and instructional materials each pupil, including English learners, must have a textbook or 

instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home. 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

(c) School facilities must be clean, safe, and maintained in good repair. 

(d) There should be no teacher vacancies or misassignments.  

(e) The location at which to obtain a form to file a complaint in case of a shortage. 

 

(Posting a notice downloadable from the Web site of the CDE shall satisfy this requirement.) 

 

The Williams Complaint Form 

 

We make sure that the Williams complaint form is available for parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers 

to use. 

Every TCOE school shall have a complaint form available for such Williams complaints. 

 

A notice shall be posted in each classroom in each school in the school district, and include the following 

statements: 

 

The Williams Complaint form shall include: 

• A space to mark to indicate if a response is requested, 

• A space to include contact information, including mailing address, if the complainant indicates 

that a response is requested.  

• A statement that a pupil, including an English Learner, does not have standards - aligned textbooks 

or instructional materials or state adopted or TCOE adopted textbooks or other required 

instructional materials to use in class.  

• A statement that a pupil does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home 

or after school.  This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each 

pupil.  

• A statement that textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, having 

missing pages, or are unreadable due to damage. 

• A statement that a pupil was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 

instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

• A statement that a condition poses an urgent or emergency threat to the health or safety of pupils 

or staff while at school.  These projects may include, but are not limited to, the following types of 

facility repairs or replacements: including:  gas leaks, nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire 

sprinklers, or air - conditioning systems, electrical power failure, major sewer line stoppage, major 

pest or vermin infestation, broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that 

pose a security risk, abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an 

immediate threat to pupils or staff, structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable 

condition, and any other emergency conditions TCOE determines appropriate. 

• A statement that a school restroom has not been maintained or cleaned regularly, is not fully 

operational, or has not been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and towels or functional 

hand dryers. 

• A statement that the school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when pupils are 

not in classes, and has not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when 

pupils are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the restroom is necessary 

(1) for a documented pupil safety concern, (2) for an immediate threat to pupil safety, or (3) to 

repair the facility. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

• A statement that a semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists. (A position to which a single 

designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire 

year or, if the position is for a one - semester course, a position of which a single designated 

certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the semester for an entire 

semester).  

• A statement that a teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English Learners is assigned 

to teach a class with one or more English Learners pupils in the class. 

• A statement that a teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter 

competency. 

• A space to identify the location where the complaint took place, 

• A space to identify the course or grade level, if applicable,  

• A space where the complainant describes the specific nature of the complaint in detail, 

• A statement that the complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as the complainant 

wishes, and  

• A statement identifying the place to file the complaint that includes the office and address of the 

principal or his/her designee of the school in which the alleged violation took place. 

 

Filing a Williams Complaint with the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

 

A Williams complaint shall be filed with the principal of the school or his or her designee, in which the 

complaint arises. 

 

A Williams complaint may be filed anonymously. 

 

The complainant need not use the Williams Complaint form to file a complaint. 

 

How to Appeal a Williams Complaint  

 

A complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution of the principal or our superintendent or his or her 

designee, involving deficiencies related to instructional materials, the condition of a facility that is not 

maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment, has the 

right to describe the complaint to the governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing 

board. 

 

A complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the principal, or our superintendent or 

his or her designee, involving a condition of a facility that poses an emergency or urgent threat, as defined 

in paragraph (1) of subdivision (c) of EC Section 17592.72, has the right to file an appeal to the State 

Superintendent of Public Instruction within 15 calendar days of receiving the report. 

 

Condition that pose an emergency or urgent threat (not cosmetic or nonessential) to the health and safety 

of pupils or staff while at school include the following: 

• Gas leaks. 

• Nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems. 

• Electrical power failure. 

• Major sewer line stoppage. 

• Major pest or vermin infestation.  

• Broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk. 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

• Abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to pupils or 

staff. 

• Structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition. 

 

In regards to the resolution proffered by the principal, or our superintendent or his or her designee, 

involving a condition of a facility that poses an emergency or urgent threat, the complainant shall comply 

with the appeal requirements specified in 5 CCR Section 4632. 

 

A complainant may appeal the Decision of an emergency or urgent threat to the CDE by filing a written 

appeal within 15 days of receiving the Decision. 

 

The complainant shall specify the basis for the appeal of the Decision and whether the facts are incorrect 

and/or the law is misapplied. 

 

The appeal shall be accompanied by: 

1. A copy of the original locally filed complaint; and  

2. A copy of our Decision of this original locally filed complaint. 

 

State Laws Cited: 

California Education Code Sections 1240, 17592.72, 35186, 35292.5, 48985. 

California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Sections 4680–4687. 

 

 

Regulation Approved:  1/6/05    Tulare County Superintendent of Schools 

Visalia, California 

 

Revised:  9/1/05, 1/10/07, 7/13/07, 3/27/09, 01/22/2015 

 

 

Tulare County Board of Education 

       Visalia, California 

 

Converted to a Board Policy and adopted:  5/12/2021 

Revised:  11/09/2022, 11/8/2023, 12/13/2024 

 



 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

 

Community Relations 

E (2) 1312.4 

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

 

 

WILLIAMS COMPLAINT FORM 
 

California Education Code (EC) Section 35186 and Chapter 5.1 (commencing with Section 4680) of 

California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5CCR) created a procedure for the filing of complaints regarding 

alleged deficiencies related to instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose 

a threat to the health and safety of pupils or staff, or teacher vacancy or misassignments.  The complaint 

and response are public documents as provided by statute.  Complaints may be filed anonymously.  

However, if you wish to receive a response to your complaint, you must provide the following contact 

information. 

 

Response requested?  Yes  No 

 

Name 

(Optional): 
 

Mailing 

Address 

(Optional):  

 

Phone Number 

Day (Optional):  Evening(Optional):  

 

 

Issue of the complaint:  (Please check all that apply) 

 

1. Textbooks and instructional materials 

 A pupil, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional 

materials or state-adopted or county office-adopted textbooks or other required instructional materials 

to use in class. 

 A pupil does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or after school.  

This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each pupil. 

 Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages, or are 

unreadable due to damage. 

 A pupil was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials 

to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

2. Facility Conditions 

 A condition that poses a threat to the health and safety of pupils or staff while at school. These projects 

may include, but are not limited to, the following types of facility repairs or replacements: including: 

gas leaks, nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems, electrical 

power failure, major sewer line stoppage, major pest or vermin infestation, broken windows or exterior 

doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk, abatement of hazardous materials 



 

December 2024 
 

previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to pupils or staff, structural damage creating a 

hazardous or uninhabitable condition, and any other emergency condition the county office determines 

appropriate. 

 A school restroom has not been maintained or cleaned regularly, is not fully operational or has not been 

stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and paper towels or functional hand dryers. 

 The school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when pupils are not in classes and has 

not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when pupils are in classes.  This 

does not apply when temporary closing of the restroom is necessary for (1) for a documented pupil 

safety concern, (2) for an immediate threat to pupil safety, or (3) to repair the facility. 

3. Teacher Vacancy or Misassignment 

 Teacher vacancy – A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists.  (A position to which a single 

designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year 

or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a position of which a single designated certificated 

employee has not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester.) 

 Teacher misassignment – A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is 

assigned to teach a class with one or more English learner pupils in the class.  This subparagraph does 

not relieve a county office from complying with state or federal law regarding teachers of English 

learners. 

 Teacher misassignment – A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject 

matter competency. 

 

Date of Complaint:  

Location where the complaint took place (School Name, Address, and Room Number or Location:  

 

 

 

Course or Grade Level and Teacher Name:  

 

Describe the specific nature of the complaint in detail.  You may attach additional pages to add as much text to explain 

the complaint as you wish:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

File this complaint with the principal of the school or his or her designee in which the complaint took place: 

 

Location:             

 

Address:               



 

December 2024 
 

A complaint about problems beyond the authority of the principal shall be forwarded within 10 working days to 

the below county office staff for resolution.  

 

Name of County Office Staff/Address: Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 

Physical Address:  6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277 

 Mailing Address:   P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091 

Phone:  559-733-6306 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BEFORE THE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  

TULARE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Compensation) 

for the County Superintendent) 

            RESOLUTION NO.   24/25-15 
  

 

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2018, Tim Hire was elected as the Tulare County 

Superintendent of Schools (“County Superintendent”), commencing January 7, 2019; 

 

WHEREAS, the Tulare County Board of Education (“County Board”) has the right to 

approve the County Superintendent’s budget for the Tulare County Office of Education (“County 

Office”); 

 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2018, the County Board approved Resolution No. 18/19-8, 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and which provides for the County Superintendent’s annual 

compensation package (“Resolution”); 

 

WHEREAS, number two (2) of Resolution states that the County Board shall review the 

County Superintendent’s salary annually and with the understanding that any change will be 

effective July 1; and   

 

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2024, the County Board reviewed the County 

Superintendent’s annual base salary at its Regular Board Meeting to determine whether to adjust 

the annual base salary for the 2024/2025 school year.  

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  

 

1. The County Superintendent’s annual base salary shall be increased to $345,000.00 for the 

2024/2025 school year.   

 

2. The County Superintendent’s contracted days are to remain at 224 days.  

 

3. All other terms of the County Superintendent’s compensation package provided for in the 

18/19-8 Resolution attached here as Exhibit A shall remain the same without modification. 

 

4. The County Board shall review the County Superintendent’s annual salary and consider 

whether to adjust the base salary effective July 1, 2024, for the 2024/2025 school year. The 

County Board shall review the County Superintendent’s base salary annually hereafter with 

the understanding that any changes will be effective July 1. 

 

 

 



5. This Resolution is adopted with the express understanding that the County Board has made 

no representations or warranties with respect to the tax or retirement consequences of any 

payments made pursuant to this Resolution, and that the County Superintendent shall be 

solely responsible for all such tax and retirement consequences. 

 

6. This Resolution shall be effective upon approval by the County Board. 

 

7. The County Office of Education is hereby authorized to take any other actions necessary 

to implement the intent and purpose of this Resolution. 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was approved by the Tulare County Board of Education on                 

December 13, 2024. 

        

______________________ 

Board President 

 

        

TULARE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  

Tulare County, California 

 

I, ___________________________________________, President of the Board of Trustees of 

the Tulare County Board of Education, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was 

regularly introduced, passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees during its meeting held on 

December 13, 2024. 

  

________________________________ 

Board President’s Signature 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 



EXHIBIT A



















Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 3 of 3 

STD 213A Continuation 

IV. Paragraph 3 (maximum amount payable) on the face of the original STD 213 is 
increased by $175,000 and is amended to read: $10,942,000 (Ten Million, Nine 
Hundred Forty-Two Thousand Dollars). $11,117,000 (Eleven Million, One 
Hundred Seventeen Thousand Dollars).

V. Paragraph 4 (incorporated attachments) on the face of the original STD 213 is 
amended to add the following revised attachment: 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work    (20 Pages) 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions    (5 Pages)  
Exhibit B, Attachment IV – Budget Year 4     (9 Pages) 
Exhibit F - Travel Reimbursement       (3 Pages) 

     
Exhibit A – Scope of Work, Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions, 
Exhibit B, Attachment IV – Budget Year 4, and Exhibit F – Travel 
Reimbursement, shall hereinafter be replaced with the above-mentioned revised 
attachment included in this amendment A06. 

 
VI.  All other terms and conditions shall remain the same. 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 1 of 20 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

1. Service Overview
 
Contractor agrees to provide to the California Department of Health Care 
Services (DHCS) the services described herein.  The Contractor will manage the 
California Friday Night Live Partnership (CFNLP) and provide statewide 
substance use prevention and youth development theories and practice, training 
and technical assistance (TTA), and program support services to county Friday 
Night Live (FNL), Club Live (CL), FNL Kids (FNLK), and FNL Mentoring 
programs(FNLM) (FNL programs). The purpose of these services is to facilitate 
the success of the FNL programs in achieving outcomes relevant to the FNL 
requirements including the Standards of Practice, Members in Good Standing 
(MIGS), Roadmap, and to ensure accurate data reporting in the DHCS data 
collection and reporting service, specific to FNL programs.  
 

2. Service Location 
 
The services shall be performed at the Tulare County Office of Education at 6200 
South Mooney Boulevard Visalia, CA 93277, and various statewide FNL program 
locations.

3. Service Hours

The services shall be provided during normal Contractor working hours of 
Monday through   Friday excluding State holidays. 

 
4. Project Representatives 

 
A. The project representatives during the term of this Agreement will be:

Department of Health Care Services

Contract Manager: Vanessa Machado 
Telephone: (916) 713-8642
Email: 
Vanessa.Machado@dhcs.ca.gov

Tulare County Office of Education 

Contract Manager: Nani Dodson
Telephone: (559)733-6496
Email: nanid@tcoe.org



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 2 of 20 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

B. Direct all inquiries to: 

Department of Health Care Services 

Program Operations Section
Attention: Vanessa Machado
MS 2622
1501 Capitol Avenue 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA, 95899-7413 
 
Telephone: (916) 713-8642 
Email: 
Vanessa.Machado@dhcs.ca.gov 

Tulare County Office of Education
 
California Friday Night Live Partnership
Attention: Katelyn Williford
6200 South Mooney Boulevard
P.O. Box Number 5091 
Visalia, CA 93278-5091

Telephone: (559)733-6496 
Email: katelyn.williford@tcoe.org 

 
C. Either party may make changes to the information above by giving written 

notice to the other party.  Said changes shall not require an amendment to 
this Agreement.
 

5. Services to be Performed
 
See attached Work Plan. 

6. Quarterly Progress Reports
 
Contractor must submit quarterly written progress reports to the DHCS Project 
Representative by the first of every third month (November, February, May, 
September) with the first report due November 1, 2021. The quarterly report and 
itemized invoice shall correspond with the Scope of Work and budget and include 
the clear identification of completed tasks. The report must include a summary of 
the TTA provided for the time period and a year-to-date summary, evaluation 
results, minutes from the monthly regional conference calls, problems 
encountered in achieving or failing to achieve proposed objectives and the 
methods employed to resolve stated problems. The report must accompany the 
itemized invoice for payment. Itemized invoices must also include supporting 
documentation such as travel related receipts, detailed general ledgers, payroll 
and benefit summaries and subcontractor invoices. Itemized invoices will not be 
processed without receipt of an acceptable corresponding quarterly report.  
DHCS’s Project Representative may request that additional details and 
supporting documentation be included in the quarterly report. The quarterly 
written progress report and itemized invoice reporting periods and due dates are 
shown below: 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 3 of 20 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

Quarterly Reporting Period Progress and Invoice Due Date
July through September November 1 
October through December February 1
January through March May 1
April through June August 1

7. Annual/Final Report

Contractor shall submit a written annual report to the DHCS Project 
Representative no later than 30 days after the end of each 12 month contract 
period. The report shall include a summary of the TTA calls, in-person TTA, 
webinar trainings, toolkits developed, Youth Development Survey summary and 
statewide report, Member in Good Standing summary, regional conference call 
summary, and the Leadership Training Institute summary. DHCS’s Project 
Representative may request additional details. 
 
Events Planning and Execution 
 
The Contractor will comply with the following guidance when hosting events.  
These requirements do not apply to staff meetings to conduct routine business 
matters: 
 
A. Contractor will select training event locations that meet federal accessibility 

requirements for persons with disabilities and will obtain approval from DHCS 
on selected locations. 

 
B. Event notices must include the following statement:  “If you need a disability-

related reasonable accommodation/alternative form for this event, please 
contact (Name) at (Phone number, E-mail address, and TDD number) by (a 
date up to two weeks prior to the event).”  Contractor is responsible for 
providing any needed disability-related reasonable 
accommodations/alternative formats.

 
8. Key Personnel 

 
If any key personnel that fill the position of Administrator, Program Director, 
Program Analysts, or Project Specialist are unable to perform due to illness, 
resignation, or other factors beyond the Contractor’s control, the Contractor shall 
immediately offer substitute personnel.  Paid leaves of absence cannot be 
supported by this contract.



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 4 of 20 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

9. Contract Oversight
 
A. Contractor will provide an Administrator to oversee the operation of the 

CFNLP and the delivery of TTA and program support.  The detailed 
responsibilities of the Administrator are noted in the Personnel Services 
section of the Budget Justification. 

 
B. Contractor and key project staff shall meet or confer with DHCS’s Project 

Representative at least once each month to review progress, formulate plans 
for the coming month, and discuss any difficulties or problems so that 
remedies can be developed as soon as possible. 

 
C. DHCS’s Project Representative, or any authorized representative, has the 

right at any reasonable time to inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed hereunder, including subcontract supported 
activities, and the premises on which it is being performed.  If any inspection, 
or evaluation is made by DHCS of the premises of the Contractor or 
subcontractor, the Contractor shall provide and shall require its 
subcontractors to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the 
safety and convenience of DHCS representatives in the performance of their 
duties.  All inspections and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner 
as will not unduly delay the work. 

 
D. DHCS’s Project Representative or any authorized representative may attend 

any events (e.g. webinars, conference calls, training events, etc.) funded 
through this contract. 

 
E. All travel must be approved by DHCS. Contractor will submit travel requests 

30 days prior to traveling (time permitting). 
 

F. All products, reports, or materials developed through this contract (such as 
training curricula or evaluation materials) or through a subcontract, shall be in 
the public domain and be the property of the State of California and the 
Federal Government.  

 
10. Americans with Disabilities Act

 
Contractor agrees to ensure that deliverables developed and produced, pursuant 
to this Agreement shall comply with the accessibility requirements of Sections 
7405 and 11135 of the California Government Code, Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794d), regulations 
implementing the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as set forth in Part 1194 of Title 36 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
(42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.). In 1998, Congress amended the Rehabilitation Act 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 5 of 20
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work

of 1973 to require Federal agencies to make their electronic and information 
technology (EIT) accessible to people with disabilities.  California Government 
Code Sections 7405 and 11135 codifies Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 requiring accessibility of EIT.
 

11.       Executive Order N-6-22 – Russia Sanctions 

On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the 
EO) regarding Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and 
individuals. “Economic Sanctions” refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. 
government in response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions 
imposed under state law. The EO directs state agencies to terminate contracts 
with, and to refrain from entering any new contracts with, individuals or entities 
that are determined to be a target of Economic Sanctions. Accordingly, should 
the State determine Contractor is a target of Economic Sanctions or is 
conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that 
shall be grounds for termination of this agreement.  The State shall provide 
Contractor advance written notice of such termination, allowing Contractor at 
least 30 calendar days to provide a written response. Termination shall be at the 
sole discretion of the State. 
 

12. GenAI Technology Use & Reporting  

A. During the term of the contract, Contractor must notify the State in 
writing if their services or any work under this contract includes, or 
makes available, any previously unreported GenAI technology, 

Contractor shall 
immediately complete the GenAI Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) to 
notify the State of any new or previously unreported GenAI technology. 
At the direction of the State, Contractor shall discontinue the use of any 
new or previously undisclosed GenAI technology that materially 
impacts functionality, risk or contract performance, until use of such 
GenAI technology has been approved by the State.

B. Failure to disclose GenAI use to the State and submit the GenAI 
Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) may be considered a breach of the 
contract by the State at its sole discretion and the State may consider 
such failure to disclose GenAI and/or failure to submit the GenAI 
Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) as grounds for the immediate 

relief it may be entitled to as a result of such non-disclosure.



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 6 of 20
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work

C. The State reserves the right to amend the contract, without additional 
cost, to incorporate GenAI Special Provisions into the contract at its 
sole discretion and/or terminate any contract that presents an 
unacceptable level of risk to the State.  



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 

Page 7 of 20
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 
 
 

 

PROJECT WORK PLAN 

A. General Support and Structure 

Objectives Tasks Timeframe 

Contractor will 
provide staffing and 
organizational 
structure to provide 
administration, 
TTA, and program 
support services 
statewide to FNL 
Programs.  

1.   Provide substance use prevention and youth development theories and 
practice, TTA, and support to DHCS for emerging issues and special 
projects, as requested.  

2.   Make recommendations to DHCS on the implementation of services 
provided under this contract and advise DHCS on the implementation of 
services and support for FNL programs.   

3.  Work closely and cooperatively with the DHCS Project Representative and 
respond to all DHCS requests for information and documentation related to 
the provisions of this contract. 
 

4.   Ensure that all approvals, selections, identification processes, TTA and 
support services are properly and cooperatively vetted through DHCS.  
This includes, but is not limited to, TTA topics, TTA materials, selection of 
consultants/FNL Peer Coaches, selection of training locations, travel 
requests, forms, etc.   
 

5. Engage in trainings/conferences (as funding permits) and other learning 
opportunities, such as online resources, that commonly provide education and 
insight to emerging substance use prevention and youth development theories 
and practice to ensure Contractor stays informed and current. 

 
6. Conduct monthly check-in calls, or more if needed, with DHCS’s Project 

Representative. 

1. As needed, as 
agreed upon and as 
funding permits 
 
2. Monthly during 
scheduled call with 
DHCS or more 
frequently if needed 
3. Within two business 
days of request 
 
 
4. Continuously. 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Continuously 
 
 
 
 
6. Monthly or more 
frequently if needed 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 

Page 8 of 20
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 
 

 
 7. Coordinate, facilitate and maintain FNL program peer communication and 
collaboration processes between the six FNL regions including, but not limited 
to, monthly regional and California Friday Night Live Collaborative (CFNLC) 
Leadership conference calls, general communications and other processes. 

a) Create and electronically disseminate agendas to participants at 
least one day prior to the call. 

b) Record and electronically disseminate minutes to participants within 
five business days after the call. 
 

8. Provide consultants and staff with current information on cultural relevancy 
and definitions within the National Standards for Culturally and 
Linguistically Appropriate Services, as necessary.  
 

9. Foster relationships across systems and with other organizations that can 
enhance the TTA for FNL Programs and/or further the engagement of high 
risk and hard to reach youth. 

10. Provide start-up stipends to non-FNL counties to support participation in 
FNL implementationand additional stipends to counties that choose to 
engage special population partnerships. 

11. CFNLP will develop and implement processes that include:  

a) Identification and documentation of county intent to 
participate/receive funding. 

b) Develop and process county and tribal contracts and payment 
mechanisms.  

c) Provide training and certification in HCE to non FNL county program 
providers, as requested. 

 

 
 
7. Monthly or more 
frequently if needed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Monthly or more 
frequently if needed 

 
9. As needed 
 
 
 
10. As needed 
 
 
 
11. Annually 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 

Page 9 of 20
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 
 

12. Utilize Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplement Appropriations Act 
(CRSSA) and America Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) as pass through funding 
to implement FNL programs in Modoc County.  As the FNL provider, 
Resources for Indian Student Education, Inc. will engage youth from the to 
the Pit River Tribe of Burney, the XL Reservation, Fort Bidwell Paiute 
Reservation, and Cedarville Rancheria. 

  
12. Anually 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. Technology 

Objectives Tasks Timeframe 

Contractor will offer 
and maintain 
technological 
services and 
systems to support 
the efforts of the 
FNL programs.  

1. Maintain the website domain name www.fridaynightlive.org. Operate and 
maintain the website on a quarterly basis.  It shall provide FNL program 
information for FNL County Coordinators, FNL participants, DHCS and the 
general public. The website should function as a network for the FNL field 
and provide access to educational, programmatic and outcome information 
regarding FNL Programs. 

 

2. Rebuild the FNL webpage to allow for expansion, enhanced accessibility, 
increased user interface, and interaction. 
 

3. Ensure the content and information is appropriate, accurate and accessible 
bysight impaired individuals. 

 

1. At a minimum, review 
the content quarterly, 
make necessary 
updates, obtain DHCS 
approval if needed and 
post updated material 

 

 

2. July 2022-June 2024 

 
 
 
3. Continuously 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 10 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
4.  Add program materials, funded by this contract, to the CFNLP website as 

they are developed and approved by DHCS to enable FNL programs to 
download an electronic version.   

 
5.  Use the CFNLP website as an opportunity to network and support FNL 

programs by providing a portal for required programmatic requirements 
(including but not limited to the MIGS reference documents and all 
outcome related reports), social media, sharing upcoming event 
information (i.e., Save the Date, event details), funding opportunities, 
conference registration, training, etc. 
 

6. Maintain and utilize a conference call service to enhance communication 
and support the CFNLC and the six FNL program regions. 

 
7. Maintain and utilize webinar services and internet based platfoms to 
facilitate training and meetings. When applicable, and as funding permits, post 
pre-recorded webinars to the FNL website for ad hoc viewing. 

4. When applicable and 
upon DHCS approval 
 
 
 
5. Continuously and 
within 3 months of the 
scheduled events 
 
 
 
 
 
6. When applicable 
 
 
 
7. When applicable 
 

 
 
 
 

C. Training and Technical Assistance 

Objectives Tasks Timeframe 

Contractor will 
develop, support 
and maintain a TTA 
system for FNL 
programs. 

1. TTA will be made available through in-person training, webinars, 
electronic communication, telephone support and website technology. 

a. A minimum of six webinars (not related to the Youth Development 
Survey) of varying subject matter will be delivered to the FNL field 
each contract year. 

b. TTA via telephone will be provided continuously, documented, and 
reported to DHCS in the quarterly reports. 

1. Continuously 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 11 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
c. In-person TTA will be provided when it is the most beneficial 

method for the recipient(s) and as funding permits. 
 

2. Plan, coordinate and implement one (1) annual multi-day statewide FNL 
Training Institute that includes but is not limited to: 

a. Collaboration with the CFNLC in providing oversight and 
coordination for the agenda, content and material development for 
all workshops/trainings, break-out sessions, etc. 

b. Coordinate conference calls with the CFNLC to plan the event. Take 
minutes and electronically disseminate them to the participants. 

c. Coordinate contract negotiations with hotels and/or event sites that 
meet the approval of DHCS.  Negotiations will include conference 
and meeting room needs, meeting participant and staff lodging, 
meals, parking, and other facility costs, as funding permits. 

d. A registration fee may be collected to off-set the expense of meals, 
lodging and facility costs.  Participants will be responsible for travel 
to and from the event. 

 
3. Plan, coordinate and implement one (1) annual multi-day statewide FNL 

Youth Summit that includes but is not limited to: 
a. Collaboration with the CFNLC to provide oversight and coordination 

of the agenda, content and material development for all 
workshops/trainings, break-out sessions, etc. 

b. Coordinate conference calls with the CFNLC to plan the event. Take 
minutes and electronically disseminate them to the participants. 

c. Coordinate contract negotiations with hotels and/or event sites that 
meet the approval of DHCS. Negotiations will include conference 
and meeting room needs, meeting participant and staff lodging, 
meals, parking, and other facility costs, as funding permits. 

 

 
2. Annually  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.  Annually  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 12 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
4. Determine when on-site, online, and/or group training is preferable to 

direct TTA services and accordingly plan and conduct as many training 
events as needed contingent on available resources.  

 

5. Provide TTA that addresses program development needs with the goal of 
meeting program standards. TTA will include a certification process that 
will include the HCE practioner and Responsible Beverage Service (RBS). 
The CFNLP will develop, execute and manage sub-contracts with 
appropriate partners/consultants to establish the curricula for these 
certification programs.  

 

6. Record and track TTA activities and training events, outcomes, and 
evaluation results (location, frequency, topic, cost and trainer).  

 

7. Implement a series of training courses and/or webinars on topics most 
appropriate for FNL programs. Utilize CFNLC input, county assessments, 
statewide data and the expertise of partners to ascertain FNL program 
needs and emerging issues. 

a. Develop a training plan for each training event. Each training plan is 
to be approved by DHCS 30 days prior to the event (time 
permitting). 

b. Oversee the design and development of materials for all trainings 
(agendas, handouts, name badges, registration information, etc.). 

c. Monitor and track all expenses related to each training event. 

4. Continuosly 
 
 
 
 
 
5.  Continuously 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Continuously 
 
 
 
 
7. Continuously 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 13 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
d. Develop toolkits to support the work of FNL Program providers that 

reflect new and emerging issues, implementation strategies and 
processes.  

 
8. Identify diverse and culturally proficient consultants and FNL Peer 

Coaches to provide TTA and program support services to FNL programs. 

e. Develop, execute and manage sub-contracts with appropriate 
partners, consultants and FNL Peer Coaches to deliver TTA 
services when and where appropriate. 

f. Assign appropriate consultant(s) or staff to meet TTA requests, 
based upon, but not limited to, priority, type, location, length of each 
TTA to be provided, direction from DHCS and the FNL Programs, 
and the Contractor’s assessment of the program’s needs. 

 

9. Obtain approval from DHCS prior to the delivery of training services and 
disseminating materials. 

 

10.  Roadmap Expansion  
g. Expand and refine the Roadmap Chapter Guide as needed to 

reflect the evaluation and lessons learned from the previous 
implementation. 

h. If applicable, engage in the Service to Science process related to 
the Roadmap Chapter Guide. 

i. Provide training related to each Roadmap module throughout each 
contract year and at the annual FNL Training Institute to support the 
continuous improvement process in the adoption of the Roadmap.    

j. Continue to seek additional opportunities to support the expansion, 
implementation, refinement, and evaluation of the Roadmap, 
including but not limited to: conference presentations, grant funding, 
and evaluative reviews.   

 
 
 
 
 
8. Continuously  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.Continuously 
 
 
 
 
10.Continuously 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 14 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
 

11. Provide technical assistance, mini-grants, tools, and materials to support 
the implementation of town hall meetings by county FNL programs.  
 

12. Perform concentrated TTA to counties receiving CRSSA/ARPA funding 
for FNL implementation. TTA will occur though telephone calls, e-mails, 
webinars, and county, regional, and statewide in-person and virtual 
training. Related travel and incidental costs for staff and local programs 
will be provided through this grant. 

a. Provide a detailed county list, number of days TTA provided, 
and a description of TTA provided to each county and to the 
DHCS representative. 

    
13. Conduct a minimum of two webinars for FNL County Administrators  

on the MIGS purpose, process, and requirements.  DHCS will be 
notified of the webinars through quarterly reporting. 
 

14. Support the implementation and expansion of Friday Night Live  
Mentoring programs through technical assistance, training, and 
materials development.  

 
15. Conduct individual meetings with FNL County Coordinators 

responsible for the MIGS application.  
a. Meetings will include review of the MIGS purpose, process, and 

requirements  
b. FNL County Coordinators will be informed of their progress toward 

meeting MIGS requirements. 
 

16. Refine and update program guides for FNLM, CL, and FNLK. This may 
include, but is not limited to, the inclusion of age-appropriate activities, 
best practices, and incorporation of lessons learned. CFNLP will review 
recent literature and consult with experts to determine the updates to be 

 
 
11. Continuously 
 
 
12.Continuously  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13. Annually 
 
 
 
 
14. Ongoing 
 
 
 
15.Quarterly  
 
 
 
 
 
 
16. Annually 
 

 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 15 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
made. Results and analysis from the annual Youth Development Survey 
and FNLM Retrospective Survey will be integrated, as appropriate. 

 

D. Data Collection and Evaluation 

Objectives Tasks Timeframe 

A. Contractor will 
provide 
oversight, 
support and 
technical 
assistance with 
the DHCS data 
collection and 
reporting 
service, specific 
to FNL 
programs. 

 

1. Ensure accurate data entry related to the ongoing submission of FNL 
Chapter related activities.  Use the DHCS data collection and reporting 
service reports and other collected data to monitor progress. 
 

2. Ensure all FNL funded counties complete the Countywide Profile by 
September 30 of each new State fiscal year, and submit to the Contractor.  
Monitor monthly from July through September and follow-up with counties 
that do not have a completed profile. 

 
3. Ensure all FNL funded counties complete Chapter Profiles for each FNL 

chapter at the beginning of each new State fiscal year or at the time a new 
chapter is formed, and submit to the Contractor.  Monitor monthly and 
follow-up with counties that have active Chapters without completed 
profiles. 

 
4. Produce chapter certifications for FNL program sites. 

 
5. Gather and analyze FNL specific data to assist in determining which FNL 

programs could benefit from TTA.  
 

6. Coordinate with DHCS to provide TTA and webinars relevant to improving 
and supporting FNL Program staff competency with the DHCS data 
collection and reporting service, as it relates to FNL.  
 

1. Continuously 
 
 
 
 
2. By September 30 of 
each contract year 
 
 
 
 
3. Monthly 
 
 
 
 
 
4. As needed 
 
 
5. Continuously  
 
 
 
6. As needed 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 16 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
7. In conjunction with DHCS, in keeping current the FNL specific DHCS data 

collection and reporting service User Manual and related materials. 
 
 

 

 
 
7. As needed 

 

B.  Manage and 
support a bi-
annual MIGS 
process. 

1. Update MIGS reference documents using a stakeholder informed process. 
Collect stakeholder recommendations for changes to the MIGS process, 
submit recommendations to DHCS, and update the MIGS reference 
documents accordingly. MIGS stakeholder group will examine the impact 
administrative requirements have on the field and report recommendations 
to improve the process. The stakeholder group shall consist of members 
of the CFNLC (both meeting and not meeting MIGS standards), CFNLP, 
FNL coordinators, county coordinators, county prevention coordinators, 
and DHCS. Submit revised MIGS reference materials to DHCS for 
approval. Once approved, provide training to FNL participants for 
standardization of updated MIGS.  

a.  Include review of the current MIGS processes to identify 
potential streamlining opportunities during stakeholder 
listening sessions.

b.  Utilize CFNLC and CFNLP feedback to simplify and 
standardize the MIGS process. 

c.  Submit MIGS/administrative revisions to DHCS for review 
and approval. 

 
2. Provide administrative support to assist the CFNLC with the 

implementation of the peer-driven MIGS accountability review.   

a. Review conducted June 2022 and June 2025
b. Re-application reviews for non-MIGS conducted 2023 and 

2025 
c. Results released September 15th of each contractual year 

1. By June 30, 2022 and 
June 30, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. See Timeline stated 
in Tasks 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 17 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 

 
3. Use the CFNLC approved MIGS implementation plan detailing criteria, 

benefits, roles and responsibilities for MIGS submissions. 
 

4. CFNLP will collaborate with the CFNLC to provide guidance and 
recommendations involving the MIGS certification process for the FNL 
programs including updates and revisions, when appropriate, that meet 
the program standards and work to achieve program outcomes. 

 
5. Publically post the MIGS requirements on the CFNLP website and notify 

new county FNL Coordinators of the MIGS requirements and the process 
to achieve or maintain a good standing. 

 
6. Utilize the FNL Training Institute and other training events to train and 

assist FNL funded counties in completing necessary requirements to 
achieve MIGS certification. 

 
7. Assist FNL programs to complete and submit Technical Assistance Plans 

to strengthen and meet program standards and MIGS status. 
 

8. Provide recommendations/opportunities for TTA relevant to supporting 
counties to achieve a MIGS standing. 

 
9. Provide systems to gather, assess and store accountability documents 

related to MIGS for the CFNLC and DHCS. 

 
3. As needed 
 
 
4. Within 30 days of 

being notified of the 
new hire 

 
 
 
5. Continuously 
 
 
 
 
6. Continuously 
 
 
 
7. Continuously 
 
 
 
8. Continuously 
 
 
9. Continuously 

C.  Evaluation – 
FNL Youth 
Development 

1. Coordinate and disseminate the annual FNL Youth Development (YD) 
Survey to all FNL programs for implementation and in fulfillment of MIGS 
requirements including the FNL Mentor Retrospective Survey where 
applicable.   

1. Process begins every 
February 15 and will 
repeat annually 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 18 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
(YD) Survey and 
Analysis 

a. The existing FNL YD Survey tool will be utilized and modified, if 
needed, based on FNL Program input. 

b. The FNL YD Survey data will be gathered via electronic means 
(Survey Monkey, Excel spreadsheet, etc.) and in hard copy from 
those counties that do not have electronic capability.  

c. The data will be analyzed and synthesized into statewide and 
county specific reports. 

d. The survey results will be reviewed with DHCS and utilized to 
identify areas that could benefit from future program improvements. 

 
2. Provide DHCS FNL YD Survey result reports and develop an infographic 

for approval that reflects the aggregated findings and analysis of all 
surveyed counties. Once approved by DHCS, post on the CFNLP website 
and disseminate report and infographic to FNL Counties statewide.  
 
 
 

3. Provide FNL YD Survey result reports specific to each participating FNL 
County that reflect the findings and analysis relative to their FNL survey 
submissions. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. CFNLP will consult 
with DHCS on YD 
Survey report review 
relative to administration 
dates and the 
Leadership Training 
Institute  
 
 
3. Prior to the annual 
Leadership Training 
Institute 

D.  Evaluation – 
TTA Services 

1. Evaluate the quality of the TTA services and assess the outcomes 
achieved through the services provided. TTA is distinguished from training 
in that it is provided in an effort to address an individual county’s specific 
challenges, provide guidance, analysis and recommendations for 
improvement.  It is provided within the context of a continuous 
improvement process that supports the ongoing advancement of FNL 
programs. 
a. TTA consultations that are of 15 minutes or more will be tracked in a 

DHCS approved format and reported in the quarterly progress reports 

1. By September 30 of 
each contract year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 19 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
identifying the county, staff person/consultant that delivered the TTA, 
the individual that received the TTA, the length of time, the topic/TTA 
delivered, session notes and whether additional TTA is needed or 
already scheduled. 

b. A DHCS approved annual survey will be administered in 
August/September of each contract year to all of the FNL County 
Coordinators to evaluate the quality of TTA delivered during the 
previous project year and determine the current needs of the field. The 
results will be compiled and provided to DHCS with the subsequent 
quarterly progress report.  

c. The survey results will be reviewed with DHCS and utilized to: 
i. Identify areas where TTA service delivery may need to be 

improved. 
ii.  Plan for future TTA topics based on field feedback.  

 
2. Evaluate the quality of training services and assess the outcomes 

achieved (webinars, regional trainings, the annual Leadership Training 
Institute, etc.). 
a. Use a DHCS approved evaluation form to assess the quality and 

effectiveness of the training. Distribute the form to all training recipients 
at the end of each training and exercise due diligence to ensure they 
are completed. 

b. Prepare an analysis of the completed evaluations, compile the results 
and submit to DHCS’s Project Representative with the quarterly 
progress reports.  

c. Review the results with DHCS for areas of quality improvement and to 
determine priorities for future trainings. 

d. Adjust training as appropriate and provide CFNLP staff and/or 
consultants with feedback as needed. 
 

3. Create four infographics illustrating the experiences youth participants 
have statewide, in the context of the evidence-based FNL Standards of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Disseminate and 
collect after each 
training. Provide DHCS 
the results as requested 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. Annually 



Tulare County Office of Education 
21-10068 A06 
Page 20 of 20

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
Practice. The illustration will be contingent on the data derived from the 
content gathered and presented in one-page documents. 

 
 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 1 of 5 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
 
1. Invoicing and Payment

A. For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt and approval of the 
invoices, DHCS agrees to compensate the Contractor for actual expenditures 
incurred in accordance with the budget(s) attached hereto. 

 
B. Invoices shall include the Agreement Number and shall be submitted in 

triplicate not more frequently than monthly in arrears to:  
 
Vanessa Machado 
Department of Health Care Services 
Community Services Division 
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 2622 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
DHCS, at its discretion, may designate an alternate invoice submission 
address.  A change in the invoice address shall be accomplished via a written 
notice to the Contractor by DHCS and shall not require an amendment to this 
Agreement. 
 

C. Invoice Components 
 

The invoice shall contain a coversheet and if applicable, support 
documentation.  The coversheet will serve as a brief and concise summary 
detailing the contract number, invoice number, billing and/or performance 
period, and the total expenditure.   

 
D. Invoices shall: 

 
1) Be prepared on Contractor letterhead.  If invoices are not on produced 

letterhead invoices must be signed by an authorized official, employee or 
agent certifying that the expenditures claimed represent actual expenses 
for the service performed under this Agreement. 

2) Bear the Contractor’s name as shown on the Agreement. 
3) Identify the billing and/or performance period covered by the invoice. 
4) Itemize costs for the billing period in the same or greater level of detail as 

indicated in this Agreement.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, 
reimbursement may only be sought for those costs and/or cost categories 
expressly identified as allowable in this Agreement and approved by 
DHCS. 

 
 
 
 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 2 of 5 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
 
2. Budget Contingency Clause

 
A. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any 

subsequent years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate 
sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall be of no further force 
and effect.  In this event, DHCS shall have no liability to pay any funds 
whatsoever to Contractor or to furnish any other considerations under this 
Agreement and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for 

purposes of this program, DHCS shall have the option to either cancel this 
Agreement with no liability occurring to DHCS, or offer an agreement 
amendment to Contractor to reflect the reduced amount. 

 
3. Prompt Payment Clause 

 
Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, 
Government Code Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927. 

 
4. Amounts Payable 
 

A. The amounts payable under this Agreement shall not exceed: 
 
1) $1,318,000 $1,106,272.61 for the budget period of July 1, 2021 through June 

30, 2022.
2) $3,288,000 for the budget period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. 
3) $3,168,000 $3,379,727.39 for the budget period of July 1, 2023 through 

June 30, 2024.
4) $3,343,000 for the budget period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. 

 
B. Reimbursement shall be made for allowable expenses up to the amount 

annually encumbered commensurate with the state fiscal year in which 
services are performed and/or goods are received. 

 
5. Timely Submission of Final Invoice 
 

A. A final undisputed invoice shall be submitted for payment no more than 30 
calendar days following the expiration or termination date of this Agreement, 
unless a later or alternate deadline is agreed to in writing by the Program 
Contract Manager.  The invoice should be clearly marked “Final Invoice”, thus 
indicating that all payment obligations of DHCS under this Agreement have 
ceased and that no further payments are due or outstanding. 

 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 3 of 5 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
 

B. DHCS may, at its discretion, choose not to honor any delinquent final invoice 
if the Contractor fails to obtain prior written DHCS approval of an alternate 
final invoice submission deadline.  Written DHCS approval shall be sought 
from the Program Contract Manager prior to the expiration or termination date 
of this Agreement.

 
C.  The Contractor is hereby advised of its obligation to submit, with the final 

invoice, a 
“Contractor’s Release (Exhibit G)” acknowledging submission of the final 
invoice to DHCS and certifying the approximate percentage amount, if any, of 
recycled products used in performance of this Agreement. 

 
6. Restrictions on the Use of Federal Block Grant Funds 

Pursuant to 42 U.S.C.  Section 704, Contractor shall not use funds provided by 
the Agreement to:
 
A. Provide inpatient services; 
 
B. Make cash payment to intended recipients of health services;
 
C. Purchase or improve land, purchase, construct or permanently improve any 

building or other facility or purchase major medical equipment;
 
D. Satisfy any requirement for the expenditure of non-federal funds as a 

condition for the receipt of federal funds; 
 
E. Provide financial assistance to any entity other than a public or nonprofit 

private entity for research or training services; or
 
F. Make payment for any item or service (other than an emergency item or 

service) furnished by; 1) an individual or entity during the period such 
individual or entity is excluded from participation in any other federally funded 
program, or 2) at the medical direction or on the prescription of a physician 
during the period when the physician is excluded from participation in any 
other federally funded program.

 
7. Expense Allowability / Fiscal Documentation 
 

A. Invoices, received from a Contractor and accepted and/or submitted for 
payment by DHCS, shall not be deemed evidence of allowable agreement 
costs. 

 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 4 of 5 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
 

B. Contractor shall maintain for review and audit and supply to DHCS upon 
request, adequate documentation of all expenses claimed pursuant to this 
Agreement to permit a determination of expense allowability.

 
C. If the allowability or appropriateness of an expense cannot be determined by 

DHCS because invoice detail, fiscal records, or backup documentation is 
nonexistent or inadequate according to generally accepted accounting 
principles or practices, all questionable costs may be disallowed and payment 
may be withheld by DHCS.  Upon receipt of adequate documentation 
supporting a disallowed or questionable expense, reimbursement may 
resume for the amount substantiated and deemed allowable.

 
D. If travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support 

the claimed expenditures.  For more information on allowable travel and per 
diem expenses and required documentation, see Exhibit F entitled, “Travel 
Reimbursement Information.”

 
E. Costs and/or expenses deemed unallowable are subject to recovery by 

DHCS.  See provision #8 in this exhibit entitled, “Recovery of Overpayments” 
for more information.   

 
8. Recovery of Overpayments 
 

A. Contractor agrees that claims based upon a contractual agreement or an 
audit finding and/or an audit finding that is appealed and upheld, will be 
recovered by DHCS by one of the following options:
 
1) Contractor’s remittance to DHCS of the full amount of the audit exception 

within 30 days following DHCS’ request for repayment; 
 
2) A repayment schedule which is agreeable to the both DHCS and the 

Contractor. 
 
B. DHCS reserves the right to select which option will be employed and the 

Contractor will be notified by DHCS in writing of the claim procedure to be 
utilized. 

 
C. Interest on the unpaid balance of the audit finding or debt will accrue at a rate 

equal to the monthly average of the rate received on investments in the 
Pooled Money Investment Fund commencing on the date that an audit or 
examination finding is mailed to the Contractor, beginning 30 days after 
Contractor’s receipt of DHCS’ demand for repayment. 

 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 5 of 5 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
 

D. If the Contractor has filed a valid appeal regarding the report of audit findings, 
recovery of the overpayments will be deferred until a final administrative 
decision on the appeal has been reached.  If the Contractor loses the final 
administrative appeal, Contractor shall repay, to DHCS, the over-claimed or 
disallowed expenses, plus accrued interest.  Interest accrues from the 
Contractor’s first receipt of DHCS’ notice requesting reimbursement of 
questioned audit costs or disallowed expenses. 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 1 of 9 
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

Personnel 

Position Title 
# of 
Staff

Annual Salary  FTE % Annual Cost 

Administrator 1 168,576 40% $ 67,430
Program Director 1 145,740 20% $ 29,148.00
Grant Coordinator 1 91,068 75% $ 68,301.00
Training Coordinator 1 94,212 75% $ 70,659.00
Program Analyst 1 80,208 15% $ 12,031
Project Specialist 1 66,756 100% $ 66,756
 

Total Salary $ 314,326
Fringe Benefits (64.96%) $ 204,176

Total Personnel $
 

518,501 
Operating Expenses 
Supplies 1,250 
Printing 1,250 
Postage                                      1,000             
Communication 2,000 
Conferences & Meetings 444,504 599,706
Rent                                            7,801

Total Operating Expenses $

 
457,805 
613,008 

 
 Total Travel Expenses $ 6,000 
Subcontracts 

 Total Subcontracts $
 

2,130,567 
 
Equipment
 Total Equipment Expenses $ 0 
Other Costs 

Total Other Costs $
 

Indirect Costs (7.2 7.88% of All Expenses, with 
the exception of pass-through funds) 

 Indirect Costs $

 
80,127 
99,924

Annual Budget Total $
3,193,000 

3,368,000



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 2 of 9
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

PERSONNEL SERVICES:  $314,326 

This is the total cost of personnel services, excluding benefits.  Salaries for all personnel are dictated 
by the Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) salary schedule.  The salary amounts and 
percentage of full time equivalent (FTE) are forecasted approximations.  The services provided 
through this contract rely heavily on the skills, education, and expertise of the human resources 
described below.  

Administrator:  $67,430

The Administrator’s salary and fringe benefits were calculated according to the management and 
confidential salary schedule created by the personnel division of the TCOE.  The Administrator will be 
funded 40% FTE of a total annual salary of $168,576. 
 
Duties include but are not limited to: 
 
 Overall project planning and management. 
 Overall administration and supervision of project staff. 
 Development of processes and opportunities that ensure that staff are skilled, knowledgeable and 

accountable. 
 Ensuring that project staff, consultants and subcontractors have adequate knowledge, prevention 

expertise and capacity to provide services that support the goals of the project and are culturally 
sensitive and linguistically appropriate.   

 Working with county Friday Night Live (FNL) programs to identify training and technical assistance 
(TTA) that will increase the capacity of the programs and expand the depth, breadth and quality of 
FNL program implementation.   

 Providing direct TTA to FNL programs.
 Providing leadership for the implementation of the Leadership Training Institute (LTI) and ensuring 

that the Leadership Team (LT), Program Analysts, and Program Specialist have structure and 
support for all aspects of this deliverable. 

 Planning, coordination, content design, oversight, implementation and evaluation for the LTI. 
 Ensuring that budget controls and expenditures associated with contract activities are allowable 

and appropriate. 
 Ensuring that prior approval is obtained for all travel and TTA. 
 Providing administrative and structural support to the California Friday Night Live Collaborative 

(CFNLC) and the Member in Good Standing (MIGS) review team by ensuring that staffing, 
logistics, and other aspects are provided for as appropriate to the budget. 

 Ensuring that all contract deliverables from service delivery sub-contracts, including reports, are 
submitted on time and are of high quality. 

 Researching, developing and implementing web technology resources as a cost effective way to 
provide training and information. 

 Supporting and maintaining the integrity of the FNL programs. 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 3 of 9
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

Ensuring the use of current prevention technology, such as evidence-based youth development 
strategies and environmental prevention, and identifying substance use disorder prevention issues 
affecting youth across California. 

 Facilitating continuous knowledge and skill development by gathering information and training 
opportunities on emerging trends and evidence-based youth development strategies and 
disseminating to FNL programs.

 Enhancing the success of Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SABG) 
funded FNL programs. 

 Developing relationships across systems that aim to improve and expand the TTA provided by the 
CFNLP resulting in improved FNL programs at the local level.   

 Identifying and developing funding opportunities and the capacity for FNL programs to pursue 
local, state and federal funds. 

 Ensuring the implementation and maintenance of a structure that will ensure that FNL counties 
maintain a positive MIGS status or are working towards meeting the MIGS requirements.

 Ensuring thorough oversight and technical assistance that FNL programs enter appropriate FNL 
related data into the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) data collection and reporting 
service, the Youth Development Survey and the Retrospective Survey and the data is used for 
program improvement and evaluation purposes. 

 Developing and disseminating techniques and strategies for FNL programs to involve high-risk 
and underserved youth. 

 Ensuring all TTA materials are approved in advance of implementation. 
 Track emerging trends and relevant literature related to high-risk alcohol use, prescription drugs, 

opioid addiction, marijuana, etc.  Reports national trends to DHCS.   
 Create and implement advanced policy efforts that relate to alcohol and drug use, including 

policies that support youth engagement.   
 In collaboration with DHCS and key stakeholders, participate in planning committees that support 

the requirements of SABG funding.  This includes the Interagency Prevention Advisory Council, 
State Epidemiological Workgroup and Evidence-based Practices Workgroup.   

 Oversee the comprehensive planning for statewide FNL programs that will enhance, sustain and 
measure an evidence-based high-risk substance use prevention and education program for 
statewide FNL programs.   

 Monitor relevant national and state data, implement needs assessments, and develop new 
programming based on identified service gaps. 

 Prepare reports and presentation materials as needed to include current data, and local and 
national trends; submit report for publication. 

 Work to identify new funding sources for statewide prevention efforts.   
 
Program Director: $29,148 
 
The Program Director’s salary and fringe benefits were calculated according to the management and 
confidential salary schedule created by the personnel division of the TCOE.  The Program Director 
will be funded 20% FTE of a total annual salary of $145,740.   
 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 4 of 9
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

Duties include, but are not limited to:   

Coordinating and overseeing evaluation efforts to measure program effectiveness.
 Creating reports, presentations, and trainings for the purpose of promotion and sustainability of 

the FNL program.
 Developing training materials for the purpose of assisting FNL counting with identified TTA 

areas.   
Developing and facilitating processes and meetings with statewide FNL programs and youth 
groups to increase their capacity on FNL principles and standards of practice.  

 Partnering with statewide and community-based agencies for the purpose of building and 
strengthening collaborations which utilize a youth development approach.

 Providing training to diverse audiences for the purpose of increasing the knowledge, capacity, 
and effectiveness of coordinators, advisors, and young people.  

 
Grant Coordinator: $68,301 
 
The Grant Coordinator’s salary and fringe benefits were calculated according to the management and 
confidential salary schedule created by the personnel division of the TCOE.  The Grant Coordinator 
will be funded 75% FTE of a total annual salary of $91,068. 
 
Duties include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Overseeing contract deliverables, all aspects of reporting, fiscal oversight, and other grant-
related duties.  

 Managing the subcontracting process for FNL SABG funds, FNL mini-grants, and all other 
independent contracts & agency agreements.  

 Developing reporting templates to support FNL SABG fund management. 
 Monitoring subcontracting process for TTA contracts.   
 Coordinating with the subcontracted evaluator to support the administration of webinar surveys 

and the annual Youth Development Survey.  
 Contributing to the updates of FNL resources and MIGS process.  
 Identifying new funding sources for statewide prevention and youth development efforts, in 

partnership with the Interim Administrator.  
 
 
Training Coordinator: $70,659 
 
The Training Coordinator’s salary and fringe benefits were calculated according to the management 
and confidential salary schedule created by the personnel division of the TCOE.  The Training 
Coordinator will be funded 75% FTE of a total annual salary of $94,212.
 
Duties include, but are not limited to:   



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 5 of 9
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

Assessing and identifying training needs across the FNL field through regular TTA calls, 
regional meetings, and in-person trainings. 
Creating and devloping training and resources to build the capacity of youth and adults 
engaged through the FNL field. This includes: researching topics, creating powerpoint and 
supporting materials, and identifying expert trainers to help facilitate trainings.  

 Leading trainings both virtually and in-person.  
Managing all training aspects of Leadership Training Institute, FNL Youth Summit, and other 
trainings as delivered during the course of the project.  
Identifying statewide and nationwide partners, coalitions, and networks to support the capacity-
building needs of the FNL field.  
Contributing to the updates of FNL resources and MIGS process. 

 Supporting the reporting processes with regard to TTA and training evaluations.  
 

 
 
Program Analyst: $12,031 
 
The Program Analyst for this project will be funded 15% FTE of a total annual salary of $80,208, with 
additional hours in-kind.  The Program Analyst’s salary and fringe benefits were calculated according 
to the management and confidential salary schedule created by the personnel division of the TCOE. 
 
Duties include, but are not limited to:  
 

 Developing and managing all technology needs of the program.  This includes online 
registration processes and polls, webinars and webinar facilitation.   

 Managing all website related tasks, including posting and removing documents, TTA calendar 
management, and providing support to programs utilizing the site.   

 Developing PowerPoints, fact sheets and other presentation materials utilized by all staff 
dedicated to this project.   

 Providing direct training to the field through webinars and in-person trainings. 
 Developing training materials and documents to support the CFNLC, LT, and the project staff. 
 Providing support to the California Youth Council (CYC) that includes facilitation and direction, 

research and development of tools and materials relevant to the CYC work. 
 
 
 
 
 
Project Specialist: $66,756 
 
The Project Specialist will be funded 100 % of a total annual salary of $66,756.  The Project 
Specialist salary and fringe benefits were calculated according to the negotiated contract with the 
TCOE, the Board of Trustees and California School Employees Association, and the bargaining unit 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 6 of 9
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

for classified employees.  The Project Specialist will provide organizational support to the project 
staff, assist in the development, implementation, and maintenance of the county FNL program 
documentation and provide clerical support to the organization’s structure.  
 
Duties include, but are not limited to:  
 

 Organizing hotel logistics for training events including meals, lodging arrangements, room set 
up, registration management and other logistical details.  

 Producing and transmitting routine correspondence to the FNL programs.
 Tracking inventory and ordering supplies for the office, training events and meetings.  
 Creating purchase orders and requests for warrants for purchases.
 Creating and maintaining notes for meetings, regional calls, LT calls, LTI planning committee 

calls and other calls related to the support of the FNL programs.   
 Producing and maintaining records and documents that support all aspects of the CFNLP’s 

organizational needs, such as maintaining the FNL County Coordinator directory, MIGS 
documentation, DHCS data collection and reporting documentation and certificates.  

 Making travel arrangements for CFNLP staff, pre and post travel documents and other 
documentation processes inherent to the efficient function of the organization. 

 Creating contracts and materials to support the addition of the youth council project  
 
 
 
Fringe Benefits: $204,176 
  
The total benefit package for employees of the TCOE includes health and life insurance, disability 
insurance, workers compensation, Public Employees Retirement System contributions and Medi-Cal.  
Approximate benefit rate totals 23%-71% of salary, depending on the salary range of each employee.  
Listed below is a breakdown of benefit percentages: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BENEFIT CLASSIFIED MGMT CLASSIFIED
 

PERS  .23   .23
MEDI 0.0145 0.0145
DISABILITY 0.0065 0.0065
SUI .0005 .0005
W/COMP .0317 .0317
OPEB FTE annual $3,417.00   $3,417.00 
OPEB SALARY .0800    .0800 
Health & Welfare 
(medical) annual $23,179.20 $23,515.20



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 7 of 9 
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

OPERATING EXPENSES: $457,805 613,008

a) Supplies:  $1,250
Supply costs include general office supplies such as paper, pens, pencils, print cartridges, copy 
machine toner, computer peripherals, etc.  Approximately $104.17/mth x 12 months.   
 
b) Printing and Duplication:  $1,250 
Printing and duplication costs will include, but not be limited to, program materials, packets, 
toolkits, manuals, training materials, etc.  Approximately $104.17/mth x 12 months.
  
c) Postage: $1,000 
Postage costs include routine mailing of written communications that cannot otherwise be e-
mailed.  Various items requested by the field, such as Roadmap binders, toolkits, etc.  
Approximately $83.33/mth x 12 months. 
 
d) Communication: $2,000 
Communications costs include telephone, cellular phone, webinar and FAX costs. Costs include 
platforms and subscriptions to facilitate monthly regional conference calls, FNL Mentoring 
conference calls, MIGS workgroup conference calls, LTI planning conference calls, etc.  A portion 
of the cellular phone costs for the Administrator and Program Director.  Technical assistance will 
be offered via telephone as well as on-going contact with county FNL Coordinators and staff.  
Webinar service subscription will support the facilitation of webinars that will be used as a TTA 
tool. Other communication tools include online platforms, including but not limited to:  Zoom, Event 
Management Platforms, and Canva.   Approximately $166.67/mth x 12 months.   

e) Conferences and Meetings:  $444,504 559,706      
Conference and meetings costs will cover expenses related to statewide (including LTI and FNL 
Youth Summit), regional, and local/county meetings and trainings, CFNLC trainings/meetings, 
MIGS listening sessions, and other collaborative meetings/trainings as deemed necessary and 
within budget.  Prior to any training event, DHCS must review and approve presenters, agendas, 
and other materials used at the training events.  In addition, DHCS prior approval will be obtained 
on the location of the events.  
 
f) Rent: $7,801

 
This line item will pay for rent.  This amount represents 36% of the office space fees incurred by 
the CFNLP, annually.  Office space fees are divided across programs within TCOE.  
Approximately $650.12/mth x 12 months.

Equipment and Equipment Rental: $0 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06

Page 8 of 9
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

No equipment costs.  
 
Travel: $6,000 
Travel costs include hotel, mileage and per diem for up to 10 CFNLP staff and up to 20 CYC 
members to attend statewide meetings, provide on-site TTA, MIGS or CFNLC meetings and travel for 
other events and/or conferences relating to the contract.  Travel may include the staff funded through 
this contract, in-kind staff traveling expressly for the support of this contract and California CYC
members traveling to provide training or other efforts directly related to the promotion of FNL 
programs.  Rates of reimbursement adhere to the CalHR approved state rate.  DHCS approval will be 
obtained 30 days prior to travel (time permitting).   
 
Subcontracts: $2,130,567 
The Contractor will establish subcontractors suited for specific TTA, evaluation, county support and 
technological needs upon approval of this contract.  Subcontractors will vary depending on availability 
and suitability to fulfill the identified needs.   

 
a) Subcontractor – TBD Evaluation TTA services will be provided through a subcontractor to be 

identified at a later date.  Contracted services will be for Youth Development Survey 
implementation to include the survey tool, webinars to train coordinators/advisors how to 
administer the survey to the chapter youth, collection of the survey data, analysis of the data, 
statewide and county specific survey result reports and a presentation of the survey results to the 
FNL field at the annual LTI conference. $20,000 total.  

 
b) Subcontractors TBD - TTA and services may be provided through subcontractors to be identified 

at a later date.  Contracted services will be for on-site trainings, regional trainings, webinars and 
LTI. Contracted services will include subcontracts for website development/maintenance and 
technology/website training to ensure ADA compliance. Contracted services could also include 
Flourish Agenda for additional Healing Centered Engagement training opportunities for the FNL 
field. Trainers, peer coaches and field consultants will be selected based on their area of expertise 
as well as their geographical location in order to meet the needs of the FNL programs in the most 
economical method. $100,567 total. 

c) Subcontractors TBD - Stipends may be provided, when applicable, for Leadership Team 
members, CYC members, and/or youth participants that engage in time consuming 
committee/membership roles, and/or provide a significant contribution towards meeting the 
deliverables of this contract. Stipends in the form of checks issued by TCOE may also be provided 
to non-FNL counties to support their participation in FNL implementation. $10,000.00 total. 

d) Subcontractors – Provide contracts to county entities, for the purpose of providing foundational 
funding for FNL and CL programs. Funding amounts vary and are established by a population 
based formula set forth by DHCS. Costs up to $1,975,000.

a. The CFNLP will utilize an allocations acceptance process to confirm county intent 
to participate and receive funding through the contracting process. 



Tulare County Office of Education
21-10068 A06 

Page 9 of 9 
Exhibit B, Attachment IV 

Budget 
Year 4 

(July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025) 

b. Additional incentive funds will be provided for counties with specific efforts to 
engage special populations (tribal entities, LGBTQ communities, and system-
involved youth). 

e) Utilize $25,000 of America Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) as pass through funding to implement FNL 
programs in Modoc County. As the FNL provider Resources for Indian Student Education Inc. 
(RISE) will engage youth from the Pit River Tribe of Burney, the XL Reservation, Fort Bidwell 
Paiute Reservation, and Cedarville Rancheria. ARPA ($25,000). This allocation is not subject to 
indirect cost charges. $25,000 total. 

 
Indirect Cost: $80,127 99,924

The indirect cost rate for TCOE has not yet been established but is projected to be 7.2 The 
California Department of Education approved an indirect cost rate for the TCOE for the 2024-
25 fiscal year of 7.88% for the 2024-2025 fiscal year. Indirect costs include utilities, janitorial 
expenses, technical support from data technicians, Internet services, legal support from County 
Counsel, fiscal and business support, invoice preparation and budget support, personnel services, 
and guidance and direction from the Tulare County Superintendent of Schools.  It is anticipated that 
all subcontracts will be under $25,000. As such, the indirect cost rate will be applied to the 
subcontract total with the exception of the Modoc County allocation and County Allocations, which are 
pass though funds. 



Page 1 of 3

Travel Reimbursement Information
(Lodging and Per Diem Reimbursement – Effective for travel on/after J 1, 202 )

1. The following rate policy is to be applied for reimbursing the travel expenses of persons under
contract.  The terms “contract” and/or “subcontract” have the same meaning as “grantee” and/or
“subgrantee” where applicable.

a. Reimbursement for travel and/or per diem shall be at the rates established for
nonrepresented/excluded state employees.  Exceptions to California Department of Human
Resources (CalHR) lodging rates may be approved by the Department of Health Care
Services (DHCS) upon the receipt of a statement on/with an invoice indicating that State
employee travel rates are not available.

b. Short Term Travel is defined as a 24-hour period, and less than 31 consecutive days, and is at
least 50 miles from the main office, headquarters or primary residence.  Starting time is
whenever a contract or subcontract employee leaves his or her home or headquarters.
"Headquarters" is defined as the place where the contracted personnel spends the largest
portion of their working time and returns to upon the completion of assignments.  Headquarters
may be individually established for each traveler and approved verbally or in writing by the
program funding the agreement.  Verbal approval shall be followed up in writing or email.

c. Contractors on travel status for more than one 24-hour period and less than 31
consecutive days may claim a fractional part of a period of more than 24 hours.  Consult
the chart appearing on Page 2 of this document to determine the reimbursement
allowance.  All lodging reimbursement claims must be supported by a receipt*.  If a
contractor does not or cannot present receipts, lodging expenses will not be reimbursed.

1) Lodging (with receipts*):

Travel Location / Area Reimbursement 
Rate

All counties (except the counties identified below) $ 90.00 plus tax

Counties of Sacramento, Napa, Riverside $ 95.00 plus tax

Marin $110.00 plus tax

Counties of Los Angeles (except City of Santa Monica), 
Orange, Ventura and Edwards AFB

$120.00 plus tax

Counties of Monterey and San Diego $125.00 plus tax

Counties of Alameda, San Mateo, and Santa Clara $140.00 plus tax

City of Santa Monica $150.00 plus tax

San Francisco $250.00 plus tax

Reimbursement for actual lodging expenses that exceed the above amounts may be
allowed with the advance approval of the Deputy Director of DHCS or his or her designee.  
Receipts are required.

*Receipts from Internet lodging reservation services such as Priceline.com which require
prepayment for that service, ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE LODGING RECEIPTS and are not
reimbursable without a valid lodging receipt from a lodging establishment.

Department of Health Care Services

CD 01 (Revised 0 /202 )

       Exhibit F



Page 2 of 3

2) Meal/Supplemental Expenses:  With substantiating receipts, a contractor may claim actual
expenses incurred up to the following maximum reimbursement rates for each full 24-hour
period of travel.

Meal / Expense Reimbursement Rate
Breakfast $ 7.00
Lunch $ 11.00
Dinner $23.00
Incidental expenses $ 5.00

d. Out-of-state travel may only be reimbursed if such travel is necessitated by the scope or
statement of work and has been approved in advance by the program with which the contract
is held.  For out-of-state travel, contractors may be reimbursed actual lodging expenses,
supported by a receipt, and may be reimbursed for meals and supplemental expenses for each
24-hour period computed at the rates listed in c. (2) above.  For all out-of-state travel,
contractors/subcontractors must have prior DHCS written or verbal approval.  Verbal approval
shall be confirmed in writing (email or memo).

e. In computing allowances for continuous periods of travel of less than 24 hours, consult the Per
Deim Reimbursement Guide.

f. No meal or lodging expenses will be reimbursed for any period of travel that occurs within
normal working hours, unless expenses are incurred at least 50 miles from headquarters.

If any of the reimbursement rates stated herein is changed by CalHR, no formal contract
amendment will be required to incorporate the new rates.  However, DHCS shall inform the
contractor, in writing, of the revised travel reimbursement rates and the applicable effective date
of any rate change.
At DHCS’ discretion, changes or revisions made by DHCS to this exhibit, excluding travel
reimbursement policies established by CalHR may be applied retroactively to any agreement to
which a Travel Reimbursement Information exhibit is attached, incorporated by reference, or
applied by DHCS program policy. Changes to the travel reimbursement rates stated herein may
not be applied earlier than the date a rate change is approved by CalHR.

For transportation expenses, the contractor must retain receipts for parking; taxi, airline, bus, or
rail tickets; car rental; or any other travel receipts pertaining to each trip for attachment to an
invoice as substantiation for reimbursement.  Reimbursement may be requested for commercial
carrier fares; private car mileage; parking fees; bridge tolls; taxi, bus, or streetcar fares; and auto
rental fees when substantiated by a receipt.

Auto mileage reimbursement: If a contractor uses his/her or a company car for transportation,
the rate of reimbursement will be 0. cents maximum per mile. If a contractor uses his/her or
a company car "in lieu of" airfare, the air coach fare will be the maximum paid by the State. The
contractor must provide a cost comparison upon request by the State.  Gasoline and routine
automobile repair expenses are not reimbursable.

The contractor is required to furnish details surrounding each period of travel. Travel expense
reimbursement detail may include, but not be limited to: purpose of travel, departure and return
times, destination points, miles driven, mode of transportation, etc. Reimbursement for travel
expenses may be withheld pending receipt of adequate travel documentation.

Department of Health Care Services

CD 01 (Revised 0 /202 )

       Exhibit F



Page 3 of 3

6. Contractors are to consult with the program funding the contract to obtain specific invoicing
procedures.

Per Diem Reimbursement Guide

Length of 
travel 
period

And this condition exists… Meal 
allowed 
with 
receipt 

Less than 
24 hours

Trip begins at or before 6:00 a.m. and ends at or after 9:00 a.m.

Trip ends at least one hour after the regularly scheduled
workday........................................................................................
ends or begins at or before 4:00 p.m. and ends after 7:00
p.m.

Breakfast

Dinner

Lunch or incidentals cannot be claimed on one-day trips.

24 hours or 
more

Trip begins at or before 6:00 a.m. ................................................

Trip begins at or before 11:00 a.m. ..............................................

Trip begins at or before 5:00 p.m. ................................................

Breakfast

Lunch

Dinner

More than 
24 hours

Trip ends at or after 8:00 a.m.......................................................

Trip ends at or after 2:00 p.m.......................................................

Trip ends at or after 7:00 p.m.......................................................

Breakfast

Lunch

Dinner

The following meals may not be claimed for reimbursement: meals provided by the State, 
meals included in hotel expenses or conference fees, meals included in transportation costs 
such as airline tickets, or meals that are otherwise provided.  Snacks and/or continental 
breakfasts such as rolls, juice, and coffee are not considered to be a meal. 

No meal expense may be claimed for reimbursement more than once in any given 24-hour 
period.

Department of Health Care Services

CD 01 (Revised 0 /202 )

       Exhibit F















Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 3140F44B06A140FEB087F746C3D62980 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: 21-10068 A6 Tulare County Office of Education - External.pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 46 Signatures: 4 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Kristen Dingman

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

1501 Capitol Ave

Sacramento, CA  95814-5005

Kristen.Dingman@dhcs.ca.gov

IP Address: 158.96.4.13    

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             10/29/2024 7:24:48 AM

Holder: Kristen Dingman

             Kristen.Dingman@dhcs.ca.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: FedRamp

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Department of Health Care Services (CA 

DHCS)

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Tim A. Hire

tim.hire@tcoe.org

Superintendent

Tulare County Office of Education

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 204.155.11.115

Sent: 10/29/2024 7:28:10 AM

Viewed: 10/29/2024 7:52:55 AM 

Signed: 10/29/2024 7:54:29 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 10/29/2024 7:52:55 AM
      ID: 3078d85e-8594-4066-9684-3763f3735465

Nga Pham

Nga.Pham@dhcs.ca.gov

Chief, Contract Services Section

DHCS

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 158.96.4.13

Sent: 10/29/2024 7:54:31 AM

Viewed: 10/29/2024 8:53:58 AM 

Signed: 10/29/2024 8:56:00 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp



Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Christina Soares

Christina.Soares@dhcs.ca.gov

CEA/Chief, Procurement & Contracting Division

DHCS, Administration-Procurement & Contracting 

Division

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2024 8:56:02 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Richard Nelson

Richard.Nelson@dhcs.ca.gov

Branch Chief

Department of Health Care Services

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2024 8:56:03 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 10/29/2024 7:28:10 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 10/29/2024 8:53:58 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 10/29/2024 8:56:00 AM

Completed Security Checked 10/29/2024 8:56:03 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure







State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
  California Department of Public Health 
  

 
 TOMÁS J. ARAGÓN, M.D., Dr.P.H GAVIN NEWSOM 
Director and State Public Health Officer Governor 

 
 

CDPH Contracts Management Services Section, MS 1802   P.O. Box 997377    
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 

(916) 650-0100  ●   (916) 650-0142 FAX 
Internet Address: www.cdph.ca.gov 

 
 
 

 
Tulare County Office of Education                                                                          11/05/2024 
Attn: Jody Arriaga 
6200 So. Mooney Blvd 
Visalia, CA 93278 
 
Subject: Contract Agreement # 24-10494 
 
Enclosed for your records is a copy of the fully executed Contract Agreement between the 
California Department of Public Health and Tulare County Office of Education. 
 
This contract was approved on November 04, 2024.  The true commencement date of this 
agreement shall be:  October 01, 2024 through June 30, 2026.  
 
Contractors responsiblity: Inovices submitted during the term of the agremenet must be in 
accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring item(s) 
billed on the invoice are consistent with the Exhibit A, SOW and Exhibit B of this agreement. 
 
Please note the follow information be required: 
 
Voluntary Statistical Date Sheet – Persuant to the Public Contract Code 10111 requires state 
agencies capture information on race, ethnicity, gender and sexual orientation of business owners 
on all awarded contracts and procurements. 
 
 The completion and submittal of attached form DGS PD 802 is strictly voluntarly and shall 

not be collected until after the contract award has been made.  If interested in submitting this 
voluntary form please email a copy to the CDPH SB/DVBE Advocate at 
SBDVBE@cdph.ca.gov or mail to the address listed below. 

 
Contract Awards of $5,000 or more - When applicable, Persuant to Title 2, Section 8117.5 of the 
California Code of Regulations requires CDPH to notify the Department of Fair Employment and 
Housing, Office of Compliance Programs of awards made for $5,000 or more.  
 
When applicable, Military and Veteran Code (MVC) 999.5(d), Government Code (GC) 14841 and 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) 1896.78 require that all Prime Contractors that used a 
Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) firm to perform an element of work for a given 
contract to report specific DVBE information, if DVBE subcontractors are utilized in performance of 
this contract/procurement, you must complete and return the attached CDPH 9095 form and return 

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/
mailto:SBDVBE@cdph.ca.gov


 

 
 

CDPH Contracts Management Services Section, MS 1802   P.O. Box 997377    
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 

(916) 650-0100  ●   (916) 650-0142 FAX 
Internet Address: www.cdph.ca.gov 

 
 
 

within 60 days from receipt of final payment and email a copy to the CDPH SB/DBVE Advocate at  
SBDVBE@cdph.ca.gov  or mail to the address listed below. 
 
CA Governors Executive Order N-6-22 – Economic Sanctions – When applicable, contracts for 
$5 Million or more, will include with this letter a separate notification outlining additional requirements 
specified under the Executive Order.  
 
Please contact Program Support Division, Contracts Management Unit, if you have any questions.  
 
cc: CDPH Contract File 
 
 

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/
mailto:SBDVBE@cdph.ca.gov


Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 1 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

 

1. Service Overview 
 

The California Department of Public Health (CDPH) works to protect the public’s health in the Golden State and helps shapes 
positive health outcomes for individuals, families, and communities and to advance the health and well-being of California’s 
diverse people and the communities. The Contractor agrees to provide the following services as described herein. 

The Cannabis Education and Youth Prevention Program (CEYPP) of CDPH’s Substance and Addiction Prevention Branch 
(SAPB) aims to provide health education and prevention to reduce the negative impacts and consequences of cannabis use 
through state and local partnerships, media, and social marketing campaigns. CETPP funding is made available from 
Proposition 64: Adult Use of marijuana Act, Youth Education, Prevention, Early Intervention, and Treatment Account (YEPEITA). 

SB-94 ENY2017 Section 171, 34019(f)(1)(A). Effective November 9, 2016, Proposition 64 legalizes specified personal use 
and cultivation of marijuana for adults 21 years of age or older; reduces criminal penalties for specified marijuana-related 
offenses for adults and juveniles; and authorizes resentencing or dismissal and sealing of prior, eligible marijuana-related 
convictions. The proposition includes provisions of regulation, licensing, and taxation of legalized use. 

A. Training: Organize and conduct a cannabis workshop at the annual Friday Night Live Youth Summit that is held each 
October; issue mini grants to FNL approximately 20 chapters to support cannabis prevention; create a toolkit that builds the 
capacity of FNL chapters to engage in youth cannabis use education, prevention efforts; and develop a cannabis education 
module for the existing Friday Night Live Mentoring (FNLM) curriculum. 

B. Alcohol Assessment: Assess youth attitudes, social norms, and perceptions of underage alcohol use and harm prevention 
among youth and analyze the policy landscape for underage alcohol access for the purpose of formative research and 
recommending the types of materials and programs that would best benefit the youth of California. Research will also 
include an assessment of co-use of alcohol and cannabis products by youth. The alcohol assessment will be to assess 
youth and gauge the types of materials that will resonate with youth on prevention, this will be done through formative 
research/focus groups. 

 
2. Service Location 

 
The services shall be performed in person and virtually and at applicable facilities throughout California. Applicable facilities are 
determined each fiscal year. Facilities could be at local educational facilities; actual locations will be to be determined. CDPH will 
request locations for services to be performed from contractor annually. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 2 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

 
3. Service Hours 

 
The services shall be provided in person and virtually at applicable facilities throughout California. Working hours for FNL will be 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and approved evenings, weekends, and holidays. The contractor is expected to 
be flexible in accordance with the needs of community partners. Some trainings will be conducted after business hours and on 
weekends to meet the needs of the youth audience. 

 
4. Project Representatives 

 
A. The project representatives during the term of this agreement will be: 

California Department of Public 
Health 

Chrissy Corbin 

Telephone: (916) 517-2202 
E-mail: Chrissy.Corbin@cdph.ca.gov 

Tulare County Office of Education 

Nani Dodson 

Telephone: (559) 733-6496 
E-mail: nanid@tcoe.org 

 
B. Direct all inquiries to: 

 

California Department of Public 

Health Substance and Addiction 

Prevention Branch Attention: Chrissy 

Corbin 
1616 Capitol Avenue MS 8701 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 

 
Telephone: (916) 517-2202 
E-mail: Chrissy.Corbin@cdph.ca.gov 

Tulare County Office of Education 

California Friday Night Live Partnership 
Attention: 6200 So. Mooney Blvd 

P.O. Box 5091 

Visalia, CA 93278-5091 

Telephone: (559) 733-
6496 E-mail: 
nanid@tcoe.org 

mailto:Chrissy.Corbin@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:nanid@tcoe.org
mailto:Chrissy.Corbin@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:nanid@tcoe.org


Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 3 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

C. All payments from CDPH to the Contractor; shall be sent to the following address: 
 

 

Remittance Address 

Contractor: Tulare County of Education 

Attention: Accounts Payable 

Address: P.O. BOX 5091 

City, Zip: Visalia, CA 93278 

Phone: (559) 733-6496 

 
E-mail: nanid@tcoe.org 

 
D. Either party may make changes to the Project Representatives, or remittance address, by giving a written notice to the other 

party, said changes shall not require an amendment to this agreement but must be maintained as supporting documentation. 
Note: Remittance address changes will require the contractor to submit a completed CDPH 9083 Governmental Entity 
Taxpayer ID Form or STD 204 Payee Data Record Form and the STD 205 Payee Data Supplement which can be requested 
through the CDPH Project Representatives for processing. 

 
5. Services to be Performed. 

Under the guidance and direction of California Department of Public Health (CDPH), the Tulare County Office of            
Education (TCOE) will complete the following: 

 
 

A. Cannabis Training: Organize and conduct a cannabis workshop at the annual FNL Youth Summit that is held each 

October; issue mini grants to FNL chapters to support cannabis prevention efforts and create a toolkit that builds the 

capacity of FNL chapters to engage in youth cannabis use education, cannabis prevention, efforts; and develop a cannabis 

education module for the existing Friday Night Live Mentoring (FNLM) curriculum. 

mailto:nanid@tcoe.org


Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 4 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

 
B. Youth Conference: Create and facilitate a workshop presentation promoting the cannabis prevention educational materials 

(We Got This) to be delivered at a statewide convening in 2024 and 2025 with youth participants. Convening may be in 
person or virtual. All materials are required to be approved through CDPH prior to dissemination. Brochures/flyer handouts 
are required at each training session. The statewide convening will also include an exhibit table featuring cannabis 
prevention educational materials and other related content. Educational materials will be made available as handouts for 
participants. 

 
C. FNL Mini-Grants: Through a competitive application process, award mini-grant funding to up to 20 FNL chapters to conduct 

youth cannabis prevention and educational campaigns. These campaigns will be designed, developed, and led by FNL 
youth partners, and supported by FNL adult allies. Campaigns may include but are not limited to campus/peer and/or school 
administrator/parent presentations on youth cannabis use prevention resources, partnering with local stakeholders to reduce 
youth access to cannabis products, supporting peers, or other projects as informed by local data and youth experience. FNL 
will provide CDPH with a list of mini grant awardees and updates on their education and prevention efforts. 

 
D. Toolkit: Create a toolkit that builds the capacity of FNL chapters to engage in youth cannabis use education and prevention 

efforts. The toolkit will include but is not limited to general information regarding underage cannabis use, prevalence and 
social norms data, findings from previous survey and focus groups, and project templates (i.e., presentations, social media, 
fact sheets, etc.) that are customizable for each FNL chapter. Toolkit will be available on the CFNLP resource webpage. 
FNL will provide CDPH with the toolkit materials for approval prior to distribution to the chapters. 

 
E. FNL Mentoring: Develop a cannabis education module for the existing Friday Night Live Mentoring (FNLM) curriculum. 

FNLM is a peer-to-peer mentorship model that pairs high school mentors with middle school proteges. The FNLM model 
includes a 16-week curriculum that addresses healthy life choices, alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs (ATOD) refusal skills, 
and general youth development principles as it relates to success in school and workforce readiness. The cannabis module 
will be sent to CDPH for review and approval. 

 
F. General Training: Support efforts of the California Youth Council (CYC) as they continue to educate their peers and 

nationwide stakeholders on youth cannabis use prevention. This can include but is not limited to supporting CYC 
participation in the annual FNL Youth Summit and other conference/presentation opportunities that promote materials 
developed under CDPH contracts; and hosting CYC-led webinars on youth cannabis use prevention education. FNL will 
continually update its website and resource repository to include current cannabis materials developed under this contract. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 5 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

Goal 1: To reach the youth audience on cannabis prevention. 
 

A. Objective 1 - Presentation and prevention materials to be given each year of grant duration starting in October 2024 and 
2025 (date TBD). 

 
1. Major Functions, Tasks, and Activities: 

a. Workshop presentation, to be updated with new information as it becomes available; to include new survey findings 

and reviewed and approved by CDPH prior to presentation(s). 

b. Develop a training process to ensure each presenter can present the material, provide resources, and answer 

questions on the presentation materials. Training process will be developed prior to each summit held in October. 

 
2. Timeline 

a. FNL to develop a cannabis presentation to be given at the statewide convening in October 2024 and 2025 (date to be 
determined) with youth participants. 

b. Annual statewide convening for October 2024 and date to be determined for 2025. 
 

3. Deliverable/Performance Measures: 
a. Presentation and prevention materials given to CDPH for review and approval. 
b. Develop a training process for presenters. 

 
 
 

Goal 2: Up to 20 FNL chapters to conduct youth cannabis prevention and educational campaigns. 
 

A. Objective 2 - Timeline: Launch application for a mini grant by August 2025 
 

1. Major Functions. Tasks, and Activities: 
a. Submit list of selected FNL chapters to CDPH by November 2025 
b. Submit list of FNL chapters, identified project focus. 
c. Report summaries on quarterly basis. CDPH to create a spreadsheet for FNL to report awarded grantees and to 

provide a progress summary. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 6 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

2. Timeline: 
a. Applications for mini grants to be launched by August 2025. 
b. Selection of mini grant awardees to CDPH by November 2025.c) Report of progress given to CDPH quarterly. 

 
3. Deliverable/Performance Measures: 

a. Launch applications for mini grants. 
b. Provide list of awardees to CDPH by November 2025. 
c. Report progress quarterly. 

 
 

Goal 3: Develop a toolkit to engage youth to provide cannabis use education and prevention. 
 
A. Objective 3: Create a toolkit that builds the capacity of FNL chapters to engage in youth cannabis use education  

and prevention efforts. 

1. Major Functions, Tasks, and Activities: 
a. Draft toolkit with general information on cannabis use, prevalence, social norms data, and finding from previous 

survey and focus groups. 
b. Develop a dissemination plan for the toolkit. 

 
 

2. Timeline: 
a. Submit draft toolkit to CDPH by February 2025 
b. Draft a final version of the toolkit to include a dissemination plan; to be reviewed and approved by CDPH. 

 
3. Deliverable/Performance Measures: 

a. Develop toolkit. 
b. Submit draft of toolkit to CDPH for review and approval 
c. Develop a dissemination plan for the toolkit. 
d. Provide quarterly progress updates to CDPH on status. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 7 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

Goal 4: Develop a cannabis education module curriculum. 
 

A. Objective 4: Create cannabis prevention curriculum to be added to the existing FNLM peer-to-peer mentorship model. 
 

1. Major Functions, Tasks, and Activities: 
a. Develop a cannabis education module for the existing Friday Night Live Mentoring (FNLM) curriculum. 

 
2. Timeline: 

a. Submit draft module to CDPH by April 2025. 
b. FNLM module specific to cannabis use education, prevention, to be reviewed and approved by CDPH. 

c. List of FNL counties implementing FNLM, to be provided in annual report (year 2, quarter 4). 

 
3. Deliverable/Performance Measures: 

a. Draft education module and submit to CDPH for review and approval. 
b. Provide a list of counties who implemented the FNLM on the final reporting in year two. 

 
 

Goal 5: Support CYC on education efforts on cannabis use prevention. 

A. Objective 5: Assist CYC on youth cannabis prevention efforts with the annual youth summit and other 
conference/presentation opportunities that promote materials developed under this contract. 

1. Major Functions, Tasks, and Activities: 
a. Support CYC participation at the annual Youth Summit. 
b. Share materials developed under this contract. 
c. Assist with conference/presentation opportunities. 

 
2. Timeline: 

a. Ongoing throughout project term. 
b. Include information/promotional materials on cannabis prevention on FNL webpages; feature cannabis-related 

project strategies at trainings to support mini-grant implementation. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 8 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

3. Deliverable/Performance Measures: 
a. Provide quarterly updates on progress on general training. 

Reporting Requirements for Objectives under A. Cannabis Training 

Reporting, Invoicing, and Communication: FNL to submit quarterly invoices and progress reports and participate in 
meetings with CDPH monthly. 

 
Major functions: 

a. Prepare a work plan and budget detail with all administrative tasks, responsibilities, and deadlines. 

b. Coordinate any budget changes or modifications with CDPH prior to incurring additional expenses. 

c. Prepare quarterly invoices itemizing all expenses. 

d. Provide quarterly progress reports to CDPH on program progress. 

e. Attend monthly check-in meetings with CDPH. 

 
Deliverables/Performance Measures 

a. Quarterly invoices 

b. Quarterly progress reports 

c. Monthly check-in meetings 

d. November 2025 through the end of the contract term, provide CDPH with a summary of mini grant awardees 

progress; to be submitted with quarterly progress reports. 

Timeline: Invoice and progress reports are due 30 days after the end of the quarter except for the final progress report 
which will be due the last day of the contract. The due dates are as follows: 

 
Year 1 - 2024/2025 

• January 31, 2025 

• April 30, 2025 

• July 31, 2025 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 9 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

Year 2 – 2025/2026 

• October 31, 2025 

• January 30, 2026 

• April 30, 2026 

• June 30, 2026, Final progress report – last day of contract 

• July 30, 2026, Final Invoice due – 30 days after contract ends 

 
B. Alcohol Assessment: Assess youth attitudes, social norms, and perceptions of underage alcohol use and harm 

prevention among youth and analyze the policy landscape for underage alcohol access for the purpose of formative 

research and recommending the types of materials and programs that would best benefit the youth of California. 

Research will also include an assessment of co-use of alcohol and cannabis products by youth. 

Goal 6: Alcohol assessment for youth. 
 

A. Objective 6: Assess youth on the perception of underage alcohol use and harm prevention. 
 

1. Major Functions, Tasks, and Activities: 
a. Analyze the current policy landscape for underage alcohol access. 

 
b. Develop a survey and youth focus group protocol that: 

c. Assess the attitudes, social norms, and perceptions of underage alcohol use and harm prevention among youth, 

for the purpose of formative research. 

d. Captures demographic characteristics, that can include gender identity, age, race, ethnicity, geographic 

location, and socioeconomic status. 

e. If applicable, obtain IRB approval in partnership with contracted evaluator. 

f. Prepare a report of the survey and focus group findings. The report will include, but not limited to, an executive 

summary, methodology, and key findings. 

g. Prepare a summary report that complies key survey/focus group findings and policies that will inform future 

programming efforts. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 10 of 10 
Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

 

 

 
2. Timeline: 

a. Survey administration and report summary and recommendations completed to CDPH by June 30, 2026. 
b. Complete survey administration by November 30, 2025, and focus group protocols by March 2026. 
c. Complete survey/focus group report, policy summary report, and programming recommendation report by 

June 30, 2026. 
 

3. Deliverables/Performance Measures 
a. Survey; to be reviewed and approved by CDPH. 

b. Focus group protocol; to be reviewed and approved by CDPH. 

c. Survey and focus group report. 

d. Policy summary report. 

e. Programming recommendation report. 

Reporting Requirements for Objectives under B. Alcohol Assessment 

a. Survey administration and report summary and recommendations completed to CDPH by June 30, 2026. 
b. Complete survey administration by November 30, 2025, and focus group protocols by March 2026; 
c. Complete survey/focus group report, policy summary report, and programming recommendation report by June 30, 

2026. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 1 of 4 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
1. Invoicing and Payment 

 
A. In no event shall the Contractor request reimbursement from the State for obligations 

entered into or for costs incurred prior to the commencement date or after the expiration 
of this Agreement. 

 
B. For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt and approval of any invoice(s) 

received, CDPH agrees to compensate the Contractor for actual expenditures incurred 
in accordance with the Budget Line-Item amounts specified in Attachment I, Budget 
Cost Sheet of this Exhibit. 

 
C. Invoices shall include the Agreement Number and shall be submitted in hard copy or 

electronically not more frequently than monthly in arrears and submitted to CDPH for 
approval to: 

 
 

Chrissy Corbin 
California Department of Public Health, Substance and Addiction Prevention Branch 
MS 8701 1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 74.198 
PO Box 997377 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 

 
The State, at its discretion, may designate an alternate invoice submission address. A 
change in the invoice address shall be accomplished via a written notice to the 
Contractor by the State and shall not require an amendment to this agreement. 

 
D. Invoices shall: 

 
1. Be prepared on Contractor letterhead. If invoices are not on produced letterhead, 

invoices must be signed by an authorized official, employee or agent certifying that 
the expenditures claimed represent activities performed and listed in the Attachment 
I of this Exhibit and are in accordance with Exhibit A. 

2. Identify the billing and/or performance period covered by the invoice as shown in the 
Attachment I of this Exhibit. 

3. Itemize costs for the billing period in the same or greater level of detail as indicated 
in this agreement. Subject to the terms of this agreement, reimbursement may only 
be sought for those costs and/or cost categories expressly identified as allowable in 
this agreement and approved by CDPH. 

 
  E . Amounts Payable 

The amounts payable under this agreement shall not exceed the total amounts of 

$300,000 as identified on the first page of the agreement nor shall it exceed the amount 

shown in Attachment I of this Exhibit. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 2 of 4 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

2. Budget Contingency Clause 
 

A. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent 
years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 
program, this Agreement shall be of no further force and effect. In this event, the State 
shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor or to furnish any other 
considerations under this Agreement and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform 
any provisions of this Agreement. 

 
B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this 

program, the State shall have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability 
occurring to the State or offer an agreement amendment to Contractor to reflect the 
reduced amount. 

 
3. Prompt Payment Clause 

Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, Government Code 

Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927. 

4. Timely Submission of Final Invoice 
A. Final undisputed invoice shall be submitted for payment no more than thirty (30) 

calendar days following the expiration or termination date of this agreement, unless a 
later or alternate deadline is agreed to in writing by the program contract manager. Said 
invoice should be clearly marked “Final Invoice”, indicating that all payment obligations 
of the State under this agreement have ceased and that no further payments are due or 
outstanding. The State may, at its discretion, choose not to honor any delinquent final 
invoice if the Contractor fails to obtain prior written State approval of an alternate final 
invoice submission deadline. 

B. The Contractor is hereby advised of its obligation to submit to the state, with the final 
invoice, a completed copy of the “Contractor’s Release (Exhibit _F_)”. 

 
5. Expense Allowability / Fiscal Documentation 

 
A. Invoice(s) received from the Contractor and accepted for payment by the State shall not 

be deemed evidence of allowable agreement costs. 
 

B. Contractor shall maintain for review and audit by the state for three years and supply to 
CDPH upon request adequate documentation of all expenses claimed pursuant to this 
agreement to permit a determination of expense allowability. 

C. If the allowability of an expense cannot be determined by the State because invoice 
detail, fiscal records, or backup documentation is nonexistent or inadequate according 
to generally accepted accounting principles or practices, all questionable costs may be 
dis-allowed, and payment may be withheld by the State. 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 3 of 4 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

upon receipt of adequate documentation supporting a disallowed or questionable 
expense, reimbursement may resume for the amount substantiated and deemed 
allowable. 

6. Recovery of Overpayments 
 

A. Contractor agrees that claims based upon the terms of this agreement or an audit 
finding and/or an audit finding that is appealed and upheld will be recovered by the 
State by one of the following options: 

 
1. Contractor’s remittance to the State of the full amount of the audit exception within 

30 days following the State’s request for re-payment. 

2. A repayment schedule which is agreeable to both the State and the Contractor. 

B. The State reserves the right to select which option as indicated above in paragraph A 
will be employed and the Contractor will be notified by the State in writing of the claim 
procedure to be utilized. 

 
C. Interest on the unpaid balance of the audit finding or debt will accrue at a rate equal to 

the monthly average of the rate received on investments in the Pooled Money 
Investment Fund commencing on the date that an audit or examination finding is mailed 
to the Contractor, beginning 30 business days after Contractor’s receipt of the State’s 
demand for repayment. 

 
D. If the Contractor has filed a valid appeal regarding the report of audit findings, recovery 

of the overpayments will be deferred until a final administrative decision on the appeal 
has been reached. If the Contractor loses the final administrative appeal, Contractor 
shall repay to the State the over-claimed or disallowed expenses, plus accrued interest. 
Interest accrues from the Contractor’s first receipt of State’s notice requesting 
reimbursement of questioned audit costs or disallowed expenses. 

 
7. Advance Payments 

 
No advance payment is allowed under this Contract. 

 
8. Travel and Per Diem Reimbursement 

Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem shall be at the rates currently in effect, 
as established by the California Department of Human Resources (Cal HR). If the Cal HR 
rates change during the term of the Agreement, the new rates shall apply upon their effective 
date and no amendment to this Agreement shall be necessary. No travel outside the state of 
California shall be reimbursed without prior authorization from the CDPH. Verbal authorization 
should be confirmed in writing. Written authorization may be in a form including fax or email 
confirmation. See CalHR website: 
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 4 of 4 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

9. Proper Use of Funds

A. Proper Use of Funds

1) The funds for this contract may be used for the following items, with supportive
justification, tracking, and reporting of outcomes:

a. Incentives such as low value restricted gift cards (e.g., Walmart, Safeway,
transportation vouchers), and/or other project-related incentives.

b. Client incentives, such as low value gift cards, may be approved as Behavioral
Modification Materials (BMM). BMMs are provided to program participants to
motivate and/or reinforce positive behavior and/or involvement in Tulare County
Office of Education and (e.g. prevention activities).

c. The value of the incentive is limited to $50.00 of merchandise per person per
activity participation in Tulare County Office of Education.

d. Current CDPH approvals require the BMM to be justified with scientific proof of
behavior change, and be accompanied by a targeted distribution plan, incentive
tracking log, and reporting of incentive distribution.

e. Incentives cannot be used for the purchase of alcohol, tobacco, drug or cannabis
products.

f. There is no prepayment for incentives. The Contractor will only be reimbursed for
the total cost of incentives distributed during each month/quarter.

2) The Contractor is responsible for the possession, security (e.g., will keep the BMMs
in a secure location), and accountability of the BMMs. The Contractor will prepare a
log sheet that will track and identify each of the BMMs, value, transfer date, and
recipient. CDPH reserves the right to conduct audit of such log sheet on a once per
year basis and agrees to provide prior notification to Contractor within a reasonable
time frame for the scheduling of said audit.

B. The funds for this contract cannot be used for:

1) Stuff We All Get (SWAG) - The purchase of free promotional items for health
promotion events including but not limited to pens, mugs, t-shirts, posters, key
chains, bumper stickers, etc. This provision is in accordance with the California State
Constitution, Article 16, section 6, which prohibits any gifting of public funds.

2) Individual prizes or high value incentives (e.g., iPads, iPhones) for health promotion
competitions.

3) Cash incentives paid to an individual.
4) Scholarships paid to an individual or a school on behalf of an individual.
5) Food (e.g., sponsored lunch or dinner at provider education sessions, brown bag

lunches, buffets at screening events).
6) The purchase, lease, or other support of county vehicles or mobile testing units.
7) Construction, renovation, improvement, or repair of property.



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page  of
Exhibit B 

Budget Narrative

Budget Narrative YR1 (October 1, 2024 – September 30, 2025)
1. Personnel

a. Program Coordinator: The Program Coordinator will oversee and manage toolkit &
module development, coordinate with technical assistance & evaluation
subcontractors, prepare for mini-grant issuance, and support all aspects of general
training. (Objective 1-6)

i. Salary: $72,682.45
This is based on 0.75 FTE of an annual salary of $116,291.92; 10 months in
Year 1.

ii. Benefits: $39,684.62

Estimated total personnel cost: $112,367.07
2. General Expenses

a. Printing & Postage: This line item will support the cost of postage and printing for
cannabis prevention and alcohol evaluation for training materials, youth educational
event materials, toolkits, reports, stock photography, etc. Printing will be completed
in-house and on a as needed basis.  (Objective 1-6)

Estimated cost: $500.00 

b. Communication: This line item will support the cost to provide training and education
on cannabis prevention and alcohol evaluation for items related to phone lines, cell
phone stipends, website hosting/maintenance, and online e-file sharing/ sending
accounts, as well as virtual meeting platforms, teleconferencing services, email
distribution and marketing services, and content development applications.
(Objective 1-6)

Estimated cost: $250.00 

c. Office Space: Costs include rent and utilities associated; charges to the contract will
be in accordance with the following formula: $2,200 rent/9 FTE x 0.75 FTE x 10
months. (Objective 1-6)

Estimated cost: $1,833.33

d. Training & Conferences: The CFNLP will coordinate a training event for youth
participants and their adult allies that will focus on cannabis prevention and
education. This conference will provide cannabis prevention education through in
person training and educational materials to participants. The CFNLP will plan,
organize, and facilitate the youth convening. Expenses will include, hotel
accommodations, meals, meeting room rental, AV rental, presenter stipends,
technology and video services, and subcontractor fees. Expenses may also include
potential virtual alternatives including event platforms, meeting technology, virtual
speaker/emcee stipends, and coordination services. FNL estimates to have (5)
speakers and stipends are estimated to be $1,000 for each speaker per year.
(Objective 1,5)

Estimated cost: $10,500.00



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page  of
Exhibit B 

Budget 

3. Contractual Services

a. Toolkit Development: Subcontractor with specific expertise in youth development,
prevention and education strategies, and youth cannabis use knowledge will work
collaborative with TCOE/CFNLP to develop the cannabis toolkit. Subcontractor will
be long-established FNL partner with both statewide and local expertise and
experience. Subcontractor will partner with TCOE/CFNLP to develop content
(guides, activities, and resource information) and create toolkit formatting/graphic
design elements. (Objective 3)

Estimated cost: $11,000.00

b. FNL Mentoring Module Development: Subcontractor with specific expertise in FNL’s
unique mentor model, youth development, ATOD prevention strategies, and
curriculum writing. Subcontractor will be long-established FNL partner with both
statewide and local expertise and experience. This individual has implemented the
FNL mentor model with fidelity at the local level and now engages as expert
consultant on FNL Mentoring efforts, outreach, promotion, and alignment to best
practices. (Objective 4)

Estimated cost: $5,500.00

c. Evaluation (Alcohol): This line item will support the cost of a subcontractor with
experience in evaluation to support the alcohol component of the scope of work.
Services may include, but are not limited to survey development, focus group
protocol development, facilitation of IRB process, administration guidance, data
analysis, report production, and general evaluation support. Subcontractor will be
long-established FNL partner with access to evaluation supports (i.e., internal review
board [IRB] familiarity, research assistants, analyzing methods, etc.). Subcontractor
provided support in previous CFNLP-CDPH cannabis educational awareness
materials contract. (Objective 6)

Estimated cost: $10,000.00

4. Other Operating Expenses

a. Indirect: The projected government indirect cost rate for the Tulare County Office of
Education for the 2024-2025 State Fiscal Year is 7.88%. The indirect rate is applied
to only Personnel (salary & benefits).

Estimated cost: $8,855



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page  of

1. Personnel

a. Program Coordinator: The Program Coordinator will oversee and manage mini-grant
application review, issuance, and project monitoring, coordinate with technical
assistance & evaluation subcontractors, and support all aspects of general training.
(Objective 1-6)

i. Salary: $30,037.37
This is based on 0.25 FTE of an annual salary of $120,149.48.

ii. Benefits: $16,400.40

Estimated total personnel cost: $46,437.77
2. General Expenses

a. Printing & Postage: This line item will support the cost of postage and printing for
cannabis prevention and alcohol evaluation for training materials, youth educational
event materials, toolkits, reports, stock photography, etc. Printing will be completed
in-house and is on a as-needed basis. (Objective 1-6)

Estimated cost: $500.00

b. Communication: This line item will support the cost to provide training and education
on cannabis prevention and alcohol evaluation for items related to phone lines, cell
phone stipends, website hosting/maintenance, and online e-file sharing/ sending
accounts, as well as virtual meeting platforms, teleconferencing services, email
distribution and marketing services, and content development applications.
(Objective 1-6)

Estimated cost: $250.00 

c. Office Space: Costs include rent and utilities associated; charges to the contract will
be in accordance with the following formula: $2,200 rent/9 FTE x 0.25 FTE x 12
months. (Objective 1-6)

Estimated cost: $733.33 

d. Training and Conferences: The CFNLP will coordinate a training event for youth
participants and their adult allies that will focus on cannabis prevention and
education. This conference will provide cannabis prevention education through in
person training and educational materials to participants. The CFNLP will plan,
organize, and facilitate the youth convening. Expenses will include, hotel
accommodations, meals, meeting room rental, AV rental, presenter stipends,
technology and video services, and subcontractor fees. Expenses may also include
potential virtual alternatives including event platforms, meeting technology, virtual
speaker/emcee stipends, and coordination services. FNL estimates to have (5)
speakers and stipends are estimated to be $1,000 for each speaker per year.
(objective 1, 5)

Estimated cost: $12,298.90

 
Budget Narrative YR 2 (October 1, 2025 – June 30, 2026) 

Exhibit B 
Budget Narrative



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page  of
Exhibit B 

Budget Narrative 
e. FNL Chapter Mini-Grants: Selected mini-grant chapters will have expertise in youth

development principles and have demonstrated record of conducting youth-led
prevention and education campaigns. FNL plans to fund to up to 20 FNL chapters to
conduct youth cannabis prevention and educational campaigns. These campaigns
will be designed, developed, and led by FNL youth partners, and supported by FNL
adult allies.  (Objective 2)

Estimated cost: $60,000.00 (up to 20 sites x $3,000 per site = $60,000) 

f. Technical Assistance: This line items will support expert trainers to support CFNLP’s
general training efforts. Subcontractor(s) will have expertise in subject matter
(cannabis), youth development principles, and youth-led prevention and education
campaigns. (Objective 1, 5)

Estimated cost: $3,000.00

3. Contractual Services

a. Evaluation (Alcohol): Evaluation: This line item will support the cost of a
subcontractor with experience in evaluation to support the alcohol component of the
scope of work. Services may include, but are not limited to survey development,
focus group protocol development, facilitation of IRB process, administration
guidance, data analysis, report production, and general evaluation support.
Subcontractor will be long-established FNL partner with access to evaluation
supports (i.e., internal review board [IRB] familiarity, research assistants, analyzing
methods, etc.). Subcontractor support previous CFNLP-CDPH cannabis educational
awareness materials contract. (Objective 6)

Estimated cost: $12,000.00 

4. Other Operating Expenses

a. Indirect: The projected government indirect cost rate for the Tulare County Office of
Education for the 2024-2025 State Fiscal Year is 8.56%. The indirect rate is applied
to only Personnel (salary & benefits)

Estimated cost: $3,975.07 



Exhibit B
Attachment I, Budget Cost Sheet

Tulare County Office of Education
24-10494

Page 1 of 1

Totals

Personnel Objectives Annual Salary 
Position Title Range FTE Avg. Salary Budget FTE Salary Budget

Program Coordinator Objective 1-6 $116,290 - $120,150 75% $116,292 $72,682 25% $120,149 $30,037 $102,720

Total Salaries and Wages $72,682 $30,037 $102,720
Fringe Benefits 54.60% 54.60%

$39,685 $16,400 $56,085

Total Personnel $112,367 $46,437 $158,805

Operating Expenses Budget Budget
Printing and Postage (In-house) Objective 1-6 $500 $500

Communication Objective 1-6 $250 $250
Office Space Objective 1-6 $1,833 $733
Training and Conferences Objective 1, 5 $10,500 $12,299
Mini Grants Objective 2 $60,000
Technical Assistance - Trainers Objective 1, 5 $3,000

Total Operating Expenses $13,083 $76,782 $89,866

Subcontractor Budget Budget
Toolkit Development  (TBD) Objective 3 $11,000
FNL Mentoring Module Development  (TBD) Objective 4 $5,500
Evaluation - Alcohol (TBD) Objective 6 $10,000 $12,000

Total Subcontracts $26,500 $12,000 $38,500

Total Indirect Costs Percentage Budget Percentage Budget

7.9% $8,855 8.6% $3,975 $12,830

Total Costs $160,805 $139,195 $300,000

Year (1) Year (2)



1. Procurement Rules

(Applicable to all subvention aid/Local assistance contracts in which equipment, property,
commodities and/or supplies are furnished by CDPH or expenses for said items are reimbursed with
state or federal funds.)

a. Equipment definitions

Wherever the term equipment /property is used, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) Major equipment/property: A tangible or intangible item having a base unit cost of $2,500
or more with a life expectancy of one (1) year or more and is either furnished by CDPH or the
cost is reimbursed through this Agreement.  Software and videos are examples of intangible
items that meet this definition.

(2) Minor equipment/property: A tangible item having a base unit cost of less than $2,500 with
a life expectancy of one (1) year or more and is either furnished by CDPH or the cost is
reimbursed through this Agreement.

b. Government and public entities (including state colleges/universities and auxiliary
organizations), whether acting as a contractor, may secure all commodities, supplies, equipment
and services related to such purchases that are required in performance of this Agreement.  Said
procurements are subject to Paragraphs d through g of this provision.  Paragraph c of this
provision shall also apply, if equipment purchases are delegated to subcontractors that are
nonprofit organizations or commercial businesses.

c. Nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses, whether acting as a contractor and/or
subcontractor, may secure commodities, supplies, equipment and services related to such
purchases for performance under this Agreement.

(1) Equipment purchases shall not exceed $50,000 annually.

To secure equipment above the annual maximum limit of $50,000, the Contractor shall make
arrangements through the appropriate CDPH Program Contract Manager, to have all
remaining equipment purchased through CDPH’s Purchasing Unit.  The cost of equipment
purchased by or through CDPH shall be deducted from the funds available in this Agreement.
Contractor shall submit to the CDPH Program Contract Manager a list of equipment
specifications for those items that the State must procure.  The State may pay the vendor
directly for such arranged equipment purchases and title to the equipment will remain with
CDPH.  The equipment will be delivered to the Contractor's address, as stated on the face of
the Agreement, unless the Contractor notifies the CDPH Program Contract Manager, in
writing, of an alternate delivery address.

(2) All equipment purchases are subject to paragraphs d through g of this provision.  Paragraph
b of this provision shall also apply, if equipment purchases are delegated to subcontractors
that are either a government or public entity.

(3) Nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses, shall use a procurement system that
meets the following standards:

(a) Maintain a code or standard of conduct that shall govern the performance of its officers,

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 1 of 16



employees, or agents engaged in awarding procurement contracts.  No employee, officer, 
or agent shall participate in the selection, award, or administration of a procurement, or 
bid contract in which, to his or her knowledge, he or she has a financial interest. 

(b) Procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides, to the maximum extent
practical, open, and free competition.

(c) Procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides for all of the following:

[1] Avoid purchasing unnecessary or duplicate items.

[2] Equipment solicitations shall be based upon a clear and accurate description of the
technical requirements of the goods to be procured.

[3] Take positive steps to utilize small and veteran owned businesses.

d. Unless waived or otherwise stipulated in writing by CDPH, prior written authorization from the
appropriate CDPH Program Contract Manager will be required before the Contractor will be
reimbursed for any purchase exceeding $2,500 or more for commodities, supplies, equipment,
and services related to such purchases.  The Contractor must provide in its request for
authorization all particulars necessary, as specified by CDPH, for evaluating the necessity or
desirability of incurring such costs.  The term "purchase" excludes the purchase of services from
a subcontractor and public utility services at rates established for uniform applicability to the
general public.

e. In special circumstances, determined by CDPH (e.g., when CDPH has a need to monitor certain
purchases, etc.), CDPH may require prior written authorization and/or the submission of paid
vendor receipts for any purchase, regardless of dollar amount.  CDPH reserves the right to either
deny claims for reimbursement or to request repayment for any Contractor purchase that CDPH
determines to be unnecessary in carrying out performance under this Agreement.

f. The Contractor must maintain a copy or narrative description of the procurement system,
guidelines, rules, or regulations that will be used to make purchases under this Agreement.  The
State reserves the right to request a copy of these documents and to inspect the purchasing
practices of the Contractor at any time.

g. For all purchases, the Contractor must maintain copies of all paid vendor invoices, documents,
bids and other information used in vendor selection, for inspection or audit.  Justifications
supporting the absence of bidding (i.e., sole source purchases) shall also be maintained on file
by the Contractor for inspection or audit.

2. Equipment Ownership / Inventory / Disposition

(Applicable to agreements in which equipment and/or property is furnished by CDPH and/or when
said items are purchased or reimbursed with state)

a. Wherever the terms equipment and/or property are used in this provision, the definitions in
provision 1, paragraph a., shall apply.

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, all equipment and/or property that are
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by CDPH under the terms of this
Agreement shall be considered state equipment and the property of CDPH.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 2 of 16



(1) CDPH requires the reporting, tagging and annual inventorying of all equipment and/or
property that is furnished by CDPH or purchased/reimbursed with funds provided through this
Agreement.

Upon receipt of equipment and/or property, the Contractor shall report the receipt to the CDPH
Program Contract Manager.  To report the receipt of said items and to receive property tags,
Contractor shall use a form or format designated by CDPH’s Asset Management Unit.  If the
appropriate form (i.e., Contractor Equipment Purchased with CDPH Funds) does not
accompany this Agreement, Contractor shall request a copy from the CDPH Program Contract
Manager.

(2) If the Contractor enters into an agreement with a term of more than twelve months, the
Contractor shall submit an annual inventory of state equipment and/or property to the CDPH
Program Contract Manager using a form or format designated by CDPH’s Asset Management
Unit.  If an inventory report form (i.e., Inventory/Disposition of CDPH-Funded Equipment) does
not accompany this Agreement, Contractor shall request a copy from the CDPH Program
Contract Manager.  Contractor shall:

(a) Include in the inventory report, equipment and/or property in the Contractor's possession
and/or in the possession of a subcontractor (including independent consultants).

(b) Submit the inventory report to CDPH according to the instructions appearing on the
inventory form or issued by the CDPH Program Contract Manager.

(c) Contact the CDPH Program Contract Manager to learn how to remove, trade-in, sell,
transfer or survey off, from the inventory report, expired equipment and/or property that is
no longer wanted, usable or has passed its life expectancy.  Instructions will be supplied
by CDPH’s Asset Management Unit.

b. Title to state equipment and/or property shall not be affected by its incorporation or attachment to
any property not owned by the State.

c. Unless otherwise stipulated, CDPH shall be under no obligation to pay the cost of restoration, or
rehabilitation of the Contractor's and/or Subcontractor's facility which may be affected by the
removal of any state equipment and/or property.

d. The Contractor shall maintain and administer a sound business program for ensuring the proper
use, maintenance, repair, protection, insurance and preservation of state equipment and/or
property.

(1) In administering this provision, CDPH may require the Contractor to repair or replace, to
CDPH’s satisfaction, any damaged, lost or stolen state equipment and/or property.  Contractor
shall immediately file a theft report with the appropriate police agency or the California
Highway Patrol and Contractor shall promptly submit one copy of the theft report to the CDPH
Program Contract Manager.

e. Unless otherwise stipulated by the program funding this Agreement, equipment and/or property
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by CDPH under the terms of this
Agreement, shall only be used for performance of this Agreement or another CDPH agreement.

f. Within sixty (60) calendar days prior to the termination or end of this Agreement, the Contractor

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 3 of 16



shall provide a final inventory report of equipment and/or property to the CDPH Program Contract 
Manager and shall, at that time, query CDPH as to the requirements, including the manner and 
method, of returning state equipment and/or property to CDPH.  Final disposition of equipment 
and/or property shall be at CDPH expense and according to CDPH instructions.  Equipment 
and/or property disposition instructions shall be issued by CDPH immediately after receipt of the 
final inventory report.  At the termination or conclusion of this Agreement, CDPH may at its 
discretion, authorize the continued use of state equipment and/or property for performance of 
work under a different CDPH agreement. 

g. Motor Vehicles

(Applicable only if motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished
by CDPH under this Agreement.)

(1) If motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed or furnished by CDPH under the terms of this
Agreement, within thirty (30) calendar days prior to the termination or end of this Agreement,
the Contractor shall return such vehicles to CDPH and shall deliver all necessary documents
of title or registration to enable the proper transfer of a marketable title to CDPH.

(2) If motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed or furnished by CDPH under the terms of this
Agreement, the State of California shall be the legal owner of said motor vehicles and
the Contractor shall be the registered owner.  The Contractor shall only use said vehicles
for the performance under the terms of this Agreement.

(3) The Contractor agree that all operators of motor vehicles, purchased/reimbursed or furnished
by CDPH under the terms of this Agreement, shall hold a valid State of California driver's
license.  In the event that ten or more passengers are to be transported in any one vehicle,
the operator shall also hold a State of California Class B driver's license.

(4) If any motor vehicle is purchased/reimbursed or furnished by CDPH under the terms of this
Agreement, the Contractor, as applicable, shall provide, maintain, and certify that, at a
minimum, the following type and amount of automobile liability insurance is in effect during
the term of this Agreement or any extension period during which any vehicle remains in the
Contractor's possession:

Automobile Liability Insurance

(a) The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies that it possesses or will obtain
automobile liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury
and property damage combined.  Said insurance must be obtained and made effective
upon the delivery date of any motor vehicle, purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds
or furnished by CDPH under the terms of this Agreement, to the Contractor.

(b) The Contractor shall, as soon as practical, furnish a copy of the certificate of insurance to
the CDPH Program Contract Manager.  The certificate of insurance shall identify the
CDPH contract or agreement number for which the insurance applies.

(c) The Contractor agree that bodily injury and property damage liability insurance, as
required herein, shall remain in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement or until
such time as the motor vehicle is returned to CDPH.

(d) The Contractor agree to provide, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of said

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 4 of 16



insurance coverage, a copy of a new certificate of insurance evidencing continued 
coverage, as indicated herein, for not less than the remainder of the term of this 
Agreement, the term of any extension or continuation thereof, or for a period of not less 
than one (1) year. 

(e) The Contractor, if not a self-insured government and/or public entity, must provide
evidence, that any required certificates of insurance contain the following provisions:

[1] The insurer will not cancel the insured's coverage without giving thirty (30) calendar
days prior written notice to the State.

[2] The State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are included as
additional insureds, but only with respect to work performed for the State under this
Agreement and any extension or continuation of this Agreement.

[3] The insurance carrier shall notify CDPH, in writing, of the Contractor's failure to pay
premiums; its cancellation of such policies; or any other substantial change, including,
but not limited to, the status, coverage, or scope of the required insurance.  Such
notices shall contain a reference to each agreement number for which the insurance
was obtained.

(f) The Contractor is hereby advised that copies of certificates of insurance may be subject
to review and approval by the Department of General Services (DGS), Office of Risk and
Insurance Management.  The Contractor shall be notified by CDPH, in writing, if this
provision is applicable to this Agreement.  If DGS approval of the certificate of insurance
is required, the Contractor agrees that no work or services shall be performed prior to
obtaining said approval.

(g) In the event the Contractor fails to keep insurance coverage, as required herein, in effect
at all times during vehicle possession, CDPH may, in addition to any other remedies it
may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event.

3. Subcontract Requirements

(Applicable to agreements under which services are to be performed by subcontractors including
independent consultants.)

a. Prior written authorization will be required before the Contractor enters into or is reimbursed for
any subcontract for services exceeding $2,500 for any artices, supplies, equipment, or services.
The Contractor shall obtain at least three competive quatations which should be submitted or
adequate justification provided for the absence of bidding.

b. CDPH reserves the right to approve or disapprove the selection of subcontractors and with
advance written notice, require the substitution of subcontractors and require the Contractor to
terminate subcontracts entered into in support of this Agreement.

(1) Upon receipt of a written notice from CDPH requiring the substitution and/or termination of a
subcontract, the Contractor shall take steps to ensure the completion of any work in progress
and select a replacement, if applicable, within 30 calendar days, unless a longer period is
agreed to by CDPH.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 6 of 16



c. Actual subcontracts (i.e., written agreement between the Contractor and a subcontractor)
exceeding $2,500 are subject to the prior review and written approval of CDPH.

d. Contractor shall maintain a copy of each subcontract entered into in support of this Agreement
and shall, upon request by CDPH, make copies available for approval, inspection, or audit.

e. CDPH assumes no responsibility for the payment of subcontractors used in the performance of
this Agreement.  Contractor accepts sole responsibility for the payment of subcontractors used in
the performance of this Agreement.

f. The Contractor is responsible for all performance requirements under this Agreement even
though performance may be carried out through a subcontract.

g. The Contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts for services include provision(s) requiring
compliance with applicable terms and conditions specified in this Agreement and shall be the
subcontractor’s sole point of contact for all matters related to the performance and payment during
the term of this Agreement.

h. The Contractor agrees to include the following clause, relevant to record retention, in all
subcontracts for services:

"(Subcontractor Name) agrees to maintain and preserve, until three years after termination
of (Agreement Number) and final payment from CDPH to the Contractor, to permit CDPH
or any duly authorized representative, to have access to, examine or audit any pertinent
books, documents, papers and records related to this subcontract and to allow interviews
of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records."

4. Income Restrictions

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that any refunds, rebates,
credits, or other amounts (including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by the Contractor
under this Agreement shall be paid by the Contractor to CDPH, to the extent that they are properly
allocable to costs for which the Contractor has been reimbursed by CDPH under this Agreement.

5. Site Inspection

The State, through any authorized representatives, has the right at all reasonable times to inspect or
otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed hereunder including subcontract
supported activities and the premises in which it is being performed.  If any inspection or evaluation
is made of the premises of the Contractor or Subcontractor, the Contractor shall provide and shall
require Subcontractors to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and
convenience of the authorized representatives in the performance of their duties.  All inspections and
evaluations shall be performed in such a manner as will not unduly delay the services performed.

6. Intellectual Property Rights

a. Ownership

(1) Except where CDPH has agreed in a signed writing to accept a license, CDPH shall be and
remain, without additional compensation, the sole owner of any and all rights, title and interest
in all Intellectual Property, from the moment of creation, whether or not jointly conceived, that

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 7 of 16



are made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or CDPH and which 
result directly or indirectly from this Agreement. 

(2) For the purposes of this Agreement, Intellectual Property means recognized protectable rights
and interest such as: patents, (whether or not issued) copyrights, trademarks, service marks,
applications for any of the foregoing, inventions, trade secrets, trade dress, logos, insignia,
color combinations, slogans, moral rights, right of publicity, author’s rights, contract and
licensing rights, works, mask works, industrial design rights, rights of priority, know how,
design flows, methodologies, devices, business processes, developments, innovations, good
will and all other legal rights protecting intangible proprietary information as may exist now
and/or here after come into existence, and all renewals and extensions, regardless of whether
those rights arise under the laws of the United States, or any other state, country or
jurisdiction.

(a) For the purposes of the definition of Intellectual Property, “works” means all literary works,
writings and printed matter including the medium by which they are recorded or
reproduced, photographs, art work, pictorial and graphic representations and works of a
similar nature, film, motion pictures, digital images, animation cells, and other audiovisual
works including positives and negatives thereof, sound recordings, tapes, educational
materials, interactive videos and any other materials or products created, produced,
conceptualized and fixed in a tangible medium of expression.  It includes preliminary and
final products and any materials and information developed for the purposes of producing
those final products.  Works does not include articles submitted to peer review or reference
journals or independent research projects.

(3) In the performance of this Agreement, Contractor will exercise and utilize certain of its
Intellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement.  In addition,
under this Agreement, Contractor may access and utilize certain of CDPH’s Intellectual
Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement.  Except as otherwise set
forth herein, Contractor shall not use any of CDPH’s Intellectual Property now existing or
hereafter existing for any purposes without the prior written permission of CDPH.  Except as
otherwise set forth herein, neither the Contractor nor CDPH shall give any ownership
interest in or rights to its Intellectual Property to the other Party.  If during the term of
this Agreement, Contractor accesses any third-party Intellectual Property that is licensed to
CDPH, Contractor agrees to abide by all license and confidentiality restrictions applicable to
CDPH in the third-party’s license agreement.

(4) Contractor agrees to cooperate with CDPH in establishing or maintaining CDPH’s exclusive
rights in the Intellectual Property, and in assuring CDPH’s sole rights against third parties with
respect to the Intellectual Property.  If the Contractor enters into any agreements or
subcontracts with other parties in order to perform this Agreement, Contractor shall require
the terms of the Agreement(s) to include all Intellectual Property provisions.  Such terms must
include, but are not limited to, the subcontractor assigning and agreeing to assign to CDPH
all rights, title and interest in Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced
to practice by the subcontractor, Contractor or CDPH and which result directly or indirectly
from this Agreement or any subcontract.

(5) Contractor further agrees to assist and cooperate with CDPH in all reasonable respects, and
execute all documents and, subject to reasonable availability, give testimony and take all
further acts reasonably necessary to acquire, transfer, maintain, and enforce CDPH’s
Intellectual Property rights and interests.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page 8 of 16



b. Retained Rights / License Rights

(1) Except for Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by
Contractor or CDPH and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement, Contractor
shall retain title to all of its Intellectual Property to the extent such Intellectual Property is in
existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement.  Contractor hereby grants to CDPH,
without additional compensation, a permanent, non-exclusive, royalty free, paid-up,
worldwide, irrevocable, perpetual, non-terminable license to use, reproduce, manufacture,
sell, offer to sell, import, export, modify, publicly and privately display/perform, distribute, and
dispose Contractor’s Intellectual Property with the right to sublicense through multiple layers,
for any purpose whatsoever, to the extent it is incorporated in the Intellectual Property
resulting from this Agreement, unless Contractor assigns all rights, title and interest in the
Intellectual Property as set forth herein.

(2) Nothing in this provision shall restrict, limit, or otherwise prevent Contractor from using any
ideas, concepts, know-how, methodology or techniques related to its performance under this
Agreement, provided that Contractor’s use does not infringe the patent, copyright, trademark
rights, license or other Intellectual Property rights of CDPH or third party, or result in a breach
or default of any provisions of this Exhibit or result in a breach of any provisions of law relating
to confidentiality.

c. Copyright

(1) Contractor agrees that for purposes of copyright law, all works [as defined in Paragraph a,
subparagraph (2)(a) of this provision] of authorship made by or on behalf of Contractor in
connection with Contractor’s performance of this Agreement shall be deemed “works made
for hire”.  Contractor further agrees that the work of each person utilized by Contractor in
connection with the performance of this Agreement will be a “work made for hire,” whether
that person is an employee of Contractor or that person has entered into an agreement with
Contractor to perform the work.  Contractor shall enter into a written agreement with any such
person that: (i) all work performed for Contractor shall be deemed a “work made for hire” under
the Copyright Act and (ii) that person shall assign all right, title, and interest to CDPH to any
work product made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or CDPH
and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement.

(2) All materials, including, but not limited to, visual works or text, reproduced or distributed
pursuant to this Agreement that include Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from,
or reduced to practice by Contractor or CDPH and which result directly or indirectly from this
Agreement, shall include CDPH’s notice of copyright, which shall read in 3mm or larger
typeface: “© [Enter Current Year e.g., 2014, etc.], Department of Public Health.  This material
may not be reproduced or disseminated without prior written permission from the Department
of Public Health.”  This notice should be placed prominently on the materials and set apart
from other matter on the page where it appears.  Audio productions shall contain a similar
audio notice of copyright.

d. Patent Rights

With respect to inventions made by Contractor in the performance of this Agreement, which did
not result from research and development specifically included in the Agreement’s scope of work,
Contractor hereby grants to CDPH a license as described under Section b of this provision for
devices or material incorporating, or made through the use of such inventions.  If such inventions
result from research and development work specifically included within the Agreement’s scope of

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page 9 of 16



work, then Contractor agrees to assign to CDPH, without additional compensation, all its right, 
title and interest in and to such inventions and to assist CDPH in securing United States and 
foreign patents with respect thereto. 

e. Third-Party Intellectual Property

Except as provided herein, Contractor agrees that its performance of this Agreement shall not be
dependent upon or include any Intellectual Property of Contractor or third party without first: (i)
obtaining CDPH’s prior written approval; and (ii) granting to or obtaining for CDPH, without
additional compensation, a license, as described in Section b of this provision, for any of
Contractor’s or third-party’s Intellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this
Agreement.  If such a license upon the these terms is unattainable, and CDPH determines that
the Intellectual Property should be included in or is required for Contractor’s performance of this
Agreement, Contractor shall obtain a license under terms acceptable to CDPH.

f. Warranties

(1) Contractor represents and warrants that:

(a) It is free to enter into and fully perform this Agreement.

(b) It has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for its performance of this
Agreement.

(c) Neither Contractor’s performance of this Agreement, nor the exercise by either Party of
the rights granted in this Agreement, nor any use, reproduction, manufacture, sale, offer
to sell, import, export, modification, public and private display/performance, distribution,
and disposition of the Intellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to
practice by Contractor or CDPH and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement
will infringe upon or violate any Intellectual Property right, non-disclosure obligation, or
other proprietary right or interest of any third-party or entity now existing under the laws
of, or hereafter existing or issued by, any state, the United States, or any foreign country.
There is currently no actual or threatened claim by any such third party based on an
alleged violation of any such right by Contractor.

(d) Neither Contractor’s performance nor any part of its performance will violate the right of
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against any person or entity.

(e) It has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for Intellectual Property
including, but not limited to, consents, waivers or releases from all authors of music or
performances used, and talent (radio, television and motion picture talent), owners of any
interest in and to real estate, sites, locations, property or props that may be used or shown.

(f) It has not granted and shall not grant to any person or entity any right that would or might
derogate, encumber, or interfere with any of the rights granted to CDPH in this Agreement.

(g) It has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds will not be used
in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance of
computer software in violation of copyright laws.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 10 of 16



(h) It has no knowledge of any outstanding claims, licenses or other charges, liens, or
encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever that could affect in any way Contractor’s
performance of this Agreement.

(2) CDPH MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT THE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RESULTING
FROM THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT INFRINGE UPON ANY PATENT, TRADEMARK,
COPYRIGHT OR THE LIKE, NOW EXISTING OR SUBSEQUENTLY ISSUED.

g. Intellectual Property Indemnity

(1) Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless CDPH and its licensees and assignees,
and its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, successors, and users of its
products,  (“Indemnitees”) from and against all claims, actions, damages, losses, liabilities (or
actions or proceedings with respect to any thereof), whether or not rightful, arising from any
and all actions or claims by any third party or expenses related thereto (including, but not
limited to, all legal expenses, court costs, and attorney’s fees incurred in investigating,
preparing, serving as a witness in, or defending against, any such claim, action, or proceeding,
commenced or threatened) to which any of the Indemnitees may be subject, whether or not
Contractor is a party to any pending or threatened litigation, which arise out of or are related
to (i) the incorrectness or breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or
agreements of Contractor pertaining to Intellectual Property; or (ii) any Intellectual Property
infringement, or any other type of actual or alleged infringement claim, arising out of CDPH’s
use, reproduction, manufacture, sale, offer to sell, distribution, import, export, modification,
public and private performance/display, license, and disposition of the Intellectual Property
made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or CDPH and which
result directly or indirectly from this Agreement.  This indemnity obligation shall apply
irrespective of whether the infringement claim is based on a patent, trademark or copyright
registration that issued after the effective date of this Agreement.  CDPH reserves the right to
participate in and/or control, at Contractor’s expense, any such infringement action brought
against CDPH.

(2) Should any Intellectual Property licensed by the Contractor to CDPH under this Agreement
become the subject of an Intellectual Property infringement claim, Contractor will exercise its
authority reasonably and in good faith to preserve CDPH’s right to use the licensed Intellectual
Property in accordance with this Agreement at no expense to CDPH.  CDPH shall have the
right to monitor and appear through its own counsel (at Contractor’s expense) in any such
claim or action.  In the defense or settlement of the claim, Contractor may obtain the right for
CDPH to continue using the licensed Intellectual Property; or, replace or modify the licensed
Intellectual Property so that the replaced or modified Intellectual Property becomes non-
infringing provided that such replacement or modification is functionally equivalent to the
original licensed Intellectual Property.  If such remedies are not reasonably available, CDPH
shall be entitled to a refund of all monies paid under this Agreement, without restriction or
limitation of any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

(3) Contractor agrees that damages alone would be inadequate to compensate CDPH for breach
of any term of this Intellectual Property Exhibit by Contractor.  Contractor acknowledges
CDPH would suffer irreparable harm in the event of such breach and agrees CDPH shall be
entitled to obtain equitable relief, including without limitation an injunction, from a court of
competent jurisdiction, without restriction or limitation of any other rights and remedies
available at law or in equity.

h. Survival

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page 11 of 16



The provisions set forth herein shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement or 
any project schedule. 

7. Prior Approval of Training Seminars, Workshops or Conferences

Contractor shall obtain prior CDPH approval of the location, costs, dates, agenda, instructors,
instructional materials, and attendees at any reimbursable training seminar, workshop, or conference
conducted pursuant to this Agreement and of any reimbursable publicity or educational materials to
be made available for distribution.  The Contractor shall acknowledge the support of the State
whenever publicizing the work under this Agreement in any media.  This provision does not apply to
necessary staff meetings or training sessions held for the staff of the Contractor in order to conduct
routine business matters.

8. Confidentiality of Information

The Contractor and its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall:

a. Protect from unauthorized disclosure names and other identifying information concerning persons
either receiving services pursuant to this Agreement or persons whose names or identifying
information become available or are disclosed to the Contractor, its employees, agents, or
subcontractors as a result of services performed under this Agreement, except for statistical
information not identifying any such person.

b. Not use such identifying information for any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor's
obligations under this Agreement.

c. Promptly transmit to the CDPH Contract Manager all requests for disclosure of such identifying
information not emanating from the client or person.

d. Not disclose, except as otherwise specifically permitted by this Agreement or authorized by the
client, any such identifying information to anyone other than CDPH without prior written
authorization from the CDPH Contract Manager, except if disclosure is required by State or
Federal law.

e. For purposes of this provision, identity shall include, but not be limited to name, identifying
number, symbol, or other identifying particular assigned to the individual, such as finger or voice
print or a photograph.

f. As deemed applicable by CDPH, this provision may be supplemented by additional terms and
conditions covering personal health information (PHI) or personal, sensitive, and/or confidential
information (PSCI).  Said terms and conditions will be outlined in one or more exhibits that will
either be attached to this Agreement or incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

9. Documents, Publications and Written Reports

(Applicable to agreements over $5,000 under which publications, written reports and documents are
developed or produced.  Government Code Section 7550.)

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 12 of 16



Any document, publication or written report (excluding progress reports, financial reports and normal 
contractual communications) prepared as a requirement of this Agreement shall contain, in a separate 
section preceding the main body of the document, the number and dollar amounts of all contracts or 
agreements and subcontracts relating to the preparation of such document or report, if the total cost 
for work by nonemployees of the State exceeds $5,000. 

10. Dispute Resolution Process

a. A Contractor grievance exists whenever there is a dispute arising from CDPH’s action in the
administration of an agreement.  If there is a dispute or grievance between the Contractor and
CDPH, the Contractor must seek resolution using the procedure outlined below.

(1) The Contractor should first informally discuss the problem with the CDPH Program Contract
Manager. If the problem cannot be resolved informally, the Contractor shall direct its grievance
together with any evidence, in writing, to the program Branch Chief.  The grievance shall state
the issues in dispute, the legal authority or other basis for the Contractor's position and the
remedy sought.  The Branch Chief shall render a decision within ten (10) working days after
receipt of the written grievance from the Contractor.  The Branch Chief shall respond in writing
to the Contractor indicating the decision and reasons therefore.  If the Contractor disagrees
with the Branch Chief’s decision, the Contractor may appeal to the second level.

(2) When appealing to the second level, the Contractor must prepare an appeal indicating the
reasons for disagreement with Branch Chief’s decision.  The Contractor shall include with the
appeal a copy of the Contractor's original statement of dispute along with any supporting
evidence and a copy of the Branch Chief’s decision.  The appeal shall be addressed to the
Deputy Director of the division in which the branch is organized within ten (10) working days
from receipt of the Branch Chief’s decision.  The Deputy Director of the division in which the
branch is organized or his/her designee shall meet with the Contractor to review the issues
raised.  A written decision signed by the Deputy Director of the division in which the branch is
organized or his/her designee shall be directed to the Contractor within twenty (20) working
days of receipt of the Contractor's second level appeal.

b. If the Contractor wishes to appeal the decision of the Deputy Director of the division in which the
branch is organized or his/her designee, the Contractor shall follow the procedures set forth in
Division 25.1 (commencing with Section 38050) of the Health and Safety Code and the
regulations adopted thereunder.  (Title 1, Division 2, Chapter 2, Article 3 (commencing with
Section 1140) of the California Code of Regulations).

c. Disputes arising out of an audit, examination of an agreement or other action not covered by
subdivision (a) of Section 20204, of Chapter 2.1, Title 22, of the California Code of Regulations,
and for which no procedures for appeal are provided in statute, regulation or the Agreement, shall
be handled in accordance with the procedures identified in Sections 51016 through 51047,
Title 22, California Code of Regulations.

d. Unless otherwise stipulated in writing by CDPH, all dispute, grievance and/or appeal
correspondence shall be directed to the CDPH Contract Manager.

e. There are organizational differences within CDPH’s funding programs, and the management
levels identified in this dispute resolution provision may not apply in every contractual situation.
When a grievance is received and organizational differences exist, the Contractor shall be notified
in writing by the CDPH Contract Manager of the level, name, and/or title of the appropriate
management official that is responsible for issuing a decision at a given level.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page 13 of 16



11. Officials Not to Benefit

No members of or delegate of Congress or the State Legislature shall be admitted to any share or
part of this Agreement, or to any benefit that may arise therefrom.  This provision shall not be
construed to extend to this Agreement if made with a corporation for its general benefits.

12. Prohibited Use of State Funds for Software

Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds
will not be used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance
of computer software in violation of copyright laws.

13. Contract Uniformity (Fringe Benefit Allowability)

(Applicable only to nonprofit organizations.)

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 7 (commencing with Section 100525) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of
Division 101 of the Health and Safety Code, CDPH sets forth the following policies, procedures, and
guidelines regarding the reimbursement of fringe benefits.

a. As used herein fringe benefits shall mean an employment benefit given by one’s employer to an
employee in addition to one’s regular or normal wages or salary.

b. As used herein, fringe benefits do not include:

(1) Compensation for personal services paid currently or accrued by the Contractor for services
of employees rendered during the term of this Agreement, which is identified as regular or
normal salaries and wages, annual leave, vacation, sick leave, holidays, jury duty and/or
military leave/training.

(2) Director’s and executive committee member’s fees.
(3) Incentive awards and/or bonus incentive pay.
(4) Allowances for off-site pay.
(5) Location allowances.
(6) Hardship pay.
(7) Cost-of-living differentials

c. Specific allowable fringe benefits include:

(1) Fringe benefits in the form of employer contributions for the employer's portion of payroll taxes
(i.e., FICA, SUI, SDI), employee health plans (i.e., health, dental and vision), unemployment
insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and the employer’s share of pension/retirement
plans, provided they are granted in accordance with established written organization policies
and meet all legal and Internal Revenue Service requirements.

d. To be an allowable fringe benefit, the cost must meet the following criteria:

(1) Be necessary and reasonable for the performance of the Agreement.
(2) Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
(3) Be consistent with policies that apply uniformly to all activities of the Contractor.

e. Contractor agrees that all fringe benefits shall be at actual cost.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 14 of 16



f. Earned/Accrued Compensation

(1) Compensation for vacation, sick leave and holidays is limited to that amount earned/accrued
within the agreement term.  Unused vacation, sick leave and holidays earned from periods
prior to the agreement term cannot be claimed as allowable costs.  See section f (3)(a) below
for an example.

(2) For multiple year agreements, vacation and sick leave compensation, which is
earned/accrued but not paid, due to employee(s) not taking time off may be carried over and
claimed within the overall term of the multiple years of the Agreement.  Holidays cannot be
carried over from one agreement year to the next.  See Provision f (3)(b) for an example.

(3) For single year agreements, vacation, sick leave and holiday compensation that is
earned/accrued but not paid, due to employee(s) not taking time off within the term of the
Agreement, cannot be claimed as an allowable cost.  See Provision f (3)(c) for an example.

(a) Example No. 1:

If an employee, John Doe, earns/accrues three weeks of vacation and twelve days of sick
leave each year, then that is the maximum amount that may be claimed during a one year
agreement.  If John Doe has five weeks of vacation and eighteen days of sick leave at the
beginning of an agreement, the Contractor during a one-year budget period may only
claim up to three weeks of vacation and twelve days of sick leave as actually used by the
employee.  Amounts earned/accrued in periods prior to the beginning of the Agreement
are not an allowable cost.

(b) Example No. 2:
If during a three-year (multiple year) agreement, John Doe does not use his three weeks
of vacation in year one, or his three weeks in year two, but he does actually use nine
weeks in year three; the Contractor would be allowed to claim all nine weeks paid for in
year three.  The total compensation over the three-year period cannot exceed 156 weeks
(3 x 52 weeks).

(c) Example No. 3:
If during a single year agreement, John Doe works fifty weeks and used one week of
vacation and one week of sick leave and all fifty-two weeks have been billed to CDPH, the
remaining unused two weeks of vacation and seven days of sick leave may not be claimed
as an allowable cost.

14. Cancellation

A. This agreement may be cancelled by CDPH without  cause upon 30 calendar days advance
written notice to the Contractor.

B. CDPH reserves the right to cancel or terminate this agreement immediately for cause.  The
Contractor may submit a written request to terminate this agreement only if CDPH
substantially fails to perform its responsibilities as provided herein.

C. The term “for cause” shall mean that the Contractor fails to meet the terms, conditions, and/or
responsibilities of this agreement.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 15 of 16



D. Agreement termination or cancellation shall be effective as of the date indicated in CDPH’s
notification to the Contractor.  The notice shall stipulate any final performance, invoicing or
payment requirements.

E. Upon receipt of a notice of termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall take immediate
steps to stop performance and to cancel or reduce subsequent agreement costs.

F. In the event of early termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall be entitled to
compensation for services performed satisfactorily under this agreement and expenses
incurred up to the date of cancellation and any non-cancelable obligations incurred in support
of this agreement.

15. Generative Artificial Intelligence (GenAI) Technology Use & Reporting

Effective July 1, 2024, Pursuant to Department of General Services (DGS) Procurement Division
Bulletin Number P-05-24 dated July 1, 2024, the following the provision is requires for all contracts
and contract amendments.

During the term of the contract, Contractor must notify the State in writing if their services or any
work under this contract includes, or makes available, any previously unreported GenAI
technology, including GenAI from third parties or subcontractors.  Contractor shall immediately
complete the GenAI Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) to notify the State of any new or
previously unreported GenAI technology. At the direction of the State, Contractor shall discontinue
the use of any new or previously undisclosed GenAI technology that materially impacts
functionality, risk or contract performance, until use of such GenAI technology has been approved
by the State.

Failure to disclose GenAI use to the State and submit the GenAI Reporting and Factsheet (STD
1000) may be considered a breach of the contract by the State at its sole discretion and the State
may consider such failure to disclose GenAI and/or failure to submit the GenAI Reporting and
Factsheet (STD 1000) as grounds for the immediate termination of the contract.  The State is
entitled to seek any and all relief it may be entitled to as a result of such non-disclosure.

The State reserves the right to amend the contract, without additional cost, to incorporate
GenAI Special Provisions into the contract at its sole discretion and/or terminate any
contract that presents an unacceptable level of risk to the State.

Exhibit D 
Special Terms and Conditions 

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 16 of 16

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-Folder/Broadcast-Bulletin-Updates-for-Procurement-Professionals
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Search-Results?search=STD%201000&divisionid=7bce8ca3ed8a4aedbdeaf52f5e77df36&activeFilters=division-or-office-facets


Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 1 of 3 

Exhibit E 
Additional Provisions 

1. Insurance Requirements 

A. General Provisions Applying to All Policies

1. Coverage Term – Coverage needs to be in force for the complete term of the 
Agreement.  If insurance expires during the term of the Agreement, a new 
certificate and required endorsements must be received by the State at least ten
(10) business days prior to the expiration of this insurance.  Any new insurance 
must comply with the original Agreement terms.

2. Policy Cancellation or Termination and Notice of Non-Renewal –  Contractor shall 
provide to the CDPH within five (5) business days following receipt by Contractor a 
copy of any cancellation or non-renewal of insurance required by this Contract. In 
the event Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times the specified insurance 
coverage, the CDPH may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, terminate 
this Contract upon the occurrence of such event, subject to the provisions of this 
Contract.

3. Premiums, Assessments and Deductibles – Contractor is responsible for any 
premiums, policy assessments, deductibles or self-insured retentions contained 
within their insurance program.

4. Primary Clause – Any required insurance contained in this Agreement shall be 
primary and not excess or contributory to any other insurance carried by the 
CDPH.

5. Insurance Carrier Required Rating – All insurance companies must carry an AM 
Best rating of at least “A–” with a financial category rating of no lower than VI.  If 
Contractor is self-insured for a portion or all of its insurance, review of financial 
information including a letter of credit may be required.

6. Endorsements – Any required endorsements requested by the CDPH must be 
physically attached to all requested certificates of insurance and not substituted by 
referring to such coverage on the certificate of insurance.

7. Inadequate Insurance – Inadequate or lack of insurance does not negate 
Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement.

8. Use of Subcontractors - In the case of Contractor’s utilization of Subcontractors to 
complete the contracted scope of work, Contractor shall include all Subcontractors 
as insured under Contractor’s insurance or supply evidence of the Subcontractor’s 
insurance to the CDPH equal to policies, coverages, and limits required of 
Contractor.

B. Insurance Coverage Requirements



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Exhibit E 
Additional Provisions 

 
 

Contractor shall display evidence of certificate of insurance evidencing the following 
coverage: 
 
1. Commercial General Liability  – Contractor shall maintain general liability with limits 

not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 
combined with a $2,000,000 annual policy aggregate.  The policy shall include 
coverage for liabilities arising out of premises, operations, independent 
Contractors, products, completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and 
liability assumed under an insured Agreement.  This insurance shall apply 
separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought subject 
to Contractor’s limit of liability. The policy shall be endorsed to include, “The State 
of California, its officers, agents and employees,  
are included as additional insured, but only with respect to work performed for the 
state of California under this agreement.”   This endorsement must be supplied 
under form acceptable to the Office of Risk and Insurance Management. 

 
2. Automobile Liability (when required) – Contractor shall maintain motor vehicle 

liability insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per 
accident.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of a motor vehicle 
including owned, hired and non-owned motor vehicles.  Should the scope of the 
Agreement involve transportation of hazardous materials, evidence of an MCS-90 
endorsement is required. The policy shall be endorsed to include, “The State of 
California, its officers, agents and employees,  
are included as additional insured, but only with respect to work performed for the 
state of California under this agreement.”   This endorsement must be supplied 
under form acceptable to the Office of Risk and Insurance Management. 

 
3. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability (when required) – Contractor 

shall maintain statutory worker’s compensation and employer’s liability coverage 
for all its employees who will be engaged in the performance of the Agreement.  
Employer’s liability limits of $1,000,000 are required.  When work is performed on 
State owned or controlled property the policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement in favor of the State. This endorsement must be supplied under form 
acceptable to the Office of Risk and Insurance Management. 

 
4. Professional Liability (when required) – Contractor shall maintain professional 

liability covering any damages caused by a negligent error act or omission with 
limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 policy aggregate. 
The policy’s retroactive date must be displayed on the certificate of insurance and 
must be before the date this Agreement was executed or before the beginning of 
Agreement work. 

 
5. Environmental/Pollution Liability (when required) – Contractor shall maintain 

pollution liability for limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim covering Contractor’s 
liability for bodily injury, property damage and environmental damage resulting 



Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Exhibit E 
Additional Provisions 

 
from pollution and related cleanup costs incurred arising out of the work or services 
to be performed under this Agreement.  Coverage shall be provided for both work 
performed on site as well as transportation and proper disposal of hazardous 
materials.  The policy shall be endorsed to include, “The State of California, its 
officers, agents and employees,  
are included as additional insured, but only with respect to work performed for the 
state of California under this agreement.”   This endorsement must be supplied 
under form acceptable to the Office of Risk and Insurance Management. 

 
6. Aircraft Liability (when required) - Contractor shall maintain aircraft liability with a 

limit not less than $3,000,000. The policy shall be endorsed to include, “The State 
of California, its officers, agents and employees, are included as additional insured, 
but only with respect to work performed for the state of California under this 
agreement.”  This endorsement must be supplied under form acceptable to the 
Office of Risk and Insurance Management. 

 
 



State of California — Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health

CDPH 2352 (7/07) 

Contractor’s Release 

Instructions to Contractor: 

With final invoice(s) submit one (1) original and one (1) copy.  The original must bear the original signature of a person 
authorized to bind the Contractor.  The additional copy may bear photocopied signatures. 

Submission of Final Invoice 

Pursuant to contract number 24-10494 entered into between the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) 
and the Contractor (identified below), the Contractor does acknowledge that final payment has been requested via invoice 
number(s)       , in the amount(s) of $       and dated      . 
If necessary, enter "See Attached" in the appropriate blocks and attach a list of invoice numbers, dollar amounts and invoice dates. 

Release of all Obligations 

By signing this form, and upon receipt of the amount specified in the invoice number(s) referenced above, the Contractor does 
hereby release and discharge the State, its officers, agents and employees of and from any and all liabilities, obligations, claims, and 
demands whatsoever arising from the above referenced contract. 

Repayments Due to Audit Exceptions / Record Retention 

By signing this form, Contractor acknowledges that expenses authorized for reimbursement does not guarantee final allowability of 
said expenses.  Contractor agrees that the amount of any sustained audit exceptions resulting from any subsequent audit made 
after final payment will be refunded to the State. 

All expense and accounting records related to the above referenced contract must be maintained for audit purposes for no less than 
three years beyond the date of final payment, unless a longer term is stated in said contract. 

Recycled Product Use Certification 

By signing this form, Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury that a minimum of 0% unless otherwise specified in writing of post 
consumer material, as defined in the Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold 
to the State regardless of whether it meets the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209.  Contractor specifies that 
printer or duplication cartridges offered or sold to the State comply with the requirements of Section 12156(e).  

Reminder to Return State Equipment/Property (If Applicable) 
(Applies only if equipment was provided by CDPH or purchased with or reimbursed by contract funds) 

Unless CDPH has approved the continued use and possession of State equipment (as defined in the above referenced contract) for 
use in connection with another CDPH agreement, Contractor agrees to promptly initiate arrangements to account for and return said 
equipment to CDPH, at CDPH's expense, if said equipment has not passed its useful life expectancy as defined in the above 
referenced contract. 

Patents / Other Issues 

By signing this form, Contractor further agrees, in connection with patent matters and with any claims that are not specifically 
released as set forth above, that it will comply with all of the provisions contained in the above referenced contract, including, but not 
limited to, those provisions relating to notification to the State and related to the defense or prosecution of litigation. 

ONLY SIGN AND DATE THIS DOCUMENT WHEN ATTACHING IT TO THE FINAL INVOICE 

Contractor’s Legal Name (as on contract): Tulare County Office of Education 

Signature of Contractor or Official Designee: Date: 

Printed Name/Title of Person Signing: 

Distribution: Accounting (Original) Program

Tulare County Office of Education 
24-10494

Page 1 of 1



































































































































































































TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

2025-2026 BUDGET CALENDAR 

(7/1/2025 through 6/30/2026)

COMPLETION DATE ACTIVITY PERFORMED BY WHOM

MONTHLY (all categorical 

programs must be self-

supporting with allowable 

costs to service fund)

Review current fiscal year income and 

expenditures (both actual and projected) 

compare with working budget. Any revisions 

must be approved in advance by the 

Superintendent

Assistant Superintendents 

Administrators 

Directors/Program Managers 

Director, Internal Business

3rd Monday in January 

January 20, 2025 {Holiday}

2nd Monday in February

February 10, 2025 {Holiday}

4th Monday in February

February 24, 2025

2nd Monday in March

March 10, 2025

Review preliminary budget and establish list 

of priorities.

Executive Board

NO LATER THAN March 15 Non-reelection notification (certificated), if 

necessary  [Ed. Code 44949(a)(1)]

Assistant Superintendent, 

Human Resources

NO LATER THAN March 15 Notification of Layoff (classified employees), 

if necessary  [Ed. Code 45117(a)(1)]

Assistant Superintendent, 

Human Resources

NO LATER THAN March 17, 

2025 (45 days after the close 

of the period reported)

Review second interim report of 2024-2025 

financial and budgetary status of TCOE for 

period ending January 31 [Ed. Code 

1240(l)(1)(A)&(B)]

Board of Education

Certify to state whether TCOE will be able to 

meet financial obligations for this fiscal year 

and for multi-year commitments

Superintendent

NO LATER THAN                   

May 2, 2025 (at least 10 

days before the public 

hearing)

Post in 3 public places and publish the time, 

place and purpose of public hearing & 

availability of proposed budget for public 

inspection [Ed. Code 1620, 42103(d)]

Administrative Legal Assistant, 

Business Services

May 9, 2025 Budget must be made available for public 

inspection at least 3 days prior to the public 

hearing [Ed. Code 1620]

Director, Internal Business

Prior to May board meeting - 

before May 14, 2025

Review proposed budget for next fiscal year 

(2025-2026)

Executive Board

Prepare preliminary income projections for all 

sections, 2024-2025 Budget.

Director, Internal Business

Provide budget development documents to 

Assistant Superintendents

Director, Internal Business

Return budget development documents to 

Assistant Superintendents

Administrators 

Directors/Program Managers 

Return budget development documents to 

Internal Fiscal Officer

Assistant Superintendents

Page 1 of 3 Prepared for 12/13/2024 Board Meeting



TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

2025-2026 BUDGET CALENDAR 

(7/1/2025 through 6/30/2026)

COMPLETION DATE ACTIVITY PERFORMED BY WHOM

2nd Wednesday in May

May 14, 2025

Hold Public Hearing on LCAP or LCAP 

update and proposed budget (2025-2026)

Assistant Superintendent, 

Instructional Services-Student 

Support Services               

Board of Education

May 12, 2025 Cutoff date for purchase orders Superintendent

NO LATER THAN May 15 Final Notice of Layoff (classified employees), 

if necessary  [Ed. Code 45117(c)(3)(A)]

Assistant Superintendent, 

Human Resources

BEFORE May 15 Notice of termination, if there is a decline in 

average daily attendance (certificated) [Ed. 

Code 44955]

Assistant Superintendent, 

Human Resources

2nd Wednesday in June 

June 11, 2025

Submit final revisions of 2024-2025 budget 

to Board of Education

Director, Internal Business 

Superintendent

The budget shall not be adopted/approved 

before the LCAP or update to the LCAP [Ed. 

Code 1622(a)]

Adoption of 2025-2026 LCAP or LCAP 

update and budget

BEFORE June 30 or prior to 

expending EPA funds

Approve spending plan/determination for 

money received from the Education 

Protection Account (EPA). This can be done 

at the same time as budget adoption.

Director, Internal Business 

Board of Education

ON OR BEFORE July 1 File the approved budget with the State 

within 5 days after adoption, or by July 1 [Ed. 

Code 1622(a)]

Director, Internal Business

August (not later than 45 

days after the Governor 

signs the Annual Budget 

Act)

Make available for public review any 

revisions in revenues and expenditures 

made to the budget to reflect the funding 

made available by the Budget Act [Ed. Code 

1622(e)]

Director, Internal Business

NO LATER THAN August 

15

Notice of termination, if funding is not 

increased by 2% per average daily 

attendance (certificated) [Ed. Code 44955.5]

Assistant Superintendent, 

Human Resources

PowerPoint Presentation Director, Internal Business

Assistant Superintendent, 

Instructional Services-Student 

Support Services Branch 

Board of Education

Page 2 of 3 Prepared for 12/13/2024 Board Meeting



TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

2025-2026 BUDGET CALENDAR 

(7/1/2025 through 6/30/2026)

COMPLETION DATE ACTIVITY PERFORMED BY WHOM

September Upon finalizing financial data for the fiscal 

year, post on TCOE website the actuals for 

2024-2025 EPA.

Director, Internal Business

ON OR BEFORE 

September 15

State shall approve or disapprove the 

adopted budget [Ed. Code 1622(b)]

State Superintendent of Public 

Instruction

ON OR BEFORE October 8 If the budget is disapproved by the State, 

review recommendations from the state at a 

regularly scheduled meeting. Respond to 

recommendations, including any proposed 

actions to be taken [Ed. Code 1622(c)]

Board of Education

ON OR BEFORE October 

15

Prepare and file unaudited actuals (annual 

financial report) with the State [Ed. Code 

1628]

Director, Internal Business

NO LATER THAN 

December 15

Prior fiscal year audit due to State [Ed. Code 

41020(h)] (2023-2024)

Director, Internal Business

NO LATER THAN 

December 15, 2025 (45 

days after the close of the 

period reported)

Review first interim report of 2025-2026 

financial and budgetary status of TCOE for 

period ending October 31 [Ed. Code 

1240(l)(1)(A)&(B)]

Board of Education

NO LATER THAN March 

17, 2026 (45 days after the 

close of the period reported)

Review second interim report of 2025-2026 

financial and budgetary status of TCOE for 

period ending January 31 [Ed. Code 

1240(l)(1)(A)&(B)]

Board of Education

Certify to state whether TCOE will be able to 

meet financial obligations for this fiscal year 

and for multi-year commitments

Superintendent

Page 3 of 3 Prepared for 12/13/2024 Board Meeting


	Dec 13 2024 board packet.pdf
	agenda12.24
	2025 board meeting dates
	24NOV minutes
	Vote Results
	Vote Results
	Vote Results

	registered cred
	temp certs
	Emergency Permits
	working draft BP_SP 1312_3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
	final draft BP_SP 1312_3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
	working BP_SP 1312_4 Williams
	Working draft E(2) 1312.4 Williams Complaint Form
	Final draft BP_SP 1312_4 Williams Complaint
	Final draft E(2) 1312.4 Williams Complaint Form
	Supt Hire 24-25 Salary Resolution - Dec 2024
	Exhibit A- supts comp
	CFNLP DHCS A06 4260-2110068-A6 FINAL EXECUTED CONTRACT
	CFNLP CDPH SABP Contract 4265-2410494 (1)
	24-25 CSEA 428 Public Disclosure (002)
	24-25 CSEA 899 Public Disclosure (002)
	24-25 CTA Public Disclosure (002)
	24-25 1st Interim Budget Revisions BOARD
	24-25 1st Interim Reports BOARD

	Budget Calendar 2025-26.pdf



